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          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Good morning,

          3  everyone. No, good afternoon. I hope everybody is

          4  okay. Good afternoon, citizens of New York City, and

          5  thank you for taking the time to attend today's

          6  hearing.

          7                 My name is Margarita Lopez, and I am

          8  the Chair of the Committee on Mental Health, Mental

          9  Retardation, Alcoholism, Drug Abuse and Disability

         10  Services.

         11                 At this moment I would like to

         12  introduce the members of the team who are here, for

         13  all of you to know who they are, and I, after that,

         14  will continue with my remarks.

         15                 Starting from my extreme right, it's

         16  very rare that I have an extreme right, but that's

         17  life:

         18                 MS. EMERMAN: Ann Emerman, staff to

         19  the Committee.

         20                 MS. CULP: Jennifer Culp, Policy

         21  Analyst to the Committee.

         22                 MS. DePEDRO: Mari DePedro, Counsel to

         23  the Committee.

         24                 MR. WALLACE: Andrew Wallace, Council

         25  Finance Division.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And then we have

          3  two Sergeants-of-Arms in here.

          4                 SERGEANT-AT-ARMS COLLAZO:

          5  Sergeant-At-Arms Herberto Collazo.

          6                 SERGEANT-AT-ARMS PEREZ:

          7  Sergeant-At-Arms Rafael Perez.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you. Now we

          9  continue.

         10                 We are here today to discuss the call

         11  to make permanent New York Assisted Outpatient

         12  Treatment Law, also known as Kendra's Law.

         13                 In 1999, a tragic event occurred. A

         14  young woman lost her life because of the actions of

         15  an individual suffering from mental illness.

         16                 This tragic event left society

         17  feeling very scared and very vulnerable, and the

         18  State responded by enacting Kendra's Law.

         19                 The loss of the life of that woman

         20  was unnecessary and we, as a society, must be aware

         21  that forever we will be responsible of that act.

         22                 This law allows individuals,

         23  physicians and providers to Court order an

         24  individual to treatment.

         25                 While the State reports a great
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          2  success and we are pleased to see that rates of

          3  hospitalization, arrests and incarceration have

          4  decreased, I believe this law only masquerades the

          5  real issue, that the present mental health system

          6  seems to always be in jeopardy of closing the doors.

          7                 We continually see the slashing of

          8  funding for community mental health providers in New

          9  York City.

         10                 What is so alarming to me is that

         11  these groups are the ones that we depend on and are

         12  the best at providing adequate and culturally

         13  competent care to those with a mental illness in New

         14  York City.

         15                 Those are the groups that constantly

         16  get slashed and their funding get cut. Through my

         17  experience I know, I understand that there is a

         18  segment of the population that require

         19  hospitalization in order to save themselves or

         20  others from harm.

         21                 Most importantly, we need to address

         22  how we can improve the services provided to those

         23  serious and persistent mental illness without

         24  forcing treatment upon them.

         25                 Some of the concerns regarding
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          2  Kendra's law that have been brought to my attention

          3  are: Lack of resources; racial disparity; and loss

          4  of confidentiality.

          5                 New York Lawyers for Public Interest

          6  will testify today as to the funding, highlighting

          7  the fact that over 60 percent of those under Court

          8  order in New York State are black or Hispanic.

          9                 In addition, when I look at the

         10  numbers of people currently in the Court order who

         11  are actually receiving treatment in New York City,

         12  it's only about 3,000, yet over 5,000 individuals

         13  were investigated to see if they require a Court

         14  order.

         15                 Why are we spending time and money

         16  investigating if someone may need help when we know

         17  they do? We know that. We know that they need the

         18  help. We don't need to investigate that. We are

         19  aware of that.

         20                 Therefore, instead of investigating,

         21  we should be funding the mental health providers in

         22  their communities who help thousands of individuals

         23  each year. We are here today to learn more about

         24  Kendra's Law and the concern of the community.

         25                 From my part, as a personal
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          2  individual, in a society that believes that the

          3  whole of the Constitution is the most important

          4  responsibility of every citizen, I feel very, very

          5  troubled by this law, and I feel that this law

          6  jeopardize the constitutional protections that all

          7  of us in society must protect.

          8                 I will never propose to anyone to

          9  jeopardize the life of anyone but I will never allow

         10  the constitution of our country to be diminished,

         11  destroyed, watered down or shortchanged by creating

         12  an environment of hysteria and then not justify that

         13  environment with true real data and need for this

         14  proposal.

         15                 Thank you very much to tall of you,

         16  and at this moment we will proceed with the first

         17  group of people who are going to be testifying

         18  today.

         19                 I'm going to allow the Administration

         20  to testify right now, but I made very clear that

         21  what my intention was today here. Thank you.

         22                 Please.

         23                 MS. DePEDRO: For the first panel,

         24  John Gresham, New York Lawyers for the Public

         25  Interest; Dr. Lawrence Berg, Mental Health expert.
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          2                 Can you raise your right hand?

          3                 Will you swear or affirm that the

          4  testimony you are about to provide will be truthful

          5  in all concerns?

          6                 (Witnesses sworn.)

          7                 MS. DePEDRO: You may begin.

          8                 MR. GRESHAM: Thank you for the

          9  opportunity to testify. I have handed up a report

         10  that we released about two weeks ago in place of

         11  written testimony.

         12                 Regardless of what was intended when

         13  Kendra's Law was passed, the way it has turned out

         14  in practice raises some serious public health

         15  concerns and some serious concerns about fundamental

         16  fairness.

         17                 The report that was handed in

         18  concentrates on the disparities in the people

         19  subjected to court orders. These disparities vary

         20  according to what sets of numbers you look at, but

         21  looking at the biggest picture statewide, comparing

         22  people under court orders to general population,

         23  what you find is that black people are much more

         24  subjected to court orders than you would expect,

         25  Hispanic in the middle and white people, who are not
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          2  Hispanic, much less than you would expect, and that

          3  basic order holds no matter what set of numbers you

          4  look at.

          5                 The Statewide population numbers are

          6  about five times as likely to be subject to a court

          7  order if you are a black citizen of New York State

          8  than if you are a white citizen, and about two and a

          9  half times if you are Hispanic.

         10                 If you reduce the number of people

         11  you make the comparison to to just those the State

         12  itself counts as severely and persistently mentally

         13  ill, who are 18 years or over, you still have a

         14  three to one disparity and a two to one disparity,

         15  black to white and Hispanic to white.

         16                 If you go to New York City and you

         17  look particularly at the City, just New York City,

         18  you find that borough-by-borough the percentage of

         19  people subjected to orders who are black is

         20  significantly more than those who are severely and

         21  persistently mentally ill in that borough who are

         22  black.

         23                 Now, no matter how you slice and dice

         24  it, the disparities don't go away if you look at the

         25  distribution of mental illness among different
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          2  groups, or if you look at the distribution of people

          3  in different groups across the State or distribution

          4  of mental illness across the State. That set of

          5  numbers, those sets of numbers raise some

          6  significant concerns.

          7                 They are not new.

          8                 When the data first began to be

          9  collected, they were obvious. OMH went around the

         10  State in 2001 with a slide show. Today the total of

         11  black and Hispanic people under orders is 42 percent

         12  plus 21 percent equals 63. In 2001 it was 62

         13  percent, virtually the same. In the report that the

         14  State issued in 2003, it was virtually the same. And

         15  they just released the report that contains the

         16  numbers that I've used.

         17                 All the numbers in the report are

         18  either from OMH itself or from the Census Bureau.

         19  None of those are our numbers. And as far as I

         20  understand, none of them is disputed. There are

         21  arguments about the meaning.

         22                 But in any case, one would wonder,

         23  seeing numbers like this, wouldn't people get

         24  curious and wonder what does this mean about the

         25  implementation of this law and what does it mean

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  about the mental health system behind the

          3  implementation?

          4                 So far all that OMH has had to say is

          5  that the population of people subjected to court

          6  orders is diverse, and that it is similar to the mix

          7  of people who receive case management, assertive

          8  community treatment, which is true, it is.

          9                 But that doesn't answer very many

         10  questions. First of all, because case management for

         11  the most part is a voluntary program. And you can

         12  look at it as a way that the system reaches out to

         13  people who may not have good access. And you can

         14  look at it as a way that the system tries to bring

         15  itself to people who may not have access to it or

         16  may not feel comfortable with it.

         17                 But it's on a voluntary basis. You

         18  can take it or leave it. And your case manager is

         19  your case manager. It's a useful thing if you want

         20  it. Your case manager can serve you in many ways,

         21  help you get the services and benefits you need. No

         22  one objects to that if it's a voluntary thing.

         23                 So, the comparison is sort of, quite

         24  dramatically apples and oranges.

         25                 Beyond that, to some extent the
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          2  comparison is a tautology, because some people who

          3  have case managers are under court orders. Everybody

          4  under a Kendra's Law court order has a case manager.

          5  That's required by the Statute. So, to a certain

          6  extent that comparison is comparing a number to

          7  itself. And of course it's similar. It's kind of a

          8  number for that reason. I can't give you an exact

          9  figure, but about 25 percent, would estimate in New

         10  York City about 25 percent of the people in the more

         11  active forms of case management and act teams are

         12  under court orders.

         13                 Now, I was limited in writing the

         14  report to the data I could get, and it wasn't easy.

         15  Some of it's public, but most of it is public, it

         16  wasn't in a form that was useful, and I asked for

         17  access to both the New York City database and the

         18  State database, specifically about people under

         19  Kendra's Law, and was refused by New York City. And

         20  the State has been sitting on my request, I only

         21  found out the State has a database more recently.

         22  They didn't have one originally. They operated with

         23  paper. They've been sitting on my request since

         24  February 7th and I haven't heard from them.

         25                 To get the data from other OMH
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          2  sources that I got, I had to threaten to sue them.

          3  And it took a long time.

          4                 This has not been a subject that has

          5  been discussed, or analyzed in any way that I know.

          6  Now, I'm looking forward to the City's response, the

          7  City has to think about this, it seems to me. It has

          8  to analyze, is there some bias here in the way

          9  people are selected, in some people's minds

         10  consciously or unconsciously? Are they being

         11  selected from pools that are already biased?

         12                 Hospitals tend to be more populated

         13  by people of color and so do, of course, jails, but

         14  I can't find out because I can't get the data, the

         15  degree to which that's what's going on here.

         16                 Are we talking about people's lack of

         17  access? I expect we are. Are we talking about some

         18  degree to which people of color may find services

         19  less to their satisfaction? I suspect that to some

         20  degree we are. Of course language is an issue that's

         21  critical in dealing with mental illness. You can't

         22  possibly be helpful to somebody who you can't talk

         23  to.

         24                 All of those things are possible here

         25  and we need to understand what's going on. I've been
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          2  talking about this in public forums for several

          3  years, and I've been demanding data and people know

          4  that, but it hasn't gotten discussed. So, if I've

          5  provoked that discussion, I will regard that as a

          6  good thing.

          7                 I should point out that I'm aware of

          8  one other state in which there has been some

          9  research and therefore there are some numbers.

         10                 North Carolina has a law roughly

         11  similar to ours in that deals with people who it is

         12  predicted will in the future become dangerous to

         13  themselves or others. That's the driving factor in

         14  the North Carolina law, that's in our law. And there

         15  have been studies in North Carolina that proponents

         16  of Kendra's Law point to very often. But one thing

         17  they don't generally point to is that about

         18  two-thirds of the people in the North Carolina study

         19  were black, compared to 22 percent of the population

         20  of North Carolina, and they were mostly poor.

         21                 So, we may not be unique, but still

         22  this hasn't received much discussion.

         23                 Now, I am positive as I sit here that

         24  there are people involved in the implementation of

         25  Kendra's law, who operate in the utmost good faith
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          2  and only honorable intentions and do fabulously good

          3  work and are extremely helpful to people.

          4                 But still, and some of them are

          5  probably in this room. I can't see well enough to

          6  see who's in this room entirely, but I'm sure some

          7  of them are. Yet, we have something here that's

          8  disturbing and needs to be understood, and we can't

          9  plough ahead as though these facts don't exist.

         10                 Why does it matter? Kendra's Law

         11  really has two aspects. Under one hand, if you're

         12  under a Kendra's Law Order, you're compelled to

         13  accept treatment. There's a fairly heavy hammer over

         14  your head, if you don't, and you're told what it is.

         15                 On the other hand, you have a kind of

         16  a right to treatment. You're put at the head of the

         17  line, and officials are made responsible for

         18  ensuring that that treatment is delivered. That, of

         19  course, doesn't always work perfectly, but that is a

         20  kind of a right to treatment, and no other

         21  outpatient in New York State has that right.

         22                 It would not, I don't think raise any

         23  objection. It wouldn't raise any objection in my

         24  mind if we were prioritizing people to find the way

         25  Kendra's Law defines eligibility and giving them
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          2  priority access to services, as long as we don't

          3  have enough. Obviously, we should have enough

          4  services, but until we do, until we reach the place

          5  where morally we should be. Having a set of

          6  priorities is a reasonable thing. And these are

          7  perfectly reasonable priorities. Really what they

          8  come down to is Kendra's Law is applied to people

          9  who have been hospitalized multiple times. That is

         10  really the driving force behind the numbers.

         11                 And it would not be a bad thing, as a

         12  matter of fact, it seems a rather good thing if

         13  people are repeatedly hospitalized, to select them

         14  to put at the head of the list and to make sure that

         15  they get what they need. And we could do that

         16  without compulsion, without court orders. We could

         17  offer that without taking away freedom at the same

         18  time.

         19                 The way Kendra's Law is written now,

         20  those two things are joined. They don't have to be.

         21  Nor does New York City have to act as though they

         22  are.

         23                 One could, very reasonably, just do

         24  the one administratively, create the priority and

         25  make sure the people get the services.
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          2                 However, under a court order, as the

          3  law is now written, you lose a lot of freedom. You

          4  are mandated to take medication, whether you like it

          5  or not, side effects or no, whether you think it

          6  helps you on balance or not, you're mandated.

          7                 You are generally mandated also to

          8  have therapy, and that, you're told where, what

          9  clinic, in effect, that means with what therapist

         10  and what group. You are sometimes told, in a fairly

         11  significant number of cases, where to live, and very

         12  often that means with what roommates. And that can

         13  be in a place where there are a lot of rules and

         14  restrictions on you. You can be told where you're

         15  going to spend your days, like in a rehab program,

         16  day treatment program, that occupies much of your

         17  daytime hours.

         18                 Now, all of those can be incredibly

         19  useful things. Case management and housing are in

         20  short supply, and that is a huge disgrace I think.

         21  Yet, all of these things can be extremely useful to

         22  people.

         23                 But we normally, in our country,

         24  expect to have the choice ourselves to decide

         25  whether to accept medical treatment and what
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          2  treatment, and what treatment, who to be receiving

          3  treatment from, with whom, where to live, where to

          4  spend their days. Those are fundamental aspects of

          5  our freedom. And those lost to people under Kendra's

          6  Law, and so that's why, it seems to me, that the

          7  disparities really matter.

          8                 Now, the Office of Mental Health has

          9  trumpeted the success of Kendra's Law in a couple of

         10  big reports, one in 2003 and then virtually

         11  identical one just released in March. And you've

         12  made a reference to it, Ms. Lopez, that it does show

         13  beyond doubt that something that's going on in the

         14  implementation of Kendra's Law is extremely useful.

         15  It reduces hospitalization, it reduces arrests, and

         16  so forth. But what it does not absolutely show, it

         17  cannot, it cannot even begin to show why that is

         18  occurring.

         19                 The evidence that we have suggests

         20  that that is probably the result of priority for

         21  services, not compulsion. That was the conclusion of

         22  the Bellevue study of the pilot program that

         23  occurred in the City in the nineties. There was a

         24  pilot program that ran for three or four years at

         25  Bellevue and there was a fairly sophisticated study,
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          2  and it looked at what benefitted people and it

          3  distinguished between court orders and access to

          4  service.

          5                 Basically it found that access to

          6  service and people backing you up to get access to

          7  service was very helpful and reduced

          8  hospitalizations, and the court orders essentially

          9  added nothing.

         10                 Now, the OMH research that is now put

         11  forward claiming success, does not draw any

         12  distinction between those two things. It looks at

         13  their combined effect. And you absolutely can't

         14  tease out what's producing the good results. You

         15  just can't tell from their data.

         16                 Also, I should say that it's flawed

         17  in many other ways.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I need you to wrap

         19  up your testimony.

         20                 MR. GRESHAM: Okay.

         21                 It's flawed in many other ways, but

         22  it does tell us that 85 percent of the people

         23  subjected to court orders do not have a history of

         24  hurting somebody else in the period prior to their

         25  orders.
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          2                 I speak in support of your

          3  resolution, but I would actually urge the City to go

          4  farther. The City spends money on getting court

          5  orders and applying the mechanism of compulsion. And

          6  I would urge it to stop doing that.

          7                 I think it's fine, and admirable and

          8  a good thing for the City to go on prioritizing

          9  people who are hospitalized multiple times in

         10  putting them ahead of a list for what's scarce. We

         11  could lose the compulsion and probably achieve every

         12  good result and obtain all the State money, I

         13  believe that's now available.

         14                 So, that's what I urge you to do, and

         15  I hope that will be the outcome of this hearing.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Gresham.

         19                 Before the next witness speak, I

         20  would like to ask the Council Member who came to

         21  introduce herself.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Good

         23  afternoon. I'm Council Member Helen Diane Foster

         24  from the Bronx.

         25                 Madam Chair, I am going to have to
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          2  run to another meeting at 2:00 and then I will come

          3  back, but my staff person will stay here.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you.

          5                 Yes, sir.

          6                 DR. BERG: My name is Lawrence Berg. I

          7  have more than 25 years of experience clinically,

          8  administratively, policy planning, legal and

          9  advocacy in working on behalf of people with mental

         10  illness in New York State.

         11                 Chairperson Lopez and members of the

         12  Committee, members of the staff, thank you for

         13  inviting me to speak on this matter that is very

         14  important to the people of the City and of the

         15  State.

         16                 For the Committee's consideration, I

         17  have attached a copy of an article, Kendra's Law.

         18  Preliminary Observations on Involuntary Outpatient

         19  Commitment in New York, in New York State, which I

         20  authored and was published in the Committee Mental

         21  Health Report. I offer it in addition to my oral

         22  testimony this afternoon.

         23                 My testimony this afternoon is in

         24  opposition to the continuation of the AOT program in

         25  New York. At the very least, New York should impose
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          2  a moratorium on court ordered involuntary outpatient

          3  treatment. This will allow for a more complete

          4  evaluation of AOT that focuses on comparing the

          5  outcomes for people with mental illness who received

          6  only enhanced services with the outcomes for those

          7  people who are mandated into outpatient treatment in

          8  New York State over the last five years.

          9                 Preliminary observations support the

         10  conclusion that it is the enhancement services and

         11  the adequacy and accessibility of those services

         12  that helps people improve, and not the court ordered

         13  treatment.

         14                 Continued utilization of outpatient

         15  commitment orders may be counterproductive,

         16  clinically and personally, financially costly, and

         17  possibly unethical and illegal, if similar or better

         18  outcomes can be attained through service

         19  enhancements without court orders for involuntary

         20  treatment.

         21                 I'd like to make a couple of

         22  observations. Implementation of AOT in New York is a

         23  tail of two states. AOT is implemented very

         24  differently from the Upstate regions of the State,

         25  when compared to downstate, which would include New
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          2  York City, Nassau and Suffolk Counties.

          3                 Population and demographic

          4  differences do not appear to explain those vast

          5  differences.

          6                 The Downstate counties rely very

          7  heavily on court orders, and that includes New York

          8  City. Upstate communities, including many urban

          9  areas, rely far less on court orders, and make

         10  efforts to enhance services without resorting to

         11  involuntary commitment.

         12                 The different approaches in different

         13  regions strongly support the need for further

         14  research to examine how and why AOT implementation

         15  is so different and to carefully explore if the

         16  court orders are really helpful and necessary.

         17                 State OMH evaluation of AOT program

         18  is at best incomplete. OMH examines the functional

         19  levels of people who are on AOT orders for six

         20  months, and compares that to how they function at

         21  the time of the initial court order.

         22                 However, the real question is, do

         23  people with severe mental illness do as well or

         24  better after they've received enhanced services

         25  without a court order when compared to those who
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          2  were court ordered into services. These data are

          3  readily available to us. We must take the

          4  opportunity to carefully examine it. A great deal is

          5  at stake.

          6                 Research at Bellevue Hospital Center,

          7  which Mr. Gresham referred to, in the 1990s appears

          8  to support the notion that it is enhanced services

          9  and not the court order that makes a difference and

         10  helps people improve.

         11                 Current anecdotal evidence from

         12  upstate regions strongly support the conclusion that

         13  imposed services and delivery of those services is

         14   -- excuse me. That improves services and delivery

         15  of those services is as effective, and in many cases

         16  better, than resorting to court orders.

         17                 Clearly, existing data on AOT in New

         18  York State may show that court orders are not

         19  necessary, enhanced services may be the key.

         20                 We have a responsibility and even an

         21  obligation to find out before we proceed with

         22  permanently -- creating a permanent AOT program.

         23                 In conclusion, thank you, again, for

         24  inviting me to speak, and to submit written

         25  testimony. I strongly recommend that the Committee

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  oppose the continuation of the AOT program.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you to both

          4  of you. I have a series of questions that I would

          5  like to ask you.

          6                 First of all, it's a reality that

          7  people who have hurt other people, in regard of the

          8  cases specifically connected to an individual who

          9  was diagnosed or allegedly suffering from some

         10  mental disorder. It's a reality that those cases

         11  have existed, and that they have been out there and

         12  the people got hurt, and the people who got hurt are

         13  innocent people to begin with, and then the

         14  individual who suffer from the alleged mental

         15  illness also get hurt because that individual for

         16  never, ever again will be the same, that they had

         17  hurt somebody.

         18                 Then understanding that reality, is a

         19  reality that is out there, how do you propose to

         20  deal with that reality even if the number is very

         21  small? And I understand that you are talking about a

         22  vast group of people, and I understand that you're

         23  talking in the context of the issues that had to do

         24  with race, ethnicity, et cetera, et cetera.

         25                 I'm going to ask you questions
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          2  separate and apart from that, but it's a reality

          3  that society need to deal with, and it's when

          4  somebody endanger the safety of somebody else.

          5                 What is your take on that, and how do

          6  you propose to deal with that reality?

          7                 MR. GRESHAM: First of all, to go back

          8  to, perhaps as an illustration, the case of Andrew

          9  Goldstein. The way most people understand what

         10  happened with him is that he was a guy who refused

         11  his treatment and got very ill and killed an

         12  innocent woman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I'm having

         14  difficulty hearing you, because the tone is very

         15  low.

         16                 MR. GRESHAM: Okay.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Remember I'm deaf

         18  in one are and it's the low tones the one that I

         19  don't pick up much.

         20                 MR. GRESHAM: All right, I'll try to

         21  do better.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you. Thank

         23  you.

         24                 MR. GRESHAM: I'm blind in more than

         25  one eye, but I can relate.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: We do a great

          3  couple.

          4                 MR. GRESHAM: You can't sit on my

          5  right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay.

          7                 MR. GRESHAM: The case of Andrew

          8  Goldstein is much in everybody's mind in the

          9  discussion of this law, and I want to just comment

         10  on that.

         11                 He's generally thought of as a guy

         12  who was unwilling to take treatment, unwilling to

         13  take his medication, his schizophrenia became severe

         14  and he killed an innocent person. That's the way

         15  it's usually understood.

         16                 The Times Magazine, a reporter for

         17  the Times Magazine got a hold of his medical records

         18  through some never disclosed means, and analyzed

         19  what had happened with him, and he was over and over

         20  again seeking treatment in various ways.

         21                 He had been in a residential place

         22  where he had been stable for a number of years. Had

         23  a lot of supervision. It was one of the places on

         24  the grounds in one of the State hospitals. He had

         25  been removed from that, it's expensive. He kept
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          2  trying to get back in and he couldn't.

          3                 He was repeatedly hospitalized a

          4  number of times at his own request, and when he got

          5  out he was repeatedly on a long waiting list for

          6  case management, and the last time he got out before

          7  he killed Kendra Webdale, he was on I think a three-

          8  our four-month waiting list for case manager. But

          9  because there wasn't any case manager, off he went,

         10  back to the basement apartment where he lived, with

         11  an appointment slip to a clinic, and the clinic

         12  closed his case when he didn't show up.

         13                 In recognition of some of those

         14  facts, when Kendra's Law was passed, there was more

         15  money made available for case management and

         16  housing.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Still that doesn't

         18  answer my question.

         19                 MR. GRESHAM: Okay.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: My question, we

         21  can have a state-of-the-art system to provide all

         22  the care that we need to provide for every single

         23  person out there who need that care.

         24                 The question is not about that. The

         25  question is, we know that in society we have
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          2  situations in which this kind of incidents occur,

          3  and what I'm asking both of you is to tell me what

          4  do you propose to do with an individual who is in a

          5  situation out there who is homicidal.

          6                 MR. GRESHAM: You commit them. That's

          7  what we have the law to do.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then talk to me

          9  about that.

         10                 Speak to me if it's a way to deal

         11  with that without the Kendra's Law. And if the

         12  Kendra's Law is in there, because the Kendra's Law

         13  provides something that doesn't exist in any way,

         14  shape or form, for us to protect society. That's my

         15  question.

         16                 MR. GRESHAM: Okay. Well, the present

         17  law, the law for many, many years is if somebody is

         18  dangerous, either to themself or to somebody else,

         19  they can be committed. But that's not who Kendra's

         20  Law applies to. Kendra's Law applies to people who

         21  are not presently regarded as dangerous to

         22  themselves or others, or they would be in the

         23  hospital, not under Kendra's Law. That's point one.

         24                 Point two. To the extent that the

         25  State's research shows any benefit in reduction of
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          2  violent behavior from Kendra's Law, we cannot tell

          3  that it comes from compulsion. And everything

          4  suggests that it comes from access to services, and

          5  I think that is the key.

          6                 And point three, I've already said

          7  it, but let's just keep this in perspective, the

          8  State's own data, it's buried in the report but it's

          9  there, the State's own data is that only 15 percent

         10  have any history prior to their order of hurting

         11  anybody in any way. It doesn't tell us how. It could

         12  be any degree of hurting. But only 15 percent, which

         13  means 85 percent don't. So, to a large extent,

         14  that's not even what we're talking about here.

         15                 I understand your question goes to

         16  the smaller number, but my answer is, the law has

         17  for many, many years, much longer than any of us has

         18  been alive, allowed people who are dangerous to

         19  themselves or others, to be confined in a hospital

         20  and treated as long as that remains the case.

         21                 DR. BERG: I want to make a couple of

         22  comments in trying to answer your question, but I

         23  want to put it in perspective.

         24                 I was the Commissioner of Public

         25  Health and Mental Health and Mental Retardation and

                                                            32

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  Alcohol and Substance Abuse in Columbia County for

          3  17 years, and I left that position before Kendra's

          4  Law was implemented. Although, I stayed in touch,

          5  obviously, in numerous positions since then with

          6  those issues, I had 17 years of dealing with those

          7  kinds of people, people who had a serious mental

          8  illness, and who presented as either not willing to

          9  take part in services or were dangerous.

         10                 So, having to provide services to the

         11  kind of person you're describing did not being in

         12  1999, and although there were tragic situations,

         13  there were many, many situations where tragedies

         14  were averted by an aggressive and assertive

         15  provision of services, and that's one way of trying

         16  to help that kind of person, and I'd like to agree

         17  with something that Mr. Gresham said, if, in fact,

         18  the person is dangerous in the way you've described,

         19  Congressman Lopez (sic), then inpatient commitment

         20  is the answer. Kendra's Law is not a substitute for

         21  inpatient commitment, so if the person presents in a

         22  way that is dangerous to self or others, they and

         23  the public need protection, and both the

         24  constitutionality and the Administration of

         25  inpatient commitment has been available to the State
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          2  and is used by the State. So, I think in many

          3  respects that will answer the question at that

          4  moment in time.

          5                 Now, if what we're asked to do is to

          6  predict someone's dangerousness into the future,

          7  many will disagree with me, but we're not terribly

          8  good at making a really good prediction around that.

          9  There are many people that we consider for inpatient

         10  care and we say they should not come in and yet they

         11  commit some act after that. Shortly enough after

         12  that that we question the judgment, not that the

         13  judgment was bad, it's just that after the fact we

         14  say we must have missed something. So, we don't

         15  predict dangerousness all that well. But now we're

         16  being asked to predict dangerous in the future.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Wait a moment.

         18                 Kendra's Law is not asking to

         19  predict. The Kendra's Law, if I am understanding

         20  this correctly, is based on the accumulation of data

         21  that indicate that an individual have a history of

         22  violent behavior, a history of not following

         23  medication, a history of not wanting to keep to

         24  their treatment.

         25                 DR. BERG: I think that your last
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          2  point is one of the elements.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Which one?

          4                 DR. BERG: The one in that history of

          5  non-compliance.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And how about

          7  violent behavior?

          8                 DR. BERG: The law talks about

          9  non-compliance that leads to, and here's the

         10  question, was it the non-compliance that leads to

         11  the number of hospitalizations in the past, or a

         12  number of service interventions in a forensic unit

         13  that does not say why the admission occurred.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: But we -- just one

         15  second. We have a responsibility to protect the

         16  public, from this side of the aisle. And we have to

         17  protect the public from the side of the person who

         18  get hurt and die, to the person who engage in the

         19  behavior that could have done it based on psychotic

         20  behavior, could have done it in their absence of

         21  services, in their absence of being treated. It

         22  could have happened either way, but we had to

         23  protect the public. And my understanding is that

         24  Kendra Law was triggered because this concern, and

         25  trying to figure out a way in which we're going to
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          2  prevent that from happening.

          3                 Then if that's what we're trying to

          4  do, and that's the reason why Kendra Law came to be,

          5  what is wrong with that, with that concept?

          6                 DR. BERG: If I can just for a moment

          7  respond?

          8                 If Kendra's Law was put in place to

          9  protect the public from the kind of danger that that

         10  person presents, I think a lesson could be learned

         11  by looking at the rest of the State outside of New

         12  York, Suffolk and Nassau, how do they manage with so

         13  many fewer court orders? They must face the same

         14  issues that you face here, that we face here.

         15  People, the counties outside of New York City want

         16  to protect the public as well, yet they don't use

         17  court ordered outpatient treatment, involuntary

         18  outpatient treatment, to accomplish that protection.

         19  They use that far fewer times as a proportion than

         20  New York City does, that can't easily be explained

         21  by the differences between New York City and

         22  Upstate, these are urban areas as well that tend to

         23  use the law a lot less.

         24                 The second thing I would say we could

         25  learn from past experiences is when I was the
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          2  Commissioner, there were times that we had to order

          3  something, or at least put a lot of pressure on

          4  somebody, it was not an order but a lot of pressure,

          5  and the pressure was on the provider to provide the

          6  services to a person and the person having to go

          7  somewhere for the service.

          8                 We don't have to order someone to go

          9  to ABC outpatient program, we have to order ABC

         10  outpatient program to respond to that client and

         11  keep them and make them a priority.

         12                 New York City has done that long

         13  before Kendra's Law and we did it in Columbia

         14  County. We fund these programs and they have a

         15  responsibility to respond to the priorities we set,

         16  so if we identify people who need that level of

         17  service to protect the public, and if anyone should

         18  be ordered, the provider should be ordered. But if

         19  you want to continue contracting with us, these are

         20  the priority people that have to be served, and we

         21  expect that you will do it.

         22                 I think that what the provider says

         23  is we won't until you order the person to us, that

         24  doesn't make a lot of sense to me.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then when you said
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          2  that the question of implemented or invoking the

          3  power of the Kendra's Law go beyond the question of

          4  taking care of the individual in question who suffer

          5  from the illnesses, because if the person is not

          6  being taken care, it would trigger at some point

          7  some kind of mandatory hospitalization for that

          8  individual somehow. That's what you're saying, that

          9  the Kendra's Law then is not needed, because in one

         10  hand if it's somebody in a particular situation,

         11  like the case of Mr. Goldin, that it would be a

         12  hospitalization eventually for that person no matter

         13  what, therefore, we don't need Kendra's Law for that

         14  aspect.

         15                 MR. GRESHAM: May I answer? You sort

         16  of have a column A and a column B here under

         17  Kendra's Law. You have compulsion and you have

         18  access to services.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes.

         20                 MR. GRESHAM: And the way this is

         21  usually discussed is as though you have to take the

         22  whole menu, and that's not really true.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Uh-huh.

         24                 MR. GRESHAM: New York could, New York

         25  probably should take people who meet the criteria of
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          2  Kendra's Law and put them ahead of the line for

          3  services and make sure that they get delivered, as

          4  Mr. Berg has just said.

          5                 Let me also clarify what the criteria

          6  for Kendra's Law are. There are I think eight, but

          7  the really operational ones are that the person have

          8  not complied with recommended treatment in the past,

          9  and it led to one of two things: either a couple of

         10  hospitalizations in three years, or they did or

         11  threatened or attempted some act of violence to

         12  themselves or somebody else.

         13                 Now --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then when I asked

         15  the question before was right, if the person have a

         16  history of balance.

         17                 MR. GRESHAM: That is one criterion.

         18  But, if I could point out, the way this is actually

         19  used, the first branch of that is the dominant

         20  branch. According to OMH's numbers, buried in there

         21  but there it is, only 15 percent had any history

         22  that they can point to of hurting somebody else

         23  prior to the order, meaning that 85 percent don't.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Perhaps you said

         25  that 15 percent should have been under the court
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          2  order, and the rest not, and what we need to look at

          3  it, is not the elimination of Kendra's Law, but the

          4  implementation of Kendra's Law to be in obedience to

          5  the law on the Constitution and the rights of

          6  people. And right now what we're looking at is

          7  Kendra's Law perhaps being implemented in a way that

          8  is wrong.

          9                 MR. GRESHAM: I wouldn't disagree with

         10  that. But what I'm telling you is, even if you look

         11  at the subject we're discussing, it's only 15

         12  percent of the people. Now, within that 15 percent,

         13  what produces an improvement?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: That's not my

         15  question here.

         16                 MR. GRESHAM: Okay?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I need to make

         18  clear that I come from a perspective in which rights

         19  of individuals need to be respected at all costs.

         20  But never at the cost of endangering society,

         21  because society is more important than the

         22  individual and the collectivity. And I understand

         23  when I look at Kendra's Law, my eyes went up when I

         24  saw the numbers that don't make sense to me about

         25  racial divisions in here, the invocation of this
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          2  law. This doesn't make sense to me when I see the

          3  racial numbers. And I have no question in my mind

          4  there is something wrong with that.

          5                 But we have a disagreement in regard

          6  of the question of when somebody is benign neglect,

          7  allowed to their will whatever place they are, and

          8  many times, by the way, I found dead people in

          9  Central Park, because they were never taken in care

         10  or taken to a hospital when it was absolutely

         11  necessary. And I recommended that, by the way.

         12                 MR. GRESHAM: I don't think we have a

         13  disagreement. I'm not suggesting benign neglect.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay, I know that

         15  you are not. I'm trying to separate your position in

         16  regard of making clear that Kendra's Law was treated

         17  with the intention and the purpose, I believe, to

         18  protect the safety of the public.

         19                 If then individuals, bureaucrats,

         20  psychiatrists, psychologists or everybody who is

         21  involved in this go and misuse this piece of

         22  legislation, then we need to fix that.

         23                 MR. GRESHAM: They're using it

         24  according to its terms, I'm afraid.

         25                 Its terms are much broader than has
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          2  to do with protecting society from acts of violence.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: That's what I need

          4  to understand. If that's what is happening in here,

          5  I need to understand that part. It's not about me

          6  having a session here to dismantle a piece of

          7  legislation that was passed at the State level by

          8  all of the body there that I assume and have the

          9  faith that they were not trying to harm anybody here

         10  but to protect all of us. I'm having that faith.

         11                 Then I need to understand if what

         12  we're talking about is that this legislation is

         13  misused and that is being implemented in ways that

         14  should not be and that we should study this in order

         15  to determine why and then visit this again and

         16  decide if we want to put it permanently or not

         17  because it's a real value attached to it.

         18                 MR. GRESHAM: I agree with a great

         19  deal of what you said, and I don't think we

         20  fundamentally disagree on this at all. What I'm

         21  telling you is, the law as passed, notwithstanding

         22  how it was advertised, but the law as passed, you

         23  have to add many people who present no danger to the

         24  public. And that the stats show that the way it's

         25  implemented, the majority of people present no
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          2  danger.

          3                 Now, what do you do, I'm not

          4  suggesting neglect, believe me. That's the last

          5  thing I'm suggesting.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I didn't suggest

          7  that you said that.

          8                 MR. GRESHAM: I'm suggesting you go --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Don't go there.

         10  Don't go there. I didn't suggest that at all. And I

         11  know you, I know where you stand, I know that.

         12                 Mr. Berg.

         13                 DR. BERG: What you just described is

         14  something that I totally agree with, and I think

         15  there's the thrust of what I tried to present in my

         16  testimony and to my material.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay.

         18                 DR. BERG: I think that we have an

         19  obligation, a responsibility, to know much more

         20  about how this works than before we make something

         21  permanent.

         22                 I think to some extent five years has

         23  gone by and at best OMH has looked at the wrong

         24  question. The question isn't so much will people do

         25  better under the order than they might have done
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          2  when they were ordered, OMH shows that and I think

          3  that Mr. Gresham and I agree. We're not sure what

          4  made that happen. But more importantly the question

          5  is, could we do as well in enhancing services for

          6  the 85 percent, and focus on the 15 percent that OMH

          7  recognizes had some danger, and see what is the best

          8  way of approaching that group. Far fewer people

          9  would be ordered into treatment, far less money

         10  would be used in that way, and far more money would

         11  be used to enhance services for the 85 percent that

         12  may need that.

         13                 I think the issue is if AOT does

         14  something well, it ends up I think prioritizing

         15  services for some people.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 DR. BERG: If we can narrow down who

         19  they are, we can focus that money much, much better.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: You helped me a

         21  great deal. I understand now what you were saying.

         22                 Council Member, do you want to

         23  introduce yourself at this moment?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

         25  Madam Chair.
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          2                 Council Member Vincent Gentile, 43rd

          3  District in Brooklyn.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you.

          5                 I believe I don't have no more

          6  questions.

          7                 Do we have any questions?

          8                 And I want to make this clear. I want

          9  to make clear that I asked for this panel to be

         10  first, and I don't like to be pressured, to remove a

         11  panel from this seat.

         12                 And Dr. Sederer, I don't appreciate

         13  what you're doing. I have never, never put you in a

         14  situation that was uncomfortable, and I don't like

         15  it, because I notify very clear that this panel was

         16  going to be first.

         17                 Therefore, I finish my interest on

         18  this panel and that's the only reason I allowing

         19  them to go, but not because I am under the pressure

         20  of you standing there. I want to make that very

         21  clear and I am very upset about what you're doing.

         22                 Thank you very much, for all of you

         23  coming here today, and for your testimony.

         24                 MR. GRESHAM: Thank you.

         25                 MS. DePEDRO: Our next panel will be
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          2  Dr. Lloyd Sederer, Joyce Wale and Dr. Scott Rogge.

          3                 Will the panel please raise your

          4  right hand.

          5                 And will you swear or affirm that

          6  this testimony you will provide today will be

          7  truthful in all concerns?

          8                 (Witnesses sworn.)

          9                 MS. DePEDRO: Thank you very much. You

         10  may begin.

         11                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         12  SEDERER: Good afternoon, Chairwoman Lopez and

         13  members of the Committee. I am Dr. Lloyd Sederer,

         14  Executive Deputy Commissioner for the New York City

         15  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

         16                 The Division of Mental Hygiene, DMH,

         17  which is the successor of the prior City Department

         18  of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Alcoholism

         19  Services, is legally charged with the responsibility

         20  for the Assisted Outpatient Treatment Team in the

         21  five boroughs of New York City.

         22                 I appreciate the opportunity to

         23  testify on Assisted Outpatient Treatment, AOT or

         24  Kendra's Law.

         25                 Enacted by the New York State

                                                            46

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  Legislature in 1999, Kendra's Law provides a court

          3  ordered outpatient -- provides for court ordered

          4  outpatient services for those mentally ill

          5  individuals whose histories of non-adherence with

          6  treatment and rehabilitation have resulted in

          7  repeated hospitalizations or violent behavior.

          8                 In considering an application for

          9  AOT, the Court must find by clear and convincing

         10  evidence that the treatment proposed for the court

         11  order is the least restrictive alternative form of

         12  treatment available and feasible for the individual.

         13                 A court-ordered AOT treatment plan

         14  may contain a variety of types of outpatient

         15  services, but must necessarily include a case

         16  manager or assertive community treatment team.

         17                 While attention always exists between

         18  our citizens liberties and the State's Interest in

         19  Public Health and Safety, that can be seen in many

         20  areas of private life and governmental policy, New

         21  York State AOT joins a nationwide trend which most

         22  states have adopted, outpatient civil commitment

         23  laws.

         24                 Kendra's Law and other similar

         25  statutes nationwide, recognize the importance of
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          2  having a service system that responds to the most

          3  vulnerable, hard to serve and treatment

          4  non-adherence segment of those persons with

          5  psychiatric disabilities.

          6                 It is critical to create and sustain

          7  a responsive and accountable system of treatment and

          8  rehabilitation for those served by AOT; namely,

          9  people at high risk who may compromised personal and

         10  public safety.

         11                 Through Kendra's Law a group of

         12  people with serious psychiatric disorders has a

         13  greater chance to engage in ongoing treatment, and

         14  will more likely experience a better quality of life

         15  and enhanced family and community productivity.

         16                 AOT is supported by outcome

         17  evaluations conducted in other states with

         18  outpatient commitment statutes and by data from the

         19  State Office of Mental Health's final report on

         20  Assisted Outpatient Treatment, released in late

         21  February 2005.

         22                 For instance, the final report notes

         23  that there are reductions in the incidents of

         24  hospitalization, incarceration and homelessness for

         25  AOT enrollees.
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          2                 AOT subjects spent an average of 50

          3  days in psychiatric hospitals during the six months

          4  prior to AOT. Reductions occurred throughout

          5  enrollment, as well as during a six-month period

          6  after AOT termination, finishing with an average of

          7  13 days in hospital, a reduction of 74 percent.

          8                 When comparing a three-year period to

          9  AOT with the period in which people were prior to

         10  AOT, the period in which people were enrolled in

         11  AOT, the incidents of incarceration and homelessness

         12  was reduced by 87 and 74 percent respectively.

         13                 The report also sites evidence during

         14  AOT of significantly reduced dangerous behavior and

         15  improvements in other important aspects of personal

         16  functioning, such as managing assertiveness,

         17  handling conflict and self-management of medication.

         18                 At the inception of AOT in New York

         19  City, the Department, with the New York City Health

         20  and Hospitals Corporation established borough AOT

         21  teams at selected municipal hospitals. These teams

         22  followed the model that had been developed under the

         23  Bellevue Outpatient Civil Commitment Pilot Project.

         24                 Presently five AOT teams served the

         25  five boroughs and the City's correctional system.
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          2  Each team consists of psychiatric director, other

          3  mental health professionals, an attorney and a

          4  consumer peer.

          5                 These teams receive referrals of

          6  persons for whom AOT might be appropriate and

          7  conduct investigations that lead to a decision as to

          8  whether or not an AOT petition is appropriate.

          9                 When AOT is ordered, and that is by

         10  court order, by a Judge, the AOT team monitors and

         11  verifies the timely provision of court ordered

         12  services. This responsibility stems not only to

         13  cases brought by the team in the first instance, but

         14  cases also brought by other entities, including

         15  voluntary, HHC and OMH hospitals.

         16                 Also, through HHC's Governeur

         17  Diagnostic and Treatment Center, the Department

         18  funds a mobile team to specially train mental health

         19  professionals who facilitate involuntary

         20  transportation of AOT enrollees to emergency rooms,

         21  including New York City, Sheriff Office Deputies or

         22  Police Officers in this task.

         23                 The comprehensive provided network

         24  that serves AOT recipients and promotes their

         25  adherence with treatment can be conceptualized as
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          2  concentric layers of support for the individual.

          3                 The inner layer is the treatment

          4  providers who directly serve the person.

          5                 Second layer consists of the case

          6  manager who maintains regular contact with the AOT

          7  enrollee as well as with other providers listed in

          8  the enrollees court ordered service plan.

          9                 The third layer of the AOT provider

         10  client network consists of the AOT team itself that

         11  monitors the timely provision of court ordered

         12  services and verifies adherence by the recipient on

         13  a weekly basis. The AOT team also regularly collects

         14  data on all its recipients and forwards these data

         15  to the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

         16                 The Division of Mental Hygiene is the

         17  fourth and final layer at the City level. The

         18  Division has a full-time AOT program coordinator and

         19  a part-time psychiatrist specifically dedicated to

         20  AOT, along with a small compliment of support staff.

         21                 The Division also serves as an

         22  interface between the AOT teams and the State Office

         23  of Mental Health, and organizes the data received

         24  from the teams submitting quarterly reports to OMH.

         25                 Moreover, a strong legal team,
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          2  including the attorneys assigned to the teams, the

          3  legal offices of HHC, DOHMH and the New York City

          4  Law Department worked closely with the clinicians on

          5  the AOT teams.

          6                 This group has had a fruitful working

          7  relationship with Mental Hygiene Legal Services,

          8  which represents the predominance of the people

          9  under order, and with the Office of Court

         10  Administration, with the Council's Office at OMH and

         11  the Attorney Generals Office.

         12                 In particular, I would like to

         13  recognize the City's Law Department, which

         14  established the constitutionality of the AOT statute

         15  before the Court of Appeals.

         16                 DOHMH has developed a comprehensive

         17  Quality Management Program to review and promote

         18  performance improvement of AOT operations in the

         19  City.

         20                 This Quality Management Program

         21  includes formal AOT program audits, the tracking and

         22  analysis of system-wide continuous quality

         23  improvement data, and the convening of Special

         24  Review conferences following critical incidents like

         25  suicides and to review high risk and problem-prone
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          2  aspects of the program, including corrective action

          3  plans for improvement.

          4                 As an example, is the creation of a

          5  standardized letter sent to all service providers on

          6  each and every new AOT enrollees treatment plan,

          7  informing providers of their responsibility to the

          8  enrollee and giving them local AOT Team and case

          9  management contact information. With this letter,

         10  service providers are also sent copies of the court

         11  order and the individualized treatment plan, as well

         12  as an acknowledgment form that the provider must fax

         13  back to the local AOT team. These materials help

         14  ensure consistent delivery of service and articulate

         15  accountability in the enrollee's care and

         16  rehabilitation.

         17                 Additionally, we have developed a

         18  weekly verification procedure to help guarantee that

         19  court-ordered services are in fact being rendered in

         20  a timely fashion. As we move forward in this

         21  program, our Department hopes to additionally

         22    evaluate the program's benefits within our City so

         23  we may continue to improve the services for those

         24  mental health consumers who present with the highest

         25  behavioral risk.
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          2                 Our Department is committed to

          3  meeting the statutory mandate of personal community

          4  safety, while supporting AOT.

          5                 As evidenced by the fact that 95

          6  percent of AOT petitions in New York City are

          7  granted by the courts. The program does remain

          8  conservative in selecting eligible individuals.

          9                 In the first 12 months of the

         10  program, 312 people in New York City with high-risk

         11  mental health problems received AOT orders, in the

         12  past 12 months that number has risen to 634.

         13                 There are an average of 30 to 40

         14  initial petitions each month. As of February 28th of

         15  this year, a total of 3,063 new petitions have been

         16  granted by the court and 1,935 petitions renewed.

         17                 Finally, in collaboration with HHC,

         18  DOHMH proposes several amendments to Kendra's Law

         19  designated designed to address issues concerning the

         20  delivery of services to a person with an existing

         21  AOT order, our proposed revisions would help ensure:

         22                 1. Ongoing treatment will not be

         23  interrupted while a renewal order is pending.

         24                 2. The AOT team will be assured

         25  direct access to the medical records it needs to
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          2  perform an adequate investigation where appropriate,

          3  bringing forth a successful petition.

          4                 3. The AOT court order will be

          5  forwarded in a timely manner to the parties charged

          6  with monitoring the delivery of AOT services; and

          7                 4. In cases where an AOT enrollee

          8  moves from one county to another, material changes

          9  to existing treatment plans may be made in a

         10  similarly timely fashion, unimpeded by questions

         11  concerning judicial jurisdiction.

         12                 In sum, it's the Department's view

         13  that AOT, while not a service required by the vast

         14  majority of mental health consumers in our City, has

         15  been demonstrated to improve treatment adherence and

         16  outcomes for those who fail to adhere to mental

         17  health treatment and are at high risk to harm

         18  themselves or others.

         19                 We are very aware of the need to

         20  protect individual liberties. However, given the

         21  benefits of AOT in protecting individuals, families

         22  and our communities, it is our recommendation that

         23  AOT be refined, as exemplified by our quality

         24  management program by introducing appropriate

         25  process and procedural improvements as the program
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          2  continues to develop.

          3                 Finally, I would like to add that all

          4  efforts, all of our efforts to improve the lives and

          5  functioning of people with mental illness and their

          6  families, whether on AOT or not, are dependent on an

          7  accessible and quality system of community-based

          8  mental health services, and for some individuals

          9  access to safe and affordable housing with mental

         10  health services either on site or provided to the

         11  individual when and where needed.

         12                 We believe this is a critical message

         13  that has been advanced by Chairwoman Lopez and

         14  warrants recognition and ongoing action. Thank you.

         15                 MS. WALE: Good afternoon, Chairwoman

         16  Lopez and Committee members. My name is Joyce Wale

         17  and I am the Senior Assistant Vice President at the

         18  New York City Health and Hospitals Corporation,

         19  responsible for behavioral health.

         20                 I am here today with Dr. Scott Rogge,

         21  who serves both as the Director of Psychiatry, North

         22  Central Bronx Hospital, and the Director of the

         23  Bronx Assisted Outpatient Treatment AOT Team.

         24                 HHC is pleased to be able to testify

         25  today on its role as the operator of New York City's
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          2  AOT teams, and on its experience since AOT was

          3  established in 1999.

          4                 In addition, HHC will provide

          5  recommendations for the continuation of and changes

          6  to the AOT program.

          7                 HHC's role in the development and

          8  operation of the AOT Program. HHC is the largest

          9  public municipal hospital system in the country. HHC

         10  provides a broad array of inpatient, outpatient and

         11  rehabilitation services and serves as the backbone

         12  to the City's mental health services infrastructure.

         13                 HHC facilities generate more than

         14  18,500 psychiatric inpatient discharges and more

         15  than 9,200 detox discharges and provide more than 1

         16  million behavioral health outpatient visits a year.

         17                 HHC serves a consumer population that

         18  is most likely to be in need of AOT services. HHC is

         19  always seeking ways to enhance the delivery of

         20  mental health services to the citizens of New York

         21  City, through innovative approaches that improve

         22  consumers outcomes and community tenure. In the

         23  early 1990s, Bellevue Hospital worked with the City

         24  and the State to establish the Bellevue Outpatient

         25  Commitment Program.
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          2                 Bellevue is the pilot site for the

          3  development of AOT services model. This pilot and

          4  Bellevue Hospital's experience provides the backdrop

          5  for the development of AOT or Kendra's Law program.

          6                 In 1999, the New York State

          7  Legislature enacted Kendra's Law and regulations

          8  were subsequently established by the New York State

          9  Office of Mental Health, SOMH.

         10                 At that time, the New York City

         11  Department of Mental Hygiene asked HHC to become a

         12  Citywide provider of AOT services. The public

         13  hospital system was chosen because of its status as

         14  the largest provider of inpatient and outpatient

         15  psychiatric services in the City and its experiences

         16  with the Bellevue Pilot Project.

         17                 HHC established five AOT teams. There

         18  are two teams at Bellevue Hospital which serve

         19  Manhattan and Riker's Island, a team at Woodhull

         20  Hospital, which serves Brooklyn and Staten Island, a

         21  team at Elmhurst Hospital, which serves the Borough

         22  of Queens, and a team at North Central Bronx

         23  Hospital which serves the Bronx.

         24                 In addition, a team at Governeur

         25  Health Care Services assists the New York City
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          2  Office of the Sheriff in transporting consumers who

          3  failed to comply with their court ordered outpatient

          4  treatment for further evaluation.

          5                 Each borough-based AOT team has a

          6  multi-disciplinary team of staff, including

          7  physicians, nurses, psychologists, social workers

          8  and an attorney.

          9                 Importantly, HHC also identified the

         10  need to incorporate consumers as peer counselors as

         11  part of the multi-disciplinary AOT team. While this

         12  was met with initial resistance from the local

         13  consumer community, consumers were hired for each

         14  AOT team and have become an integral part of the way

         15  HHC provides this service.

         16                 HHC's experience as New York City's

         17  AOT service provider. HHC views AOT as one program

         18  component of an overall strategy for the provision

         19  of treatment services aimed at improving treatment

         20  compliance, and thereby reducing hospitalization

         21  rates, as well as reducing the potential for

         22  dangerous and even criminal behavior.

         23                 In playing its crucial role in

         24  designing, implementing, monitoring and coordinating

         25  the full array of services offered, AOT provides
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          2  excellent service for a small subset of consumers

          3  who meet the eligibility criteria and thus clearly

          4  require assistance in improving treatment

          5  compliance.

          6                 However, HHC does not believe that

          7  the AOT program should serve as a substitute for the

          8  expansion of a comprehensive array of community

          9  treatment and rehabilitation services for this

         10  important group of consumers. Rather the AOT program

         11  is designed to compliment and integrate these

         12  services for the benefit of consumers, their

         13  families, and their local community.

         14                 A program perspective. AOT has

         15  created a more accountable and coordinated system

         16  for AOT clients. From a programmatic perspective,

         17  AOT has been extremely successful in engineering the

         18  commitment of the community mental health system to

         19  address the complex mental health needs of consumers

         20  who are eligible for AOT services.

         21                 Prior to Kendra's Law, these patients

         22  were too often the revolving door patients, who

         23  providers typically did not want to serve.

         24                 AOT has helped the provider community

         25  to further engage and learn how to better treat and
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          2  coordinate care on behalf of this difficult

          3  population. The AOT team, community providers and

          4  the consumer work together to develop the best

          5  possible comprehensive treatment plan. If a consumer

          6  does not follow his treatment plan and violates his

          7  court order, the intensive case manager, assertive

          8  community treatment team and the AOT team work

          9  together as one team to help get the consumer back

         10  on track.

         11                 These intensive joint efforts have

         12  resulted in increased commitment to the AOT client

         13  and have fostered accountability on community

         14  agencies upon which AOT clients rely.

         15                 HHC uses consumers on its AOT teams

         16  to share their experiences of strength and hope and

         17  to assist and empower AOT consumers in their

         18  recovery.

         19                 As I stated earlier, HHC has hired

         20  peer counselors to work on each AOT team.

         21                 This is not the case with teams in

         22  the rest of the State. These peer counselors have

         23  become an extremely important part of the team

         24  providing support to AOT clients. Peer counselors

         25  are involved in a variety of tests, including
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          2  supplying information about resources, making

          3  referrals, providing entitlement education,

          4  assisting with families, doing travel training,

          5  transporting consumers, facilitating support groups

          6  and assisting ICM and at team staff in better

          7  understanding and meeting the needs of their

          8  clients.

          9                 In an article published in an HHC

         10  consumer newsletter, Mervin Matthews, an AOT peer

         11  counselor, stated: "I've seen cases of relapse and

         12  decompensation due to non-compliance. Some consumers

         13  make life harder for themselves and families. I

         14  should know. After release from AOT, some consumers

         15  go right back to using, being non-compliant with

         16  medications or not attending their programs as

         17  mandated and end up right back in the hospital.

         18                 On the other hand, I've seen some

         19  remarkable progress.

         20                 Some consumers realize there is a

         21  need for treatment and to adhere to it. Some

         22  consumers come to terms with themselves, even before

         23  signing the AOT agreement and willingly sign on to

         24  be treated. This touches me because I know treatment

         25  works."
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          2                 I've attached Mr. Matthews' article

          3  to the testimony for your review.

          4                 Referrals from non-HHC providers had

          5  steadily increased, suggesting wider community

          6  acceptance.

          7                 HHC has found the number and range of

          8  community providers making AOT referrals has

          9  steadily increased in five years since Kendra's Law

         10  was passed.

         11                 This is one indication that community

         12  awareness and acceptance of AOT teams and services

         13  has steadily grown. When the program was first

         14  established, the largest number of referrals came

         15  from HHC inpatient units. Although the majority of

         16  the referrals are still from HHC inpatient services,

         17  there has been an increase in the percentage of

         18  community provider and non-HHC hospital petitions.

         19                 The City AOT teams have seen a

         20  dramatic rise in number of community-based providers

         21  and family members making AOT referrals including

         22  community residential providers, and referrals from

         23  the shelter system.

         24                 Clinical perspective. Consumers

         25  clinical outcomes improve under AOT. From a clinical
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          2  perspective, the ongoing SOMH study of clinical

          3  outcomes of more than 3,400 AOT clients detailed in

          4  its final report to the Legislature recently

          5  published clearly demonstrates that AOT has produced

          6  positive outcomes and almost all areas assessed.

          7                 This includes improvements in access

          8  to and involvement in intensive services, medication

          9  adherence, improved community social and family

         10  functioning and reductions to hospitalization,

         11  homelessness, arrest and incarceration.

         12                 Furthermore, most of these

         13  improvements are sustained over time. The AOT

         14  clients who mandated from their mandated services,

         15  these outcomes are more than statistics. They

         16  represent real improvements and quality of life, and

         17  they are individuals who without an AOT order had

         18  poor treatment compliance and little hope of

         19  recovery.

         20                 One of these people whom I will call

         21  Dennis, not his real name, Dennis was suffering from

         22  severe depression when he was mandated to accept

         23  treatment in 2002.

         24                 Although Dennis cooperated with the

         25  AOT Team's examination and petitioning process,
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          2  Dennis said that he had to do it because his life

          3  had come to a standstill. It wasn't until he

          4  appeared before the Supreme Court Judge that the

          5  full impact of the AOT program struck him.

          6                 After the Judge ordered his

          7  treatment, Dennis was forced to face his own issues

          8  with treatment and compliance, problems that has

          9  exacerbated his isolation and depression. At first

         10  he was very belligerent about visits from the home

         11  nurse assigned to his case and was loathe to comply

         12  with his medication regime.

         13                 After several months of intensive

         14  case management and monitoring, however, he began to

         15  see real improvement in his functioning. Dennis not

         16  only came to accept of his medication, he began to

         17  look forward to the regular visits from his nurse.

         18                 Dennis now says that he never wants

         19  to go back to that place of depression, and he has

         20  started doing what he used to do so well before

         21  becoming depressed, designing and making handbags.

         22                 Recently Dennis contacted an old

         23  friend who agreed to sell his handbags in her

         24  boutique in Greenwich Village.

         25                 Not only has Dennis recovered his
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          2  emotional health, he's also on the road to financial

          3  stability.

          4                 A self-report, most AOT clients'

          5  attitudes toward AOT are positive. The North Central

          6  Bronx AOT Team conducted a study in the first six

          7  months of 2004 to determine their AOT clients'

          8  attitudes to the AOT program, after having

          9  experienced court ordered enhanced treatment

         10  services for at least six months.

         11                 The NCB study with a total sample

         12  size of 86, found that 57 percent of the clients

         13  felt AOT was helpful to them. Some individual

         14  positive responses from the NCB study include:

         15                 "AOT gives me a push."

         16                 "It helps me keep on track, and I

         17  wouldn't have stopped drinking."

         18                 "I needed something behind me to

         19  push me."

         20                 As would be expected, there were also

         21  negative comments, such as: "I don't like AOT

         22  hanging over my head."

         23                 "I'm not free."

         24                 "I'm being persecuted."

         25                 In the NCB study, 24.4 percent were
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          2  ambivalent, having both negative and positive things

          3  to say about the AOT Program, but only 18.6 percent

          4  had only negative feelings about the AOT experience.

          5  Pointedly, even most of those who initially

          6  experienced AOT as coercive, intrusive or

          7  embarrassing, later came to appreciate the structure

          8  and support AOT provided benefitted them.

          9                 Recommendations for continuation and

         10  changes to the AOT program.

         11                 Clearly, the SOMH final report shows

         12  that there are significant positive clinical

         13  outcomes for AOT recipients.

         14                 HHC believes that the positive and

         15  measurable results of this program over the last

         16  five years certainly warrants an extension of the

         17  program for a minimum of three years.

         18                 HHC also supports full funding by

         19  SOMH and an expansion of the evaluation component to

         20  include a control and experimental group in order to

         21  specifically determine the long range impact of the

         22  court oversight of the program.

         23                 Such a longitudinal study could

         24  analyze outcomes of four to five years post court

         25  order. Based on the SOMH preliminary findings, and
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          2  the results of the Bellevue pilot, HHC believes that

          3  AOT doesn't work equally well for everyone. AOT may

          4  be best for those consumers who have poor motivation

          5  and insight to comply as a result of their mental

          6  illness, rather than other factors.

          7                 The longitudinal study could also

          8  determine what kinds of clients are best served by

          9  the AOT program in order to help further refine

         10  eligibility criteria and determine optimal treatment

         11  interventions for specific kinds of clients.

         12                 HHC also recommends the longitudinal

         13  assess the impact of adopting a psychiatric

         14  rehabilitation model for AOT recovery that includes

         15  employment and educational goals and interventions

         16  in AOT treatment plans.

         17                 While the SOMH Final Report speaks

         18  for itself regarding the clinical merit of the AOT

         19  program, from a cost benefit perspective, HHC

         20  believes a return on investment analysis would be

         21  beneficial.

         22                 The study could look at the impact on

         23  the reduction of acute inpatient ER, State Psych

         24  Centers, jails and prisons. These studies should be

         25  used to determine whether the New York State
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          2  Legislature should permanently enact Kendra's Law.

          3                 HHC would also like to recommend that

          4  the Legislature require that peer counselors also be

          5  hired for all the AOT teams in the state. Our

          6  experience has shown that the peer counselors serve

          7  as role models for the AOT clients and provide many

          8  valuable services that help AOT clients succeed in

          9  their recovery.

         10                 HHC looks forward to our continued

         11  work together on the extension of the AOT program.

         12  And we all now look forward to answering any

         13  questions you may have.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you.

         15                 And the Council Member who just

         16  arrived, would you like to introduce yourself?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Council

         18  Member Stewart from Brooklyn, Central Brooklyn,

         19  which is the heart of New York City.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Good afternoon.

         21  Council Member Annabel Palma, from the Southeast

         22  Bronx.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: The first question

         24  I have is in regard of, how many is the total of the

         25  employees under this program?
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          2                 It's five things right? How many

          3  employees the five things has?

          4                 MS. WALE: You're referring, when you

          5  say the employees of this program, you're referring

          6  to --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I'm looking at the

          8  --

          9                 MS. WALE: -- Teams that HHC operates?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: No. I'm looking to

         11  the total --

         12                 MS. WALE: To the Citywide program?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: To the total

         14  program, but I want to divide it as the program is

         15  implemented.

         16                 I know that you have five teams. How

         17  many employees are in each team?

         18                 MS. WALE: There is an average of

         19  about ten employees per team.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Per team.

         21                 MS. WALE: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And from those

         23  ten, how many are consumers?

         24                 MS. WALE: Each of the teams there is

         25  at least one consumer counselor per team, in some
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          2  instances there may be more than one if the team has

          3  chosen to create a second position.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: That all of the

          5  positions are occupied currently on the teams?

          6                 MS. WALE: To the best of my

          7  knowledge. You know, I would specifically have to

          8  check, but to my knowledge we don't appear to have

          9  any vacancies on the AOT teams right now for the

         10  consumer positions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Can you please

         12  provide me with the information about how many of

         13  the positions are open?

         14                 MS. WALE: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: From the ten

         16  employees that each team have, what are the

         17  responsibilities, or the titles or the requirement

         18  for the person to be an employee?

         19                 MS. WALE: I'm actually going to defer

         20  that question to Dr. Sederer, because the actual

         21  City Department has set up this program and has

         22  determined the actual staffing balance, the mix and

         23  the roles of these employees.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Fine.

         25                 I just need to know what are the
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          2  positions.

          3                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  SEDERER: Each AOT team, and for each of these I will

          5  describe the position, has a psychiatrist director.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: One psychiatrist?

          7                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  SEDERER: One psychiatrist.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Per team?

         10                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  SEDERER: Per team.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay.

         13                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  SEDERER: Oversees the administrative management of

         15  the team and supervises any other AOT psychiatrists,

         16  oversees clinical issues that arise in the course of

         17  the development of treatment plans, conducts case

         18  conferences and reviews critical incidents.

         19                 There is a one physician, one

         20  non-physician assistant director.  This assistant

         21  director does the administrative management of the

         22  team. Manages the team staff and operations and it

         23  adheres with policies and procedures, and often

         24  maintains a caseload, as well of AOT recipients.

         25                 There can be on some teams, and I
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          2  need to look which have and which don't,

          3  additionally a staff psychiatrist. That staff

          4  psychiatrist does screening evaluations, works with

          5  hospital and community providers in developing

          6  treatment plans, brings the petition to the court,

          7  provides testimony and assesses the need for whether

          8  the person needs to have a removal, a sheriff

          9  removal.

         10                 The peer counselor. The peer

         11  counselor interacts with recipients and assists the

         12  team in providing insight into the recipient's

         13  perspective and needs.

         14                 There are also a variable number of

         15  other professional staff who may be social workers,

         16  psychologists, bachelors level personnel, who

         17  maintain caseloads, case management responsibilities

         18  oversight of the recipients, and then there are

         19  clerical staff.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then I will say

         21  that there's 15 individuals employed in each -- in

         22  the total amount of the teams, and then what are the

         23  other individuals employed in the program based on?

         24  Do you have lawyers in -- every team have a lawyer?

         25                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
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          2  SEDERER: Each team has an attorney.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Every team have a

          4  lawyer? Okay.

          5                 Every team have any secretary?

          6                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  SEDERER: Yes. Clerical secretary.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: They do.

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  SEDERER: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And every team

         12  have a nurse?

         13                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  SEDERER: I don't believe there are nurses attached

         15  to the team.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: No? Okay.

         17                 All of these individuals that I'm

         18  mentioning are part of the teams now. It's other

         19  employees in the program that have to do with the

         20  administration of the program at the level of the

         21  Department?

         22                 MS. WALE: I can speak about how the

         23  AOT teams fit within HHC's administrative structure.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay.

         25                 MS. WALE: Whereas Dr. Sederer
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          2  mentioned, each AOT team has a physician director,

          3  and that individual either reports in the HHC

          4  structure to the Director of Outpatient Services at

          5  that particular hospital, or forensic services,

          6  depending on where in fact the program sits, who

          7  then that individual will report to the Director of

          8  the Department of Psychiatry within that individual

          9  hospital, who is that Director of Psychiatry who is

         10  accountable to the medical director of that

         11  individual hospital with some also administrative

         12  responsibilities to the corporate office.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: What you're

         14  telling me is that that particular case of the teams

         15  are administrative positions that are of the

         16  hospital, but that particular program respond to

         17  them.

         18                 Those administrative positions that

         19  you're talking about are not exclusively for this

         20  particular team.

         21                 MS. WALE: That's correct.

         22                 This team has a director, and then

         23  administrative -- and that director is funded and

         24  financed specifically as part of the AOT team.

         25  However, that Department then relates up through the
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          2  Administration of the hospital with the exception,

          3  however of your attorneys. In fact, the attorneys

          4  that are assigned to the teams have a reporting

          5  responsibility to the corporate office, HHC's

          6  Central Office, Department of Legal Services.

          7                 In fact, earlier in Dr. Sederer's

          8  testimony, he talked about the collaboration between

          9  the legal departments of HHC, DOH and MH and the

         10  City Law Department, and so all the lawyers that are

         11  part of the AOT team really collaborate with each

         12  other on this program.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I hear you the

         14  collaboration. I need to understand the expenditure

         15  of money here and how much it costs to run this

         16  program, I need to separate those two things.

         17                 Collaboration is wonderful, and I am

         18  glad that that's happening, because sometimes

         19  collaboration doesn't occur.

         20                 I need to know clearly the

         21  delineation of separation in term of the monies. The

         22  lawyers that are assigned to the teams, they are

         23  under the payroll of this program?

         24                 MS. WALE: That's correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And those lawyers
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          2  who are assigned to the teams, they are part of the

          3  ten people that you mention? Or that's another

          4  person?

          5                 MS. WALE: No, that's another person.

          6  And I'd like to just clarify, without having in

          7  front of me the staffing list per facility, that was

          8  a general number.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I hear you.

         10                 MS. WALE: So the eight or ten,

         11  depending on, for example, in the Brooklyn team

         12  where they're serving Brooklyn and Staten Island,

         13  you're going to find a larger size team perhaps than

         14  in the Bronx team.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I comprehend that

         16  and I know that you're going to have modifications.

         17                 MS. WALE: Generally when I gave that

         18  number, it did not include the attorneys. That

         19  number to put the legal services together would be

         20  part of -- it wasn't separate from the rest of the

         21  team.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Can you provide me

         23  with the specifics in writing about who are the

         24  individuals? Not by name. I'm talking about the

         25  positions that are occupied on every team, what are
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          2  they? Social workers, psychiatrists, et cetera, et

          3  cetera. And including the lawyers, if that's the

          4  case for the particular team, or any other legal

          5  person that is hired; can you provide me with that,

          6  for me to have a clear view of this?

          7                 MS. WALE: Since we're under contract,

          8  I'm going to ask the Department then. Because we

          9  work with the Department in terms of the

         10  arrangements for the staffing, so I'll defer that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: That's fine, but

         12  both of you have to be responsive to this body. Not

         13  just Dr. Sederer.

         14                 MS. WALE: Yes, I agree.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay, thank you.

         16                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  SEDERER: We have that information and we will

         18  provide it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: We would like to

         20  have in writing specifically who are the individuals

         21  hired, in terms of the positions that they occupy,

         22  and which one of them are vacated right now, that

         23  they are not occupied. And how those things are

         24  functioning in terms of the vacancies that they have

         25  currently.

                                                            78

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2                 All of these employees are union

          3  employees?

          4                 MS. WALE: If the title --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: You better say

          6  yes.

          7                 MS. WALE: Yes. Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you.

          9                 MS. WALE: I mean, if there is an

         10  administrative position, that is not in the union,

         11  but most of the employees.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: No, I understand

         13  they are not in administration.

         14                 MS. WALE: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: You better say yes

         16  because we're going to have a problem if that's not

         17  the case.

         18                 MS. WALE: Not a problem.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then they are

         20  employees of HHC?

         21                 MS. WALE: That's correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay.

         23                 In regard of the organizations in

         24  your testimony, you said that more and more

         25  community-based organizations are referring
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          2  individuals. You say that in page four.

          3                 MS. WALE: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: To the team.

          5                 Now, let's talk a little bit about

          6  that.

          7                 Let's say I live right here on

          8  Broadway and I call you for a referral, that that

          9  referral is taken?

         10                 MS. WALE: If you live on Broadway --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes, I live on

         12  Broadway. I call you.

         13                 MS. WALE: You call the Manhattan

         14  team.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes.

         16                 MS. WALE: The Manhattan team will

         17  write down the information. And I'm thinking at this

         18  point, probably, since we have with us a person who

         19  runs an AOT team, I'm going to actually let, so in

         20  detail we can talk about the referral process. Dr.

         21  Rogge.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Hello, Doctor.

         23                 MS. WALE: As the Director of the

         24  Bronx Team.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I will listen.
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          2                 DR. ROGGE: Good afternoon.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Good afternoon.

          4                 DR. ROGGE: If you call from

          5  Manhattan, since I represent the Bronx AOT program,

          6  I would refer you to the Manhattan AOT program.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay, I just moved

          8  very quickly. Because it's impossible to pay the

          9  rents in here.

         10                 DR. ROGGE: Yes.

         11                 On our team, a mixture, a combination

         12  of the peer counselor actually and one of our staff

         13  members does these intakes. We get basic information

         14  to determine on a threshold level whether we feel

         15  that this is an appropriate program to be

         16  considered. In other words, whether this person

         17  that's being described would likely be AOT eligible.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then when I call

         19  you, you will respond to my call, and you will look

         20  into the question of my report that I made and I

         21  will be asked why I'm referring this person? Or what

         22   --

         23                 DR. ROGGE: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: -- I will be

         25  asked.
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          2                 DR. ROGGE: Yes. You'd be asking basic

          3  facts about who you are, and what role you're

          4  playing and how you're involved with this person and

          5  what is your concern that you're referring to this

          6  program, this patient to this program. It might

          7  involve some education of you, or some information

          8  about what the program consists of and what we can

          9  and cannot do.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay, suppose that

         11  I know everything about the program.

         12                 DR. ROGGE: Okay.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And I call you to

         14  refer here Mari DePedro, my lawyer. She's having a

         15  ball right now. And I tell you and I describe to you

         16  a situation which I understand, that this person

         17  qualify for the criterias that the program have.

         18  Once I do all that, that will trigger the team to

         19  come and look at it or not?

         20                 DR. ROGGE: Well, it depends. In fact,

         21  we will generally give feedback, if not then, if

         22  there is a case that's gray area, it would go up to

         23  a supervisory staff and to the treatment team, which

         24  meets at least twice a week to discuss, among

         25  others, intakes and inquiries like this. And we
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          2  might recommend some alternative resource for you to

          3  contact and we often make that contact. And by that

          4  an example would be a family member calls about a

          5  mentally ill individual within their family who is

          6  living at home who they've been very upset and

          7  disturbed about behavior over a long period of time,

          8  but they aren't willing to go to get any treatment,

          9  and the family members try to get them involved in

         10  treatment and they're just not willing. So, a

         11  situation like that, right?

         12                 So, there some of the criteria would

         13  be if they've never been hospitalized, or they've

         14  never engaged in serious harm or threat of harm to

         15  themselves or others, if we don't have that kind of

         16  information, they would not be fit within the AOT

         17  eligibility criteria.

         18                 The team would not stop there,

         19  though, they would discuss with that family member

         20  other resources that they could avail; for example,

         21  having a mobile crisis team come and visit the home

         22  to do a home-based evaluation of the situation,

         23  might be an example.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then why we have

         25  15 percent of the total individuals intervened under
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          2  this law to the individuals that have the criterias

          3  that we just mentioned? And if the number of

          4  individuals intervene is much bigger? Fifteen

          5  percent of the individuals, it's been said, unless

          6  that statistic is not correct, it's been said that

          7  have the criterias, the characteristics that are

          8  required for this team to come in place and take

          9  over the particular care of that person, if the case

         10  that you're presenting is accurate?

         11                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         12  SEDERER: May I?

         13                 In the case that Dr. Rogge discussed,

         14  that would not be a person for whom any AOT action

         15  would be undertaken. They would not qualify either

         16  for having been hospitalized and not adherent, or

         17  danger and not adherent, they would not qualify at

         18  all.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: But he just said

         20  something that is very important here.

         21                 He just said that they will go

         22  evaluate. It could be that the evaluation never

         23  happen by going in there, just by the information

         24  that is provided to you through the phone, and it's

         25  been told to that person you need to go to some
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          2  other place. And these are the places that you need

          3  to go.

          4                 But why then the statistics that come

          5  out by the people that have been intervened, only 15

          6  percent of them are in those categories? Why we are

          7  intervening with people who don't have those

          8  categories?

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  SEDERER: Well, the law allows for those who are

         11  non-adherent and also have been hospitalized. So,

         12  there are two ways that a person may qualify for

         13  AOT.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: All right,

         15  hospitalization is one. Not compliance mean --

         16                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  SEDERER: They must be non-compliant.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: What is

         19  non-compliant?

         20                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         21  SEDERER: It means that they don't go for their

         22  services. They don't go for counseling.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: For the

         24  appointments and things like that.

         25                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
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          2  SEDERER: They don't take their medicine, yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And then violent

          4  behavior toward themselves or other? Those are the

          5  three criterias?

          6                 Somebody over there is saying no.

          7                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  SEDERER: They may also be someone who has

          9  hospitalization. You have multiple hospitalization.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Multiple

         11  hospitalization. Violent behavior toward themself or

         12  others, not compliance. Okay, those are the

         13  criterias. First of all, multiple hospitalization is

         14  speaking somebody who is ill. That's it. It doesn't

         15  speak about anybody who have other problems, or

         16  harming others or harming themself, right?

         17                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         18  SEDERER: My counsel reminds me that violence may not

         19  be the best way to describe, because these are

         20  threats, as well as episodes of aggressive behavior.

         21  So, we may want to -- I stand corrected in terms of

         22  use of the word "violence" because it is broader.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay. Then it is

         24  not actual physical violence what triggered this. It

         25  could be verbal expression.
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          2                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          3  SEDERER: Threats.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay. Well, now

          5  I'm going to tell you this: That is infringing on

          6  the rights of people to speak, for whatever they

          7  want to say. I'm sorry. But that is very, very weird

          8  to me. Because I'm going to tell you this, you know

          9  how many times I have killed people just by me

         10  saying I'm going to kill you? Then that is very

         11  problematic for me, that just expression of somebody

         12  saying that they're going to harm somebody without

         13  proof that the actions of their words mean real

         14  action, that's problematic for me; can you explain

         15  this to me?

         16                 DR. ROGGE: If I may clarify

         17  something?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes.

         19                 DR. ROGGE: The criteria that were

         20  mentioned, what I think of are two of the threshold

         21  criteria, meaning if they don't meet those criteria,

         22  they cannot be considered for AOT. They would not be

         23  considered eligible.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: If they don't

         25  fulfill what criterias?
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          2                 DR. ROGGE: Either a pattern of

          3  non-compliance with psychiatric outpatient treatment

          4  has resulted in relapse, which has resulted in

          5  either two hospitalizations within the last 36

          6  months, or an episode of serious harm or threat of

          7  harm to themself or someone else.

          8                 Let me point out, when the team makes

          9  that evaluation with the provider, and I say that

         10  because most referrals are coming from providers,

         11  mostly from inpatient providers as you heard. There

         12  are actually nine criteria, so that if someone was

         13  reported to us who had made a threat of serious harm

         14  to themselves or others, myself, my wife, probably

         15  yourself and most other people, if that were the

         16  only criteria, you can't look at it that way. There

         17  are nine criteria. One of the criteria is that we

         18  have to feel, and make this clinical assessment that

         19  the patient would be unlikely to survive safely in

         20  the community without AOT services.

         21                 Another criteria is that they're

         22  unlikely to voluntarily agree to such service.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Does this criteria

         24  exist in writing?

         25                 DR. ROGGE: Another criteria is that
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          2  they're unlikely to benefit from AOT services.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Do they exist in

          4  writing, these criterias?

          5                 DR. ROGGE: Yes. And they are

          6  independent criteria.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: They are.

          8                 DR. ROGGE: And it has to assess the

          9  total picture to decide whether this person meets

         10  these criteria sufficient to go before a judge to

         11  try to argue on behalf --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: When a judge make

         13  a decision in regard of these criterias that are

         14  presented, the judge can make a decision based on

         15  one criteria only? Or need to have a burden of proof

         16  in regard of more than one criteria?

         17                 DR. ROGGE: The law would say the

         18  judge would have to be satisfied by clearly

         19  convincing evidence that all nine criteria are

         20  established.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then why, again,

         22  if the nine criterias are established, and the judge

         23  by the evidence is convinced of that, why 15 percent

         24  only have the criteria of harming others or

         25  themself? Why?
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          2                 If it's the nine criterias, why? This

          3  is where I have problems with this.

          4                 DR. ROGGE: Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And I need to

          6  comprehend how is that this happened? Because you

          7  just said the nine of them.

          8                 DR. ROGGE: If I may? The first

          9  response would be, if you look at the final report

         10  of the OMH, which this is based on. On that page it

         11  lists a group of harmful behaviors to themselves or

         12  others. And what they're saying that 15 percent

         13  refers to within the 90 days prior to the initiation

         14  of the AOT order, the 15 percent of those patients

         15  have a documented history, according to the case

         16  manager, of physical harm to themselves. There are

         17  many other types of harmful behaviors that occurred

         18  within that 90-day period, and we look at not just

         19  the previous 90 days, but we're looking at a pattern

         20  of behavior, basically what their lifetime behavior

         21  is, and their lifetime risk.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: But if it's

         23  lifetime behavior, Doctor, why that it's not

         24  documented? And why the number of 15 is not higher?

         25  If that's what is documented?
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          2                 DR. ROGGE: It only means, I believe,

          3  that the patients that we are considering AOT

          4  eligible and devising treatment plans for, that the

          5  legislature had the wisdom to understand, that the

          6  problem isn't just, they didn't just focus on

          7  patients who might be physically harming others as a

          8  result of this non-compliance, pattern of

          9  non-compliance with treatment and relapse, but also

         10  that someone was, for example, suicidal, or was

         11  causing major disruptions in the community.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: But the

         13  destruction in the community is created by my

         14  neighbor up there who walk and make a lot of noise.

         15  Then disruption can be many things defined by very

         16  different people, like disruption can be the person

         17  in the corner dressing the way that I don't like it.

         18  And I have seen that done to people who suffer from

         19  mental illness, and I have seen the prejudism be put

         20  in place about reporting individuals that we would

         21  like to remove from our neighborhood, utilizing this

         22  kind of criterias.

         23                 DR. ROGGE: That's a good reason why

         24  the Legislature, I believe in its wisdom, said this

         25  had to go before a judge and a judge in our rule of
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          2  law has to make a decision as to whether the person

          3  meets this critera. So that if we are, you know,

          4  would have the audacity to try and get your neighbor

          5  as AOT eligible simply because they were pounding on

          6  your ceiling, that the judge would see to that.

          7  That's why we have this system, that's a good reason

          8  why these need to be -- one good reason.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I need to

         10  understand why the numbers in New York City are more

         11  higher than any other place. It's because we like to

         12  do this? It's because we have to do this? What is it

         13  that we are militistic in this City than any other

         14  part of the State?

         15                 I need to understand why.

         16                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  SEDERER: You're asking why there are different rates

         18  of voluntary versus involuntary, Upstate versus

         19  Downstate?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: It's troubling to

         21  me. Unless we said that this City drive everybody to

         22  hospitalization, which I don't think so.

         23                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  SEDERER: Right.

         25                 Well, let me --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I think this City

          3  is wonderful.

          4                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  SEDERER: So do I.

          6                 I can't explain what goes on Upstate.

          7  For about 25 years I practiced in hospitals, I ran

          8  hospital services, I ran a hospital, the police

          9  would bring somebody into the emergency room of a

         10  hospital, and they were very ill and there was no

         11  doubt that they needed to be involuntarily admitted

         12  to the hospital. I'm not even talking about AOT. And

         13  I would go down, I would be on call, and there were

         14  two choices that a person could have at that point.

         15  They knew they were coming in for the hospital, and

         16  I could say to them, we're coming into the hospital.

         17  You can sign in as a voluntary patient, you can sign

         18  in as an involuntary patient, what would you like to

         19  do?

         20                 I think there's a similar situation

         21  at stake here, because we, in New York, we're taking

         22  this seriously. In New York City we are determining

         23  that if a judge says this, that this -- we're

         24  holding a judge to be the person who makes the

         25  determination, not saying, well, let's make some

                                                            93

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  decision beforehand.

          3                 We weigh the evidence, as Dr. Rogge

          4  was saying, case goes to court, the court makes a

          5  decision and in 95 percent of the cases the judge

          6  decides that an order is to be issued.

          7                 So, there's something different going

          8  on here. We are not making the decision. We're not

          9  giving the individual some choice that for where

         10  they may be able to be voluntary versus -- we're

         11  bringing the case to court, and the judge is saying

         12  in 95 percent of the cases you're under order.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Why the numbers

         14  speak about blacks and Latinos? Why? Why is that?

         15  That is so troubling. That is so difficult for me to

         16  swallow. And it's not because I'm Latina, by the

         17  way. It's not for that reason. I perhaps need to

         18  clarify one point here in regard to that question.

         19                 When I was in Central Park looking to

         20  help people voluntarily, without non-coersion offer,

         21  the vast majority of the people there were black or

         22  Latinas. And it was not that they chose to be

         23  homeless. Then why is it that the majority of these

         24  cases are blacks and Latino? It has something to do

         25  with the fact that the majority of the homeless
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          2  population are black and Latinos that are in that

          3  situation? Can it have something to do with that?

          4                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  SEDERER: We know there is a very high correlation, a

          6  very high match, between those people who are in the

          7  public mental health system, with that type of

          8  demographic that you describe.

          9                 And if you look at, as we did, people

         10  at the state level who are receiving public mental

         11  health services, or even more so who are receiving

         12  intensive public health mental health services, like

         13  all of us would like to see for people who are very

         14  ill, ACT Teams, intensive case management, the

         15  demographics look very much the same as one sees in

         16  AOT program. So, there is --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes, but that's a

         18  problem too. Don't give me an example of a

         19  demographic, that's bad by the way, real bad, at the

         20  same time then justify that this demographic that

         21  reflect blacks and Latinos is justified because that

         22  other demographic is the same.

         23                 Because this is like saying, when I

         24  listened to the report that was released about

         25  children born in poverty by the children -- what's
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          2  the name of them? Citizens' Committee for Children,

          3  who do an excellent job, they released this

          4  statistic and they said, if I remember correctly,

          5  that 71 percent of children born to Latino women,

          6  born in poverty in this City.

          7                 Then here I know that that's true,

          8  but that doesn't need to be that then the reflection

          9  of the lack of them being able to graduate from

         10  school should equate.

         11                 I mean these equations are not

         12  justifiable to each other.

         13                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  SEDERER: With all due respect, Madam Chairman, we

         15  are not talking about people not getting services,

         16  we are talking about people getting services. We are

         17  talking about minorities receiving services.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: People of color,

         19  Doctor. They're not a minority anymore.

         20                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         21  SEDERER: People of color.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you.

         23                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         24  SEDERER: People of color getting services in the

         25  City's municipal hospitals. I think that's a good
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          2  thing. I don't think that's a bad thing.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I'm not saying

          4  that's a bad thing. I'm not saying that.

          5                 I'm going to allow people to be

          6  expressive, it's not a problem. But we need to be

          7  calmed down. Thank you.

          8                 I am not saying that that is a bad

          9  thing. What I need to justify for my ethics, for my

         10  ethics, not the ethics of anybody else, as the Chair

         11  of this Committee, when I see that number, my spinal

         12  column went crazy, because I couldn't comprehend how

         13  can I justify that.

         14                 How could I justify that statistic?

         15  And I need to justify my own peace of mind, and once

         16  I justify it, I'm okay. But I cannot justify it, and

         17  I need to understand it. I need to comprehend why

         18  men, women of color, black and Latinos represent

         19  that number in there when that is not the equivalent

         20  in regard of the population they represent in the

         21  City.

         22                 Why? Tell me why? What is it? What

         23  make that happen?

         24                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  SEDERER: It does represent people of color in the
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          2  City's municipal hospital system. It does represent

          3  the way that if one looks at the different

          4  proportions of people of color in the State public

          5  mental health system, of those people receiving

          6  intensive outpatient and ACT (phonetic), there is

          7  consistency --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then it's poverty.

          9                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  SEDERER: There is consistency here in terms of all

         11  of these different groupings, and these are the ones

         12  in the end who are receiving services, and they are

         13  people of color.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then it's poverty.

         15  It's poverty what we're talking about? And by being

         16  poor then you will be more subject to be submitted

         17  to a court order eventually. Because poverty don't

         18  allow you to be able to get the necessary services,

         19  and poverty is what guarantee and make possible that

         20  the jail system of this day are filled up with 80

         21  something percent of men of color, and poverty is

         22  what justify the children not being graduating of

         23  color from school, dropping out, and poverty then

         24  become the explanation. It's something very sick

         25  with this. Very, very sick.
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          2                 I want to understand if the

          3  Department in the budget that is allocated for this,

          4  have positions that govern or administer this

          5  problem?

          6                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  SEDERER: We have a small unit that oversees the AOT

          8  program. That unit, as I mentioned in the testimony

          9  has an AOT coordinator, a psychiatrist, and some

         10  clerical support. It is a small unit.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: In the Department?

         12                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         13  SEDERER: In the Department.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Can we get a

         15  specific information in regard to that?

         16                 I want to know how many employees are

         17  under this program and what are the positions?

         18                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  SEDERER: Surely.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And can I get the

         21  total payroll that reflect the teams for those

         22  office?

         23                 I don't ask for specifics in regard

         24  of salaries. I'm just asking for the total payroll

         25  of the teams. If I can get that information, I will
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          2  appreciate that.

          3                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          4  SEDERER: We will supply that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Brad H and these

          6  teams have anything to do with each other?

          7                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          8  SEDERER: We do not have information, we don't have

          9  the information capacity to be able to do a match

         10  between those people under AOT and those people who

         11  are in the Brad H, identified as Brad H.

         12                 We would like better to understand

         13  that match, and mostly so that we can identify the

         14  people in this City who are at the highest need,

         15  because there I share very much with you the view

         16  that we do need to target resources to these people.

         17  They're the ones who more than anyone else need the

         18  most intensive services, need supportive and

         19  reliable housing, so that their lives can improve

         20  and the communities can improve.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then it's a

         22  possibility that you find some correlationship

         23  between Brad H., but just by accident, not because

         24  it's a correlationship (sic), or a relationship of

         25  referrals system between one and the other?
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          2                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          3  SEDERER: We would like to see if there's a

          4  correlation. Correlation, as you know, is different

          5  from what is the relation between the two. We

          6  suspect just that we're often talking about the same

          7  people, the ones who are at Rikers, the ones who are

          8  in the City's shelters, the ones who are on the

          9  streets, the ones who are in mental hospitals, and

         10  under Brad H. at times, and receiving ACT teams,

         11  that often these are the same very high-need people

         12  whose lives have just not been able to come under

         13  control.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: But right now we

         15  don't know if that's the case.

         16                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  SEDERER: We don't know.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then what is the

         19  team that go to Rikers?

         20                 MS. WALE: Operationally maybe we can

         21  talk about how that works.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes.

         23                 MS. WALE: So that Bellevue Hospital

         24  actually operates two teams. They have a team that

         25  serves generally Manhattan, and a team that serves
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          2  Rikers, and it's a referral exchange process, so

          3  that there are referrals that are made from

          4  individuals who operate the mental health services

          5  at Rikers or are part of the Brad H. Program and

          6  those individuals make referrals to the Rikers Team.

          7  Just like anybody, like your example of making a

          8  referral yourself to the program.

          9                 What doesn't exist is a data system

         10  to cross reference, if you will, individuals in a

         11  database that are part of the Brad H. class with

         12  then part of the AOT program, and so that there

         13  needs to be obtain that, you would have to have an

         14  ability to have a different type of information

         15  system that currently exists right now, but clearly

         16  there is evidence anecdotally that there is a fair

         17  amount of individuals who are part of the Brad H.

         18  Who are also in the AOT program. We just don't have

         19  the ability, as Dr. Sederer said, to give concrete

         20  data related to that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: The reason I ask

         22  that question is because isn't that cynical, Brad H.

         23  had to be brought as a lawsuit because the system

         24  refused to provide the services that the people who

         25  were put through Brad H. never received, and it's
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          2  Brad H. case who had to sue the City to make sure

          3  that Brad, the man who committed suicide, would have

          4  been taken care of by the system.

          5                 Then it is a cynical situation here

          6  when I see Kendra's Law, Brad H., Brad H. sue the

          7  City for not providing the services that they

          8  needed. He died. Then Kendra's Law, get killed by

          9  somebody who was not served in the system, and I

         10  wonder what game we're playing in here, with this

         11  lack of commitment by our country to people who have

         12  need of services and we only come to terms to

         13  provide the service by court orders, by cases in the

         14  court system, and sometimes I feel that we spend the

         15  money for mental health in the criminal system

         16  maintaining the jobs of the judges, the police

         17  officer, and everybody else, but we don't use the

         18  money to provide the services that the people need.

         19  And sometimes it's like I live in a Twilight Zone,

         20  because here I am with Brad H., and we know very

         21  clear what Brad H. was about. And we know very clear

         22  how the prison system association took the money to

         23  treat people with mental illness in that system, and

         24  stole the money basically because never treat them,

         25  and then they had to sue, die, and be in the
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          2  situation.

          3                 And I am not speaking strong to you.

          4  I happen to believe in my heart that you are with

          5  me, and I am with you. But the system is really

          6  corrupt. That's what I see here. And we don't have

          7  the answer to the way of dealing with this problem

          8  appropriately.

          9                 My last question, how do you get

         10  consumers to work in this program? I'm just curious?

         11                 MS. WALE: That's a great question.

         12  Because we're actually very proud at the work that

         13  we've been doing at HHC to get consumers to work in

         14  any of our programs, but we started with AOT. So

         15  that is where our first consumers came to work with

         16  us. We have relationships with consumer training

         17  programs, as well as specifically Howie the Harp in

         18  this City, where we serve as internship sites, and

         19  we're able to actually take and work with consumers

         20  while they're going through the training that Howie

         21  the Harp is providing, as well as individuals in our

         22  own system that have reached a point of recovery

         23  that they want to be part of helping work with

         24  others.

         25                 A couple of years ago we had a job

                                                            104

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  fair for consumers to come, to take jobs at the

          3  Corporation. We're constantly working with a lot of

          4  the consumer organizations in the City and the State

          5  to enhance our consumer workforce.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I will tell you

          7  right now that I don't have, I don't feel that the

          8  answer of the question of race is an answer. There's

          9  something very wrong with that. And I want to

         10  continue looking into this.

         11                 The other thing that I feel extremely

         12  uncomfortable about this legislation that was put in

         13  place, is that I continue not to understand what was

         14  the real purpose of this, because it was about

         15  protecting the life of innocent people and the life

         16  of people who can be endangering the life of other.

         17  That's not what this law is doing. It's something

         18  else. And for what I look at it, is providing

         19  services that are critical and needed and that are

         20  very important, and that we should not lose. But the

         21  component of legislating and take away the freedom

         22  of people because they suffer from an illness, is

         23  gross to me. That concept is gross. It's just, it's

         24  sickening to me to think that because you suffer

         25  from cancer, we can put you inside, or you suffer
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          2  from any other illnesses. Then at the same time,

          3  when you suffer from mental illness, and I

          4  understand that the behavior is at stake in there,

          5  and you have problems with that behavior, may be

          6  creating problems with us, I wonder what civilized

          7  society will proceed in this way, and which

          8  civilized society will not.

          9                 Then my finance person have a

         10  question to ask and is the last one, I believe --

         11  oh, Council Member Stewart, I'm sorry.

         12                 Council Member Brewer, can you

         13  introduce yourself?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Gale Brewer,

         15  representing the West Side of Manhattan.

         16                 And I have a question when you're

         17  done.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Oh, okay. I'm

         19  sorry.

         20                 Then Council Member Kendall Stewart.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         22  Madam Chair.

         23                 I would like to know basically,

         24  Doctor, what percentage of people of color, in the

         25  range of scheme of things that you do, the total
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          2  number of people being treated, what percentage of

          3  that is people of color that you treat overall?

          4                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  SEDERER: Let me see if I understand the question

          6  correctly, Councilman. That this has to do within

          7  New York City AOT, what do we know about the people

          8  who are under order; is that correct?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: No, there are

         10  two parts to that response. In terms of all folks

         11  that you treat, let's assume that you treat a

         12  thousand people, I want to know what percentage of

         13  that are people of color?

         14                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         15  SEDERER: I do not --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Average. Just

         17  an average. You would say a very high percentage,

         18  right?

         19                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         20  SEDERER: The only reliable information I can give

         21  you is the survey that is done by the State Office

         22  of Mental Health. We do not specifically track that.

         23  Again, we're particularly a contract agency, so that

         24  we purchase services from 365 different

         25  community-based organizations. So, there is very
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          2  great differences about what services and where --

          3  so we do not track that information for the Division

          4  of Mental Hygiene.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Dr. Stewart,

          6  that's a very difficult question to ask to Dr.

          7  Sederer. Right now I'm coming to his rescue,

          8  although I am angry with him, but I love him anyway.

          9  No, no, seriously, it's an unfair question because

         10  the subject of the meeting today is exclusively

         11  connected to the court order that is in place to put

         12  people with mental illness inside the system.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I want to

         14  also ask what percentage of the court order folks

         15  are people of color.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: It's there. Did

         17  you see that number that is in there? That's the

         18  information in regard of what you're asking, that's

         19  the number, and that's the question I've been

         20  bringing the issue of, trying to comprehend how

         21  could we have such a disparity with people of color

         22  being less with mental illness, but then they report

         23  to be the highest number with the court orders. And

         24  that is the problem here that we are looking at.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I just wanted
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          2  to establish the fact that it is true that there are

          3  higher percentage of people of color, in that total,

          4  that has been treated. And I want to compare it with

          5  the fact that when we deal with the foster care

          6  system, the same thing that is happening. And I

          7  would like to get a clear cut understanding of why

          8  is it that 92, 94 percent of the kids in foster care

          9  are kids of, you know, of color, but we, other

         10  people of color do not make up 50 percent of the

         11  total population. So, and the same thing is

         12  happening here in terms of mental health treatment,

         13  and how it's being -- I'm not saying that folks

         14  don't need treatment, and then it put into question

         15  whether some of those who are being treated as

         16  mental health is truly from the point of view of

         17  they're sick mentally or they need the services and

         18  we used this process to give them their services

         19  that they need.

         20                 And those are the questions that I

         21  still have that's bothering me, and that's the

         22  reason why I asked the question and I was trying to

         23  connect that.

         24                 So, the point is, it brings me back

         25  to the question with the foster care system, and I
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          2  can see the same relationship here, which I think

          3  someone needs to give me an answer so that I can

          4  understand and deal with it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I guess that that

          6  was in connection with the same statements that I

          7  made before about children in poverty.

          8                 Council Member Brewer.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you. I

         10  have just a really small question.

         11                 I'm dealing with a case now where the

         12  woman who is in a voluntary, not one of your HHC,

         13  and I don't know if it's AOT or not, but this is the

         14  question: The agencies involved, as far as I can

         15  see, are the courts with somebody representing the

         16  courts, the owner of the building, the social

         17  workers at the hospital, the police, certainly

         18  protective services, the family which doesn't live

         19  in the City, the neighbors, there's probably six or

         20  seven others, and me. And the issue is the housing.

         21  Because my question in all of this is just a very

         22  small issue, but I don't understand who is supposed

         23  to be in charge.

         24                 The owner wants to get this person

         25  out, and so now what's happening is the apartment
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          2  has been sealed off. And then there's a dog, so we

          3  have to deal with the dog.

          4                 The apartment has been sealed off, so

          5  the owner can't immediately renovate it and make it

          6  $2,000 a month. But in this scenario, do you run

          7  into people who are likely to lose their apartments?

          8  And if so, who handles that? I know it's a very

          9  small item, compared to the big picture, but there

         10  doesn't seem to be anybody in this case that does

         11  that. Do you ever come across that kind of

         12  situation?

         13                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  SEDERER: We regularly come across, and I'm sure

         15  people -- we regularly run into instances, in many

         16  different settings, HHC, voluntary, where you have

         17  people who for a variety of reasons, a convergence

         18  of events occurs, and whatever was enabling them to

         19  be -- to function, to hold onto an apartment, to be

         20  able to care for themselves, to use the money

         21  appropriately, tips, and suddenly they are too ill

         22  and they are at risk of becoming homeless. Just as

         23  this person as you described. That has become one of

         24  the principle areas that the Mayor and Commissioner

         25  Gibbs and the Department of Homeless Services, and
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          2  with our work and cooperating, in terms of

          3  identifying those people and preventing that when it

          4  may happen, for some people, in terms of some

          5  additional services.

          6                 Those people who are already too far

          7  beyond that and are acutely ill, our Department does

          8  serve as a connection to mobile crisis teams, so

          9  that people can go -- and the way that Dr. Rogge was

         10  describing, to reach out to somebody perhaps before

         11  it's too late. But once it's already happened, then

         12  the way that you're describing, often this, it's

         13  often too hard to try to put the pieces back again.

         14                 We're also convinced that more people

         15  who receive supportive housing, as I know you're an

         16  advocate for, will be, the more that's available,

         17  fewer people will wind up becoming so ill that they

         18  lose their housing.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I hear you. I

         20  just point out that this situation was precipitated

         21  partly, you know, lack of rent, and the owner is in

         22  a -- she lives in a luxury building, and she's one

         23  of the rent-controlled tenants left. So, you can

         24  imagine the scenario.

         25                 And what I'm saying is that, you
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          2  know, I will do my best. I'll find some way, but

          3  this owner, this is how he is getting the apartment.

          4  And what I'm saying is there isn't anybody in this

          5  scenario that I just listed, other than Gale Brewer,

          6  who can find an MFY, LSNY, senior attorney to fight,

          7  I'm just interested in keeping that apartment,

          8  because I don't want her to lose that apartment. So,

          9  I'm just saying in that whole scenario that I just

         10  described, nobody is assigned to that task.

         11                 They are interested in her

         12  well-being, to their credit, but nobody is paying

         13  attention to the landlord tenant issues. So, it's a

         14  gap.

         15                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         16  SEDERER: Nobody has taken on the responsibility for

         17  getting an MFY attorney or some other legal --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Nobody.

         19  Nobody.

         20                 I'm just pointing out, I don't know

         21  if it's ever happened before, but in our world it

         22  is, my guess, more common than we would think. And

         23  it's something to look for, because it's one more

         24  lost unit of affordable housing.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I must add that

          3  that have something to do with the budget cut that

          4  the Mayor implemented. Budget cuts that doesn't

          5  allow legal services to function adequately. That's

          6  something that he should think about it when these

          7  budget cuts come.

          8                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          9  SEDERER: We have not had any cuts from the City, in

         10  my division, this year, next year, no cuts. Zero.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: This would not

         12  be your division, though.

         13                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         14  SEDERER: There were State cuts that were, some of

         15  which did go into legal advocacy, but where we did

         16  work to support those services, where were ones

         17  where we knew that there were lawyers representing

         18  people so they could keep their housing.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I want to thank

         20  you for being here today. I want you to take a

         21  message back to Bellevue Hospital from my part.

         22                 When I get sick, I get taken to

         23  Bellevue by request, and I get taken there by

         24  request because I feel comfortable and I feel that

         25  people will take care of me adequately.
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          2                 Like seven months ago I have a

          3  problem with my blood pressure and I fainted on that

          4  street, and an ambulance pick me up and took me to

          5  one of the private hospitals. Although I told them,

          6  take me to Bellevue. And when I looked at the

          7  hospital where I was, I told them get the hell out

          8  of here with me right now and take me to Bellevue.

          9  That's where I tell you to take me, take me to

         10  Bellevue.

         11                 Then tell Carlos Perez that he

         12  continue to have my entire support and that I think

         13  that the public hospitals are working wonderful. And

         14  congratulations for being an employee.

         15                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         16  SEDERER: We will have an opportunity to do that

         17  because we are literally on our way to the Board

         18  meeting, which may have resulted in some feeling of

         19  being caught between a rock and a hard place earlier

         20  but --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Tell Bellevue that

         22  that new renovation that Lola Finkelstein put

         23  together is awesome.

         24                 EXECUTIVE DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  SEDERER: It is awesome.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you.

          3  Bye-bye.

          4                 MS. WALE: Thank you.

          5                 MS. DePEDRO: Our next panel will be

          6  Joseph Traver, Queens Mental Hygiene Legal Service,

          7  and Ronna Blau, Bronx Mental Hygiene Legal Services.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Let me make one

          9  thing clear. The public is not allowed to come

         10  closer to this desk, and the Sergeants-of-Arms have

         11  the responsibility to stop you from doing that

         12  because as you know in this house somebody got

         13  killed, a Council member, and we have to implement

         14  some rules because the world have changed. And I'm

         15  sorry but be aware of that.

         16                 If you need to say something to any

         17  one of us, just talk to the Sergeant-of-Arm and they

         18  would bring the message to us. Thank you. Yes. I'm

         19  all ears.

         20                 MS. DePEDRO: At this moment could you

         21  please raise your right hand.

         22                 Do you swear or affirm that the

         23  testimony that you're about to provide will be

         24  truthful on all concerns?

         25                 (Witnesses sworn.)
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          2                 MS. DePEDRO: Thank you. You may

          3  begin.

          4                 MR. TRAVER: Good afternoon,

          5  Chairperson Lopez and Committee members and staff. I

          6  am Joseph Traver. I am a Deputy Chief Attorney with

          7  Mental Hygiene Legal Service, 2d Department, and I

          8  supervise staff in Brooklyn, Queens and Staten

          9  Island.

         10                 As you know, the Mental Hygiene Legal

         11  Service is an auxiliary agency of the Supreme Court

         12  Appellate Division, Mental Hygiene Legal Service for

         13  the first and second judicial departments provide

         14  protective legal advocacy services, and

         15  representation of persons with mental disabilities

         16  in the five boroughs of New York City.

         17                 On behalf of the Mental Hygiene Legal

         18  Service, we welcome the opportunity to share with

         19  you some of our experiences as legal representatives

         20  of the individual subject to Kendra's Law in New

         21  York City. Although we have not conducted any formal

         22  study into the effectiveness of Kendra's Law, we

         23  believe that as counsel to the respondents in the

         24  vast majority of cases to date, we are situated to

         25  provide some perspective on the implementation and
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          2  efficacy of the program.

          3                 It's been our experience that when a

          4  comprehensive treatment plan is rationally drawn and

          5  supported by critical resources, patients have a

          6  positive experience with the program.

          7                 Not surprisingly, when critical

          8  resources, such as supportive housing are not

          9  available, or a treatment plan is drawn to match

         10  available resources, as opposed to those services

         11  actually needed, the intervention is typically less

         12  successful.

         13                 MHLS is pleased to know that there is

         14  an observable increase in case management services.

         15  We cannot say the same for supportive housing.

         16                 The effectiveness of an AOT order is

         17  driven primarily by the availability of crucial

         18  services. For example, in Kings County, the client

         19  had to ride three buses to get to a specific clinic

         20  named in the AOT order. This proved stressful to her

         21  and contributed to her failure to comply with a

         22  treatment plan.

         23                 In other instances, patients had been

         24  discharged with an AOT plan, but when they appeared

         25  for ordered services in the community, they have
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          2  been denied access, and they have been advised that

          3  they have been placed on a long waiting list.

          4                 Many patients in hospitals await

          5  discharges and placement while subject to an AOT

          6  order. Where supportive housing is a key ingredient

          7  of an ordered treatment plan and it is not

          8  available, Kendra's Law can work an unwarranted

          9  restraint on liberty.

         10                 In these instances, patients can wait

         11  months to be discharged. In one case, a patient's

         12  six-month AOT order expired before she was ever

         13  discharged from the hospital.

         14                 It is the stated policy of the Office

         15  of Mental Health that priorities for enhanced

         16  services is to be given to those in the AOT program.

         17  Regrettably, many high-need individuals who are at

         18  significant risk in the community without intensive

         19  case management, supportive housing and other

         20  enhanced services, are denied these services because

         21  they do not meet the gatekeeper criteria of Kendra's

         22  Law.

         23                 Based on our experience with Kendra's

         24  Law, as applied in the City New York, Mental Hygiene

         25  Legal Services offers the following recommendations.
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          2                 The City should have a preference for

          3  voluntary service enhancements as the least

          4  restrictive alternative for patients suitable and

          5  willing to accept a plan. Voluntary agreements are

          6  better for the patient, simpler and less expensive.

          7  Indeed, if the patient can be brought to see him or

          8  herself as being personally involuntarily invested

          9  in the program, success is more likely.

         10                 An expressed preference for a

         11  voluntary service enhancements in lieu of court

         12  orders would be keeping and consistent with the

         13  strong statutory preference for voluntary admissions

         14  under mental hygiene law Article 9. Case law has

         15  long supported this legislative directive.

         16                 Second, before submitting an AOT

         17  petition to the Court, the City's AOT team should be

         18  satisfied that the enhanced services outlined in

         19  this proposed treatment plan, are then presently

         20  available.

         21                 And finally, the definition of

         22  supervision of living arrangements in the statute

         23  should not be construed by the City AOT team to

         24  require compulsory placement in a designated

         25  residence. Some AOT clients do not need such an
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          2  invasive order.

          3                 The Mental Hygiene Legal Service

          4  appreciates the opportunity to offer its

          5  experiential observations and recommendations to the

          6  City Council. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: You are not

          8  speaking?

          9                 MS. BLAU: No, that was a joint

         10  statement.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay. I'm

         12  impressed. I was looking forward to hear your voice.

         13  Say something in the microphone. Just say your name.

         14                 MS. BLAU: My name is Ronna Blau, and

         15  I'm with the Bronx Mental Hygiene Legal Service.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And you're

         17  submitting this statement for both of you?

         18                 MR. TRAVER: Yes.

         19                 MS. BLAU: That's correct. Joint.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: It's a joint

         21  statement.

         22                 MS. BLAU: It was jointly prepared.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you. This is

         24  fascinating, because you are the lawyers who

         25  represent the clients when they are submitted --
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          2                 MS. BLAU: Yes.

          3                 MR. TRAVER: That's correct.

          4                 MS. BLAU:

          5                 We also represent them, we are with

          6  them during the eval -- examinations for AOT, which

          7  is a crucial step, because that is where the plan is

          8  being formulated.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then as the

         10  lawyers who represent the individuals who are

         11  submitted to the Court Order, do you know if these

         12  individuals are offered to accept all of the service

         13  voluntarily to begin with?

         14                 MR. TRAVER: When they're notified to

         15  come in for an examination to determine if they're

         16  going to be given AOT or not, at that juncture we

         17  often ask about the voluntary participation. We will

         18  ask our client if they want to voluntarily

         19  participate or not. And if they do --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Wait. Voluntarily

         21  participate on what? On being under the court order?

         22                 MR. TRAVER: Well, the way it works is

         23  that, a client, for instance, a client in a hospital

         24  has a treatment team.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes.
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          2                 MR. TRAVER: That treatment team will

          3  come up with a proposed treatment plan and submit

          4  that to the AOT program.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Wait a moment. I'm

          6  not understanding this. Let's just stop right there.

          7                 A person is in the hospital.

          8                 MR. TRAVER: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And the person

         10  went to the hospital not because he was put under

         11  this court order, he went to the hospital.

         12                 MR. TRAVER: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And in the

         14  hospital they are offered to be under this law or

         15  not?

         16                 MR. TRAVER: Yes. Not in every

         17  instance because not every client would meet the

         18  criteria, and not every client who would meet the

         19  criteria would be offered to be in the program.

         20                 But some clients who would meet the

         21  criteria, if the treatment team in the hospital

         22  believes that it would help them, they will make a

         23  referral to the AOT team.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: You just opened a

         25  new can of worms for me here.
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          2                 You're telling me there are

          3  individuals who are under this court order who are

          4  not in the court order because they are hospitalized

          5  based on the order, but that they were in the

          6  hospitals and the people in the hospitals determine

          7  that this will be a good candidate for the Kendra's

          8  Law application to them? That's what you're telling

          9  me?

         10                 MR. TRAVER: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then it could be

         12  that I go to the hospital, suicidal ideation,

         13  hospitalize myself, and somebody inside of the

         14  hospital decide that I am a wonderful candidate to

         15  be under the Kendra's Law regulation, and then I get

         16  referred for that and then I become a candidate?

         17                 MR. TRAVER: Well, they wouldn't

         18  automatically decide that, it would depend on the

         19  number of hospitalizations they had. They would have

         20  to try and figure out if the hospitalizations you

         21  had were connected to non-compliance, and if --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: If non-compliance

         23  happened because I didn't have the money to pay for

         24  my trip to the hospital like happened before we

         25  approved, they have MetroCard, that was impossible
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          2  to implement it until we passed the law for people

          3  with mental illness, because the Metropolitan

          4  Transportation Authority refused to implement that

          5  particular law. If it happened because a person

          6  doesn't have money to go to the clinic and to

          7  compensate it, that is taken in consideration?

          8                 MR. TRAVER: It is sometimes. I can't

          9  say it's a perfect system. And we get clients who,

         10  you know, are going to be brought to court and asked

         11  to have an order issued, and one of the things we're

         12  going to be arguing very strenuously about is the

         13  criteria. And one of the criteria is, the key

         14  criteria, is whether or not the person did not

         15  comply just because they confused to comply or had a

         16  reason for not complying, such as they didn't have

         17  money to buy their drugs or they couldn't get --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Or that they'd be

         19  compensated, you know, by stressors or whatever?

         20                 MR. TRAVER: Yes. For a host of

         21  reasons people could be non-compliant, in a way that

         22  in our opinion doesn't trigger their eligibility for

         23  Kendra's Law.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And this is

         25  happening right now. As we speak, people are put
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          2  under this situation and Kendra's Law is triggered

          3  on under circumstances like that?

          4                 MR. TRAVER: A referral to Kendra's

          5  Law can be triggered, and it can be triggered

          6  because it's not very clear information, perhaps,

          7  about what caused non-compliance.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: How many cases

          9  would you say that are like that?

         10                 MR. TRAVER: I simply don't know,

         11  Madam Chair. I don't know.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Is there not a way

         13  to find out this information, to document this

         14  information, that the State Department of the City

         15  keep information that will let us to know this?

         16                 MR. TRAVER: I'm not aware of any

         17  study or any practical way to track that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: You cannot

         19  distinguish how many people were brought by the

         20  trigger of the request of Kendra's Law to the

         21  hospital, for example. You cannot distinguish that

         22  from the person who is in the hospital and then the

         23  Kendra's Law is triggered?

         24                 MS. BLAU: Well, we know it in an

         25  individual case, but we don't have statistics.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: You know in

          3  individual cases?

          4                 MS. BLAU: In each case, believe me,

          5  we review each case that we handle and we know how

          6  that person came.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: May I ask you if

          8  it's possible, I don't want to know private

          9  information and I understand confidentiality, that

         10  your agency can put information together in regard

         11  of how many cases of the one that you see are

         12  individuals who went to the hospital, and from being

         13  in the hospital it's triggered that they were put

         14  under the request of Kendra's Law, and how many of

         15  them were not? Just that information, can it be

         16  possible to put that information together or not?

         17                 MS. BLAU: I don't believe that we

         18  track that statistically --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: No.

         20                 MS. BLAU: So I don't believe there

         21  would be a way to look back. I don't believe we do.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: This is very

         23  interesting. This has been very interesting, what

         24  you just brought to my attention now because I

         25  thought that the Kendra's Law was triggered in
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          2  another way. I didn't know it was a person going to

          3  the hospital voluntarily, and being put in this

          4  situation. And then when they call for a choice, if

          5  we can call that a choice, they are told you can

          6  accept Kendra's Law services by being a part of this

          7  program and that trigger being under court order, or

          8  you don't accept that and then what happen?

          9                 MR. TRAVER: Well, if the treatment

         10  team in the hospital believe that somebody was

         11  suitable to be a candidate for Kendra's Law, they

         12  would prepare a proposed treatment plan. They would

         13  forward that to the Assisted Outpatient Treatment

         14  Plan in the particular borough. So, somebody say in

         15  Jamaica Hospital in Queens is on the unit, whether

         16  they went there voluntarily or involuntarily, and

         17  while they're on the unit they're getting ready for

         18  discharge, and the treatment team at the hospital,

         19  Jamaica Hospital, believes, for example, that they

         20  would be a good candidate for AOT, they would

         21  otherwise meet the criteria for AOT. They will

         22  forward that proposed treatment plan, which would

         23  include an intensive case manager, medication,

         24  perhaps some sort of day treatment program, they

         25  forward that to the AOT program in Queens, they
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          2  review the proposed plan and they would approve that

          3  proposed plan.

          4                 At that juncture, we would be asked

          5  to attend an examination with a client and a doctor

          6  from the hospital, and we would ask the client if

          7  they are interested in participating or not. If a

          8  client says I'm willing to try it, you know, we

          9  would encourage the AOT team and the hospital to

         10  have the client do it voluntarily, to have a

         11  voluntary participation in the program. And that

         12  could be the end of it.

         13                 Sometimes even when that's the case,

         14  the hospital and/or the AOT team don't believe that

         15  even though the client says they'll voluntarily

         16  participate, they will. They will look at a host of

         17  factors and say, well, we still think we need to go

         18  through a court order with this client.

         19                 One of the things we argue then when

         20  we get to court, is that they shouldn't have the

         21  court order, because they will voluntarily

         22  participate. One of the nine criteria that has to be

         23  shown is that a client will not voluntarily

         24  participate.

         25                 So, we always try to convince the
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          2  judge or the AOT team and the doctors that the

          3  client will voluntarily participate.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Do you know if the

          5  cases, the total cases in the numbers that we have

          6  been given, that were denied the court order,

          7  represent the majority of the cases that you

          8  mentioned about?

          9                 Is the total amount that is referred,

         10  according to the numbers we have, can somebody give

         11  me that number, 3,000 something? Only 1,000 -- just

         12  give me one minute.

         13                 The New York City number have a total

         14  of 3,078. No, but this have the court orders. I want

         15  to know the cases referred and granted.

         16                 Oh, 5,266 is referred, and granted is

         17  3,078. Do you know if from those 2,000 and change,

         18  those are some of the cases that you're talking

         19  about? Do you know that if the 3,000 and change

         20  include those cases that you're talking about that

         21  were voluntarily?

         22                 MR. BLAU: No. I believe the 3,000 are

         23  the ones for whom the AOT team decided to apply for

         24  a court order, the 2,000, some of them may have been

         25  found to not meet the criteria, and some of them may

                                                            130

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  voluntarily get the services, and may not. We don't

          3  have figures on that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then I am -- the

          5  investigations are 5,266, then 1,035 are the ones

          6  who have the enhanced services.

          7                 MR. TRAVER: Yes. It's my

          8  understanding that would be voluntary.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: That's voluntary,

         10  but they're still under court order?

         11                 MR. TRAVER: No.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: No. They don't

         13  have that.

         14                 MR. TRAVER: They sign something in

         15  the nature of a contract, or an agreement that they

         16  will voluntarily participate.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And the contract

         18  is a shotgun wedding, or really a choice that you

         19  have to accept the services?

         20                 MR. TRAVER: They accept the services

         21  and voluntarily participate if it's going to help

         22  them. And we try to work with them and go through

         23  the plan with them to see if they have a problem

         24  with any particular plan that they might not want to

         25  voluntarily agree to. We try to adjust it at that

                                                            131

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  stage if we can.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay, this is very

          4  helpful.

          5                 Who pays your bill?

          6                 MS. BLAU: We're paid out of the

          7  judiciary budget.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I don't hear you.

          9                 MS. BLAU: I'm sorry. We're paid out

         10  of the State Judiciary Budget.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: In other words,

         12  it's not a particular allocation to you, to defend

         13  the individuals who are submitted to this from the

         14  Kendra's Law?

         15                 MS. BLAU: No, we're full time. We're

         16  full-time non-judicial court employees.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Exactly. What I'm

         18  trying to distinguish here, is that your time is

         19  taking away from what originally your organization

         20  was funded to do in the court system, to be

         21  representing this particular population that is

         22  triggered by Kendra's Law, but no money is allocated

         23  for you, the people who defend individuals who are

         24  submitted to this under Kendra's Law, right?

         25                 MS. BLAU: Well, our duties have been
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          2  expanded through the years, since Mental Hygiene

          3  Legal Service was started, and this is one of our

          4  responsibilities to represent them.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I hear you but

          6  what I'm trying to understand, if it was a special

          7  allocation of money, may, for you to be able to

          8  attend these particular cases under the Kendra's

          9  Law, that that ever was done?

         10                 MS. BLAU: I don't know. I direct your

         11  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: You don't know.

         13  Can you get back to me on that?

         14                 I want to understand if the $32

         15  million that is utilized on this include dollars

         16  allocated to you particularly, to represent the

         17  other side, you know, the individual who is arguing

         18  that he doesn't need this.

         19                 MR. TRAVER: I don't have a specific

         20  answer to that. I can just give you some

         21  perspective. We are an agency of the Appellate

         22  Division, so our agency is paid through the New York

         23  State Judiciary Budget, through, in my case the 2d

         24  Department, and Ms. Blau's case through the 1st

         25  Department. So, Mental Hygiene Legal Service is
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          2  assigned to represent anybody in a psychiatric

          3  hospital or a mental retardation facility.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I hear you. But

          5  this is very particular. You see, this is a very

          6  particular law, and very particular action that the

          7  State took. Then I want to understand if they put a

          8  particular amount of money to make your agency

          9  function adequately, because I believe that to begin

         10  with you have plenty of work to do before. Then if

         11  you have plenty of work to do before, I want to know

         12  if the people who are being put under this

         13  particular regulation are adequately now represented

         14  by the onerous proposal that is referred to them

         15  when this is triggered. And with that I am not

         16  saying that it's good or bad, I am only saying, you

         17  just cannot come and say I'm going to do this now to

         18  you, and I don't put that resources necessary to

         19  defend the person. It's only the resources necessary

         20  to make sure that you go in.

         21                 Again, it raise another question for

         22  me of the fairness and the justification for this

         23  particular action.

         24                 Do you have any comment in regard of

         25  people of color being disproportionately represented
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          2  on this case law, of people who gave the order?

          3                 MS. BLAU: We definitely don't have

          4  any statistics or figures on that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: No?

          6                 MR. TRAVER: We haven't done studies,

          7  you know.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: None?

          9                 MR. TRAVER: -- Like Mr. Gresham has

         10  done.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then you cannot

         12  help me to relieve my anxiety and my pain.

         13                 MR. TRAVER: I wish I could.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you. Then I

         15  will continue to look for the explanation.

         16                 You are find to be here tonight, and

         17  I thank you. I imagine that maybe the Council

         18  members --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I have a

         20  simple request, and that is, I would like to know,

         21  in a short order, as to the different ways one can

         22  access the services, whether it's, you know, we've

         23  been talking about, oh, they can be from a court

         24  order, and we talk about whether it's from Rikers

         25  Island or whether its from the hospital or whether
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          2  it is voluntary; I wanted you to really touch on

          3  that, to tell me how folks can really access this

          4  service without being pressured, because you may

          5  have someone in the district that might be mentally

          6  challenged, and they need some help, they need some

          7  service, and we want to find, without being taken

          8  before a judge and saying it's court ordered, and

          9  because they might be more fearful of the judge

         10  itself, and don't want to get that, even though they

         11  wanted treatment and they would be willing to do it,

         12  but they fear the judge more than anything else. And

         13  it's not everyone that will be going to Rikers

         14  Island to say that you're mandatory going to get

         15  that. Or not everyone will wait until they're in a

         16  hospital bed two or three times from some sort of

         17  episode. So, I want you to at least touch base on

         18  that and give some sort of --

         19                 MS. BLAU: Well, the main way that we

         20  see people getting these services is that they are

         21  in hospitals being discharged, or they're in Rikers

         22  being at a point where their time is served;

         23  however, there may be broader ways to access these

         24  services.

         25                 I don't really see people coming in
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          2  other ways.

          3                 MR. TRAVER: Under Mental Hygiene Law,

          4  Section 2915, everybody who is in a hospital is

          5  entitled to discharge planning. So, certainly

          6  somebody who went into a hospital voluntarily, could

          7  voluntarily work with their social worker to deal

          8  with their discharge needs, and they should have a

          9  discharge plan under the mental hygiene law.

         10                 Outside of a hospital, if you're not

         11  in a hospital and you're not brought to a hospital

         12  because your conduct is causing a problem, you know,

         13  I'm not sure that maybe community health resources,

         14  that people could voluntarily access.

         15                 A Court would only be implicated if

         16  somebody is in a hospital, and the hospital wants to

         17  keep them against their will, or wants to treat them

         18  over their objection, or wants to impose, for

         19  instance, Kendra's Law on them, and they don't want

         20  it. Otherwise a court would not be implicated in

         21  most people's course of hospitalization.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 MS. TRAVER: Thank you, Madam.

         25                 MS. DePEDRO: Our next panel will
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          2  consist of D.J. Jaffe, New York Treatment Advocacy

          3  Coalition; J. Snook, Treatment Advocacy Coalition

          4  from Arlington, Virginia; Jay David Seay, NAMI New

          5  York State. Is Pati Sacher still here? Okay.

          6                 MR. JAFFE: Thank you for conducting

          7  these hearings. I'm D.J. Jaffe, I'm with the

          8  Treatment --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I'm sorry. You

         10  have to wait for a minute.

         11                 MS. DePEDRO: No, no, no. I called

         12  everybody up. I called all four up, New York

         13  Treatment Advocacy Coalition and NAMI New York

         14  State.

         15                 At this moment, will the panel please

         16  raise your right hand?

         17                 Will you swear or affirm that the

         18  testimony you're about to provide will be truthful

         19  in all concerns?

         20                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         21                 MS. DePEDRO: You may begin.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And I believe that

         23  you and I know each other from another life. If I am

         24  not mistaken.

         25                 MR. JAFFE: Yes. I visited Project
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          2  Reachout twice. Once I brought Dr. Philatore there

          3  to see what an exemplary program looked like. And

          4  once I went out with you to Central Park to feed

          5  people and try to engage them in services.

          6                 So, I'm with the New York Treatment

          7  Advocacy Coalition. Many others, and I think it's

          8  fair to say, credit us with coming up with this

          9  idea, and I wrote the policy for the National

         10  Alliance for the Mentally Ill and the State Alliance

         11  for the Mentally Ill on Involuntary Treatment, the

         12  Co-Founder of the Treatment Advocacy Center when I

         13  realized, as you did earlier, that treatments

         14  regarding the mentally ill are being made by courts,

         15  and that nobody was doing any advocacy pro consumer

         16  in the court system.

         17                 I want to, before I go to my

         18  testimony, and John Snook is our Counsel, so can

         19  answer detailed questions that you have on this, but

         20  I do want to address your four concerns, because I'd

         21  like you to be at ease when you hear my testimony.

         22                 You asked the question about why is a

         23  disproportionate number of people of color in this

         24  program; the answer is so simple. It's because what

         25  Kendra's Law does, what the real effect of Kendra's
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          2  Law, is not to commit the individual to the system,

          3  it's to commit the system to the individuals,

          4  providers no longer have the option of refusing to

          5  treat people of color, they are under a court order

          6  to treat people of color.

          7                 And if you go to any of what are

          8  called the better programs, you will find the

          9  opposite, in fact that people of color are under

         10  represented.

         11                 So, this is a giant step forward.

         12                 You're concerned about civil

         13  liberties. Being imprisoned by psychosis is not an

         14  exercise of civil liberties. It is the inability to

         15  exercise civil liberties. When our founding

         16  documents begin, we, the people, being of sound

         17  mind, John Stewart Mills, the foremost writer on

         18  liberty said you're not talking about people who

         19  have a deficit of mental capabilities; for instance,

         20  Alzheimer's would be another one, this frees people

         21  from the bastille (phonetic) of their psychosis, so

         22  they can engage in a meaningful exercise of free

         23  will.

         24                 Your other statement was why do only

         25  15 percent of the people have a history of past
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          2  violence makes you concerned?

          3                 Well, I'm surprised because some of

          4  the counselors, and we have a book here and it

          5  really explains it quite simply what the criteria

          6  area, for Mr. Stewart it tells who can make the

          7  referrals, but what they missed was 960.6, and what

          8  that requirement is, is that they have to have a --

          9  oh, I know what it is, I don't have my glasses -- is

         10  that not only do they have to have a past period of

         11  hospitalization or violence, but in view of their

         12  history, they have to be determined by the court to

         13  be a substantial risk of harm to themselves or

         14  others.

         15                 So, you understand, there's a past

         16  history and a future history. They have to by a

         17  court, after having attorneys, meet both criteria,

         18  not just one or the other.

         19                 So, I hope, I pray, and I don't pray

         20  often, that we're not going back to a day where

         21  we're saying that the law should be that we can only

         22  help people after they kill or stab someone, or kill

         23  or stab themselves, what this law does is it allows

         24  protection of people before they deteriorate to

         25  violence rather than require them to become violent
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          2  in order to access the system.

          3                 And then, sorry I'm bad at names --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Council Member

          5  Kendall Stewart.

          6                 MR. JAFFE: Council Member Kendall

          7  Stewart, everyone --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: He's a doctor

          9  also.

         10                 MR. JAFFE: Everyone in the program is

         11  under court order, what was a little bit confusing

         12  is who can refer for the court order. And hospitals,

         13  programs, families, can refer for the court order.

         14                 Councilwoman Lopez, your example of

         15  somebody who went to the hospital voluntarily would

         16  not be eligible for this program, because one of the

         17  criteria is there it would be unlikely to

         18  voluntarily participate in treatment.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: But you hear the

         20  testimony of the lawyers.

         21                 MR. JAFFE: It's wrong. And I am

         22  telling you that now what they are doing, the same

         23  lawyers in the past, I'm talking to your first

         24  panel, who opposed this in the past, are now coming

         25  up with, and now they proved it works, are now
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          2  coming up with other reasons. They forgot to tell

          3  you about all the criteria, and that's what they

          4  did. They left that criteria out of their testimony.

          5  It's in here, it's in the statute.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then they are

          7  abusing the law then.

          8                 MR. JAFFE: Who is abusing it?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: The ones who refer

         10  people to this without having that criteria in

         11  place.

         12                 MR. JAFFE: You'll have to ask them

         13  that.

         14                 I want to talk again briefly about

         15  the resolution, which I got this morning, and I'll

         16  tell you about my own disability. My own disability

         17  is when someone asks for my opinion, I assume they

         18  want it, so I'm about to show you my disability.

         19                 This resolution I read this morning,

         20  in my opinion, is the most ridiculous thing I've

         21  ever read related to this law.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I appreciate that

         23  statement.

         24                 MR. JAFFE: We have a law that's

         25  reduced homelessness 74 percent, hospitalization 77
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          2  percent, incarceration 81 percent, 58 percent of

          3  these individuals are in New York so all the money

          4  for the program or half the money is coming to the

          5  City and it's giving people of color primary access

          6  to care, and you guys are thinking of a resolution

          7  urging Pataki to get rid of this?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: No. It's Margarita

          9  Lopez was thinking that.

         10                 MR. JAFFE: Okay.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And I think that

         12  your position is also ridiculous.

         13                 MR. JAFFE: Okay.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Tick for tack.

         15                 MR. JAFFE: Now I'd like to go into my

         16  testimony.

         17                 I've given you my credentials. I've

         18  also submitted to you the testimony that was made

         19  last week of Mary Zadanowitz of the Treatment

         20  Advocacy Center. They are lawyers in Washington

         21  formed by family members who have mentally ill

         22  relatives, and they researched this around the

         23  country.

         24                 And they're looking to research not

         25  just in New York State, and have been valuable. She
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          2  would be here today but she's in Maine helping that

          3  legislature deal with issues, and John Stanley, who

          4  is a counsel, is up in Buffalo helping with issues.

          5                 We're in favor of making Kendra's Law

          6  permanent. There's been not five but ten years of

          7  testing in New York. There was five years under the

          8  Bellevue pilot, there was five years under the

          9  Assisted Outpatient Treatment Law. The results are

         10  conclusive. Seventy-four percent fewer homelessness,

         11  77 percent fewer psychiatric hospitalization, 83

         12  percent fewer arrests, 87 percent fewer

         13  incarceration. It's successful. Those numbers

         14  parallel what's going on nationally in every other

         15  state, and the law is based on science. And here is

         16  the kicker: Consumers approve of it. Seventy-five

         17  percent reported AOT helped them gain control of

         18  their lives, 81 percent said AOT helped them get

         19  well and stay well. Ninety percent said AOT made

         20  them a little more likely to keep medicines and

         21  appointments and take medication. I don't think

         22  you'll find those numbers in voluntary programs.

         23                 So, I saw something in there about

         24  confidentiality, that's not -- in your resolution.

         25  That's not something that's experienced by consumers
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          2  in the program.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: For your

          4  information, you're wrong about voluntary programs

          5  and community-based organizations. The statistics in

          6  regard to those numbers are exactly, exactly the

          7  opposite of what you're talking about. They are

          8  higher, much higher, when people go to those

          9  program, yes.

         10                 MR. JAFFE: Okay, fine. So, within ten

         11  percent.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: You're wrong about

         13  what you're saying in regard to that.

         14                 MR. JAFFE: I said I don't think,

         15  Ma'am, and you correct me, and I respect that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes, the same way

         17  that you disrespect me before. Because you

         18  disrespected me before, then that's the way that we

         19  are relating here right now.

         20                 MR. JAFFE: Okay.

         21                 Those who opposed Kendra's Law said

         22  that it would -- and I also enclosed for you the op

         23  ed, that was in the April 18th New York Post by Dr.

         24  Fuller Tory. We analyzed what the opposition said

         25  when Kendra's Law was enacted, and what the reality
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          2  was, "Kendra's Law would catch of tens of thousands

          3  of people each year in a mental health Dragnet. The

          4  fact, 747 individuals a year."

          5                 They said it would destroy the

          6  therapeutic relationship, that 87 percent of

          7  consumers approve of what's going on.

          8                 They said Kendra's Law would drain

          9  fiscal resources from other mental health programs.

         10  Yet, it has markedly reduced emergency services like

         11  hospitalizations, the cost of law enforcement and

         12  jail time.

         13                 This is not diverted resources, this

         14  is a money saver.

         15                 They said people would come after,

         16  police would come after people with needles. It

         17  didn't happen.

         18                 The naysayers say it didn't work;

         19  statistics show it does work.

         20                 The naysayers say that the court

         21  order didn't make a difference. They're wrong.

         22  Duke's study clearly showed when you compared

         23  high-service users and low-service users, that there

         24  is no difference in outcomes for people who would

         25  meet this criteria; i.e., the criteria of unlikely
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          2  to participate in services.

          3                 The court order -- and then their

          4  related argument, which is a real mind craze thing,

          5  they say there should be a control study. We should

          6  have people with a court order, and compare them to

          7  people without a court order. Kendra's Law is

          8  targeted to people who will not voluntarily comply

          9  with treatment. Those who take treatment without a

         10  court order are not eligible for Kendra's Law. It is

         11  comparing apples and oranges.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: You need to wrap

         13  up your testimony. There's other individuals waiting

         14  to testify.

         15                 MR. JAFFE: You gave the people who

         16  were in favor of this over an hour.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: You have to

         18  forgive me, but that's not what I'm doing here. The

         19  two panels that came in the beginning, and the third

         20  one are part of the City employees who have to

         21  provide me with some information that I need.

         22                 MR. JAFFE: The first panel.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And I'm going to

         24  tell you, I'm going to stress to you, to conduct

         25  your business in a better way in regard to me
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          2  because I am not going to tolerate disrespect.

          3                 Then and I'm telling you right now,

          4  it's a warning that I'm giving you. I beg you to

          5  understand what I'm doing in here. I am not a

          6  disrespectful person to anybody, but I do not allow

          7  people to disrespect me.

          8                 MR. JAFFE: Ma'am, I'm not

          9  disrespecting you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then please wrap

         11  up your testimony and that's the end of it.

         12                 MR. JAFFE: When this law was passed

         13  it was supported and is still supported by wide

         14  spectrum. Republicans and democrats, Bruno and

         15  Silver and consumers -- by the way, there's another

         16  myth that this grew out of the Andrew Goldstein

         17  incident.

         18                 What happened was is that the New

         19  York City and State Mental Health systems basically

         20  avoided the seriously ill. Not every program was a

         21  Project Reach Out or a Fountain House. The more

         22  likely you needed services, the less likely you were

         23  to get them. In fact, the consumertocracy (phonetic)

         24  was discriminating against those who lacked insight,

         25  and actually said we shouldn't even talk about
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          2  violence, that that was stigmatizing, and we should

          3  ignore this group, and now what's happened is this

          4  group -- so, we recognize that the mental health

          5  establishment didn't really want anything to do with

          6  it, except for Project Reach Out, with programs that

          7  dealt with the mentally ill.

          8                 So, we've formed a union with people

          9  who are concerned about public safety and all of a

         10  sudden we found there was support to help the

         11  mentally ill. But the initial impetus came from

         12  NAMI, it came from the families of the mentally ill,

         13  it did not come from those who are affected by

         14  violence.

         15                 Before Kendra's Law the system didn't

         16  differentiate from mental health, mental illness,

         17  consumers, the public interest lawyers who you've

         18  heard about here today, the providers, had all

         19  ignored the total, the mentally ill, had ignored the

         20  science before Kendra's Law of Ana Signosia, the

         21  fact that some of these individuals with this

         22  disorder in fact, they don't think the FBI planted a

         23  transmitter in his head, they know it.

         24                 I was stopped from coming up to the

         25  desk because somebody shot people in here before. I
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          2  don't know if that incident was mentally ill

          3  related, but Edward Westin, who went and shot up

          4  people in the Capitol, that was mentally-ill

          5  related.

          6                 There's numerous studies of violence,

          7  and I'm glad that hasn't come up because the

          8  evidence is clear, that certain individuals, a small

          9  subset of the one percent --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: You need to wrap

         11  up. I told you before. Please.

         12                 MR. JAFFE: You should make Kendra's

         13  Law permanent. You should sell Pataki to renew the

         14  law, and to send this money which is helping the

         15  seriously mentally ill. And I'll end on saying this

         16  is the first time in over 25 years as an advocate,

         17  I've ever come to this Committee. Because, frankly,

         18  this Committee has always been, prior to you, and I

         19  realize you have experience with the seriously

         20  mentally ill, so I thought, mistakingly maybe, it

         21  would be different, but there has been no interest

         22  in the seriously mentally ill from this Committee.

         23  This law favors the seriously mentally ill. You

         24  should support it. The money is coming to New York.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: The next time that

          3  you come to testify in this Committee, I suggest to

          4  you very strongly not to disrespect the Chair of the

          5  Committee in the form that you did.

          6                 MR. JAFFE: If I disrespected her --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I don't want you

          8  to speak anymore.

          9                 MR. JAFFE: If I disrespected her I

         10  did not mean to do it and I apologize.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I will ask the

         12  Sergeant-of-Arms to escort you out of the hearing if

         13  you keep talking.

         14                 MR. JAFFE: I apologize. I apologize.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you, sir.

         16                 Any one of you who would like to

         17  speak, it's no problem. You can choose whichever.

         18                 MR. SEAY: Thank you, Madam Chair. My

         19  name is David Seay, and I'm the Executive Director

         20  of the National Alliance for the Mentally Ill of New

         21  York State.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you, sir,

         23  for being here.

         24                 MR. SEAY: Thank you.

         25                 We are 5,000 members statewide, 58

                                                            152

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  local affiliate organizations across the state, and

          3  you will hear later today from the President of the

          4  largest affiliate located here in New York City

          5  Charlotte Fishman.

          6                 NAMI also has a national movement. We

          7  are part of a movement that has 250,000 members,

          8  1,100 affiliates across the country, and we are

          9  indeed the largest mental health advocacy

         10  organization in the country.

         11                 We are here today to support Kendra's

         12  Law and to urge that it be made permanent. We

         13  respectfully oppose your resolution.

         14                 I submitted copies of our White Paper

         15  Report we just came out with last month. I'm sorry I

         16  didn't have enough copies. I will make more copies

         17  of it available to you and the Committee.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: That's fine.

         19                 MR. SEAY: The report basically calls

         20  for the law to be made permanent, but it also makes

         21  a few recommendations on how the law could be

         22  improved. But the bottom line is the law works and

         23  it should be made permanent.

         24                 Kendra's Law works because it saves

         25  lives, it rescues people.
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          2                 It has been alleged that Kendra's Law

          3  is racist, a small group of critics of the law have

          4  resorted to the old reliable charge of racism to

          5  oppose the law. But even that does not work.

          6                 That concept is based, in my opinion,

          7  on a false premise, and that false premise is that

          8  AOT recipients are somehow victims. But they are

          9  not. They are recipients of enhanced and increased

         10  services that are made available to them under the

         11  law.

         12                 How is it then, as was said before,

         13  how is it racism, if blacks and Hispanics are given

         14  more services and not less?

         15                 If you believe that, that these

         16  people are victims, then you must also have to call,

         17  logically, for the repeal of Medicaid, because they

         18  also disproportionately serve persons of color, and

         19  it would be absurd for you or me or anyone else to

         20  call for the repeal of Medicaid for other public

         21  programs that are aimed to help people who are not

         22  wealthy.

         23                 Furthermore, the notion of AOT

         24  beneficiaries as victims, is also premised, again

         25  falsely, that their rights have been violated, and
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          2  that the law is somehow unconstitutional.

          3                 The constitutionality of Kendra's law

          4  has been litigated all the way up to and including

          5  New York's highest court, New York State Court of

          6  Appeals, and it unanimously ruled six to zero that

          7  Kendra's Law is constitutional, and its recipients

          8  are not victims.

          9                 The constitutional issues are just

         10  settled. And if you still buy into this theory, the

         11  numbers don't really support it. The New York

         12  Lawyers for the Public Interest Report was a little

         13  misleading, in that it compared the percentage of

         14  blacks and Hispanics getting AOT orders, 63 percent,

         15  to the State percentage of blacks and Hispanics.

         16                 They also knew that in the first

         17  years of Kendra's Law the vast majority of the

         18  orders came from New York City, and beyond that,

         19  most of them came from Kings and Bronx Counties. So,

         20  the comparison should be made with those areas in

         21  order to be fair.

         22                 Last time I looked at census data,

         23  54.2 percent of the population in Brooklyn are black

         24  and Hispanic, 79.6 are in the Bronx. These numbers

         25  should be compared then with the 63 percent of the
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          2  orders given to persons of color under Kendra's Law

          3  and not the 31 percent Statewide figure, to be fair.

          4                 Another comparison, as I mentioned

          5  before, is Medicaid. In New York City, according to

          6  the May 2004 New York City Community Health Survey,

          7  of the people who are publicly insured in this City,

          8  which is mostly Medicaid, 70 percent are persons of

          9  color. So, it's not surprising that 63 percent of

         10  the AOT orders were given to persons of color.

         11                 I think the racial bias criticism is

         12  wrong on all accounts.

         13                 Some people say that improved

         14  services is all that you need, and that the court

         15  orders are not necessary, our study and the white

         16  paper that we respectfully submit today shows, and

         17  we interviewed 20 families, people who are members

         18  of NAMI across the State, families who have had

         19  direct experience with loved ones who have been

         20  through the AOT process, and we also interviewed

         21  State officials, OMH officials and other people

         22  involved in the process, and our families said,

         23  virtually all of them said that without the court

         24  orders the law would not have possibly worked for

         25  their loved ones. And these are people who know what
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          2  they're talking about, and these are families that

          3  have tried everything else what the system has had

          4  to offer.

          5                 To simply give the provider more

          6  money but not have the mandate, just won't work.

          7  That's exactly where we were six years ago when

          8  Andrew Goldstein pushed Kendra Webdale under the

          9  subway train. We cannot go back to that.

         10                 Goldstein had had 199 days of

         11  impatient and emergency room psychiatric services

         12  just the two years before he killed Kendra. He

         13  needed more than just services after he was

         14  discharged back into the community. He needed the

         15  law. He needed Kendra's Law to ensure that he

         16  followed his treatment plan.

         17                 Where have the benefits been under

         18  Kendra's Law to those who have been under it? And

         19  you heard some of these statistics today already.

         20  It's reduced homelessness for those people by 74

         21  percent, reduced psychiatric rehospitalizations by

         22  77 percent, reduced arrests by 83 percent, and

         23  reduced incarcerations for those people under AOT by

         24  87 percent.

         25                 These are significantly positive
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          2  outcomes. Kendra's Law is a law New Yorkers can be

          3  proud of. It works. It benefits sick people. It

          4  protects the society and the welfare of society, the

          5  safety and welfare of the society, and it saves

          6  lives and promotes recovery in people's own homes

          7  and in their own communities. It avoids the more

          8  restrictive and draconian option that existed

          9  before, the only option that existed before, which

         10  was involuntary hospitalization, or involuntary

         11  incarceration.

         12                 The small band of critics five years

         13  ago said that Kendra's Law would destroy the

         14  therapeutic relationship between the seriously

         15  mentally ill, and the providers, yet when AOT

         16  beneficiaries were interviewed, 87 percent said they

         17  were confident in the ability of their case managers

         18  to help them, and fully 90 percent said that

         19  Kendra's Law makes them more likely to take their

         20  medications and keep their clinic appointments.

         21                 In conclusion, before Kendra's Law

         22  was enacted, the most seriously mentally ill New

         23  Yorkers were relegated to the streets, to the

         24  hospitals, to the jails and prisons, to the homeless

         25  shelters and to the cemetery.
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          2                 Kendra's Law was designed to prevent

          3  that, and it does.

          4                 Ten years of experience shows that

          5  Kendra's Law works. It should be made permanent.

          6  Thank you for your time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Will you be so

          8  kind to give us that document, or a copy of the

          9  written document?

         10                 Oh, we have one?

         11                 MR. SEAY: Yeah, I gave you a copy of

         12  our White Paper. My notes?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes.

         14                 MR. SEAY: I can make copies of my

         15  notes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: If those are your

         17  notes, that's not your testimony?

         18                 MR. SEAY: My testimony was oral, and

         19  the submission was the White Paper Report that we

         20  did last month.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay, I'm sorry. I

         22  thought that that was your testimony.

         23                 MR. SEAY: I would be glad to Xerox my

         24  notes if you can read my handwriting.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: We prefer to
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          2  collect the testimonies in writing.

          3                 MR. SEAY: We submitted our White

          4  Paper in the way of a formal statement.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: It's easy to go

          6  back to the record with the testimony in writing.

          7                 Yes, Ma'am.

          8                 MS. SACHER: Is that all right?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes, it's perfect.

         10                 MS. SACHER: All right. I do have a

         11  low-pitched voice.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: It's this problem

         13  I have with my hearing. I'm sorry.

         14                 MS. SACHER: It's my problem with my

         15  vocal chords. I had an injury.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Then, again, we do

         17  a good couple.

         18                 MS. SACHER: Yes, we do.

         19                 My name is Patti Sacher. I am here as

         20  a family member, but also, a little bit of my

         21  history, I've been a volunteer with NAMI New York

         22  City Metro for the last 11 years, 12 years. I work

         23  on the NAMI Help Line which gets about 400 calls a

         24  night from family members, consumers, professionals,

         25  and we help to direct them to resources and whatever
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          2  it is they need, we work really hard on that. Also,

          3  I facilitate two support groups for family members

          4  and teach a 12-week curriculum, psycho-education,

          5  for family members. I've been doing that for about

          6  six years.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: That's wonderful.

          8                 MS. SACHER: Thank you. Well, it's

          9  good for me. That's why I do it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: No, but it's

         11  wonderful.

         12                 MS. SACHER: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Okay.

         14                 MS. SACHER: So here's a personal

         15  history. AOT had given my daughter a real life, and

         16  new hope for the first time in 15 long and terrible

         17  years. In honor of her strength and courage, I will

         18  try to explain how.

         19                 Her illness and the lack of insight

         20  it causes resulted in horribly dangerous behaviors.

         21  Hers is an all too typical history of six forced

         22  hospitalization, always followed by non-compliance.

         23  A history of homelessness, and being raped and

         24  beaten while homeless. A history of contracting

         25  every sexually transmitted disease, except AIDS, and
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          2  that's for the needle exchange program. She had to

          3  undergo surgery for a pre-cancerous condition

          4  resulting from one of those STDs contracted on the

          5  streets of New York.

          6                 She had an accidental heroin

          7  overdose, which she required CPR to keep her alive.

          8  Even while living at home her disordered thoughts

          9  allowed her to use a combination of saliva and aloe

         10  from the houseplant to dissolve the heroin she was

         11  injecting. It caused an abscess on her arm that she

         12  hid and neglected for weeks and weeks until she

         13  nearly lost her arm.

         14                 These and even more dangerous acts

         15  come from being one of the more than 40 percent of

         16  the mentally ill without insight into their illness.

         17                 It caused her to be incapable of

         18  understanding that she was putting her life at risk.

         19                 I'll just say that in our family, our

         20  financial resources allowed us to have access to all

         21  psychiatric services, and it didn't make any

         22  difference.

         23                 Please imagine the following

         24  scenario: There are two people with serious brain

         25  diseases, wandering, lost and vulnerable, helpless
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          2  in our City. One of those two people had their

          3  photos shown on TV news with their family pleading

          4  for their safe return. That person has a brain

          5  disease called Alzheimer's. The other lost person

          6  has a mental illness. No one is helping their family

          7  to find them to keep them safe. They are sought only

          8  if they commit some act of violence in which they

          9  would be arrested.

         10                 Would we as a society or the Civil

         11  Liberties Union or Lawyers for the Public Interest,

         12  argue that the individual with Alzheimer's has the

         13  right to remain on the streets unsafe? Of course

         14  not. We help those very ill people. We don't blame

         15  them. I'm sorry, we don't blame Alzheimer's victims,

         16  from the behavior they cannot control. The mentally

         17  ill deserve the same compassion. A locked

         18  psychiatric unit is often a terrible place to be. To

         19  be forced to be there must be horrible. However, a

         20  hospital is a safer place to be, a place to begin to

         21  get help. It is not a punishment.

         22                 Prison is punishment, and too many

         23  mentally ill have ended up there when they should

         24  have been hospitalized.

         25                 In lieu of insight, it's fine with

                                                            163

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  families if our daughters, sons, spouses, sisters,

          3  mothers and fathers stay in treatment simply to stay

          4  out of the hospital.

          5                 My daughter has been under an order

          6  of AOT since her six-week hospitalization in

          7  Bellevue last summer. And I agree with you,

          8  Councilwoman, about what a wonderful hospital

          9  Bellevue is.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: We agree on that

         11  too.

         12                 MS. SACHER: She stopped her meds once

         13  and was convinced, that was in December, and was

         14  convinced to restart her meds by her caring and

         15  wonderful case manager. Today she has a part-time

         16  job that she loves. She is attending her day program

         17  and taking her medication voluntarily for the first

         18  time in 15 years. She gains insight every day and is

         19  thankful for her new life.

         20                 I asked her if she would give me

         21  permission to give this testimony and she said

         22  absolutely. It is outrageous that anyone in New York

         23  State would deny my daughter treatment simply

         24  because she is too ill to understand that she needs

         25  it to save her life. I changed the wording on this a
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          2  little bit, so, it's different from the one that you

          3  have.

          4                 It is outrageous that those with

          5  little understanding of lack of insight that mental

          6  illness causes, and not a doctor, should make the

          7  decision about which behaviors are dangerous enough

          8  to force her to get treatment. What I mean is, the

          9  law sort of says that she has to have cut her wrist

         10  or overdosed on medication.  And I know that because

         11  we tried to get her hospitalized multiple times and

         12  she did not fit the criteria for forced

         13  hospitalization.

         14                 As someone who answers calls on the

         15  NAMI hot line in New York City helpline and teaches

         16  a family education curriculum, I speak here today

         17  for hundreds of family, desperate family members,

         18  desperate to get help for their loved ones.

         19                 NAMI New York City gets more than,

         20  and I said that, 400 calls a month. We cannot lose

         21  the first and only tools we have to keep those

         22  without insight to stay safe and steadily move

         23  toward recovery.

         24                 Thank you very much. And I'll answer

         25  any questions.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 Sir.

          5                 MR. SNOOK: I'm John Snook from the

          6  Treatment Advocacy Center, and I just flew up from

          7  Washington to answer any questions.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I don't hear you.

          9                 MR. SNOOK: Oh, I'm sorry.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Pull the

         11  microphone to you.

         12                 MR. SNOOK: John Snook. I'm an

         13  attorney at the Treatment Advocacy Center, and I

         14  actually just flew up today to help answer any

         15  questions you might have.

         16                 But as an aside, to build on what she

         17  was saying, I answer a lot of the help calls that we

         18  get, and one of the best, because our organization

         19  gets help calls every day from families who get on

         20  our website and see this sort of thing, and some of

         21  the best help calls are the calls from New York

         22  because there's options here, and you can say there

         23  is an AOT program and you can be involved in that

         24  and you can get help.

         25                 In States that don't have effective
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          2  AOT, like New York, you have to say, well, I

          3  understand he's been hospitalized 15 times, 83 times

          4  in one state, there's nothing we can do. You just

          5  have to wait for him to get sick and hope he doesn't

          6  kill anyone or hurt himself or get arrested or go to

          7  jail, and it's really, it's a wonderful program.

          8  Some of the other states that don't have as

          9  effective a program as New York's, they wish they

         10  did. It's wonderful. It really is.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Council Member

         12  Stewart, you have any questions? No.

         13                 I don't disagree with you that the

         14  services attached to this particular law are

         15  excellent and that we need those services, and we

         16  need more of those services.

         17                 The questioning here is not the

         18  services or the program attached to it or the

         19  dollars assigned to it, the question of this

         20  Committee is something else. And is about something

         21  else that is very disturbing, and it's disturbing to

         22  this Committee because this Chair who is sitting in

         23  here has been fighting with the Administration here

         24  and Upstate every time that they cut the budget for

         25  services to the mentally ill.
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          2                 As early as a month ago, they cut

          3  $3.15 million for psychosocial clubs, in which the

          4  population go to receive the services that they

          5  want, voluntarily. Nobody told them that they have

          6  to go there because I say so. They go there because

          7  they want to and it's their program.

          8                 But the State cut that money, and it

          9  cut it without no consideration whatsoever on what

         10  that means, and it's only 3.15 million. Then this

         11  Chair who is sitting in here may be not qualified

         12  perhaps for some of you, because you don't know me,

         13  want to clarify to you that I don't get offended by

         14  people making the statements. I don't get offended.

         15  I don't.

         16                 I don't get offended by people

         17  calling me politician. Because I'm very proud to be

         18  a politician. Very, very proud of that, and I know

         19  what it means. It means a struggle for power. And I

         20  struggle for power for people who are

         21  disenfranchised, and I am not ashamed of that. I'm

         22  very proud of it.

         23                 Then saying that, I want to clarify

         24  one point. Medicaid is a program that is

         25  specifically for people that are low-income and
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          2  that's the criteria. And obviously Medicaid is going

          3  to be fulfilled with people who are obviously low

          4  income. Happen to be that in some parts of the

          5  nation, the people who are very low income, low

          6  income, are people of color. And that, that is very

          7  serious problem, that we continue to wonder why, why

          8  the concentration of poverty occur on people of

          9  color. Then I want to make that clarification

         10  because the comparison that you made is not

         11  accurate. And my concern with the question of the

         12  disparity about people of color being submitted to

         13  this law, is it have nothing to do with racism. I

         14  have not used that word all day long here. You know

         15  this. Because for me that's not the issue. What I

         16  want to understand why is that people of color are

         17  disproportionately in a situation where they are put

         18  under that court order. Why? Why is that, that is

         19  that they are provided with the services prior to

         20  get there?

         21                 MS. SACHER: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And that's my

         23  point. It's not that I am saying that this order is

         24  provided or implemented racistly (sic). That's what

         25  what I'm saying. What I need to understand, and I

                                                            169

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  need the Administration to tell me, why is that

          3  people of color found themselves to be the biggest

          4  population of homelessness, the biggest population

          5  of mentally ill on the street, the biggest

          6  population in the shelter system, why? And I keep

          7  asking that question because I know that answer.

          8                 Now the question is not answered to

          9  me by the people I ask. But I know the answer. I

         10  know that it's an unfair economic system in the

         11  City, and I know that that unfair economic system

         12  has something to do with the lack of services

         13  provided to them. Provided to them.

         14                 Now, do I believe that Kendra's law

         15  is inappropriate or appropriate? I have not

         16  concluded that yet. But I do have the responsibility

         17  to look in it. I have that responsibility. And I am

         18  not telling you that I don't understand your plea

         19  and your pain. I do understand it.

         20                 I worked for 15 years of my life with

         21  the severely mentally ill on the streets, and I got

         22  arrested a couple of times for fighting with the EMS

         23  to put somebody in the hospital involuntarily.

         24                 Then I want you to understand that I

         25  am not here disrespectful of your pain.
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          2                 MS. SACHER: I know.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: In whatsoever any

          4  shape or form.

          5                 MS. SACHER: Can I say something? I

          6  did not read this to you so that I would get your

          7  pity or your compassion or whatever. That's not what

          8  it's about. Putting somebody in the hospital, and I

          9  say there are people who have had 15 and 30

         10  hospitalizations, is not -- and providing them with

         11  services, while very, very important, is not enough,

         12  because the revolving door is, you put them in the

         13  hospital, you keep them there, and one of my

         14  daughter's hospital was six weeks, this last one was

         15  six weeks, one was three months, that did not give

         16  her the opportunity to be stabilized on medication

         17  long enough to gain the insight to manage her

         18  illness.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And I agree with

         20  you on that.

         21                 MS. SACHER: And that's what AOT does,

         22  that no other program or outpatient program or

         23  housing or anything does. It has kept her on her

         24  medication long enough for her little by little by

         25  little to gain the insight, and this is not just
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          2  true -- you know, I am working at NAMI. I speak to

          3  hundreds and hundreds of people and families and

          4  consumers that understand that this insight that's

          5  needed to manage your illness and take

          6  responsibility for it, especially if you have been

          7  sick for 15, 20, 30 years, doesn't come in three

          8  months or four months or six months. It takes a very

          9  long time, and during that time somebody has to be

         10  looking at this person, in which case it's ICM, and

         11  saying are you staying with it? You know, are you

         12  doing it? I'm watching you. And I don't consider

         13  that a loss of her liberty, that is somebody who she

         14  has a relationship with. My daughter loves her

         15  intensive case manager, even though she is the

         16  person who is enforcing this court order, because

         17  she knows somebody cares about her enough to want to

         18  keep her out of the hospital. And that's the beauty

         19  of this law, is it gives individuals the time to

         20  recover. If you don't recover after a week of taking

         21  medication, not if you've been sick lifetime. It

         22  takes a long, long time, and this is the first

         23  opportunity she has had to be stable long enough to

         24  start to rebuild her life.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I don't disagree
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          2  with you in any of that.

          3                 MS. SACHER: Okay.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I have a total

          5  agreement with that.

          6                 My issues in investigating and

          7  looking into this have plenty to do with $34 million

          8  applied into this program, and then $3.5 million

          9  apply to a psychosocial club. You cut the 3.5

         10  million, but you don't mess around with the 34.

         11                 MS. SACHER: It shouldn't be

         12  either/or.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And I have a

         14  problem with the way the state is dealing with the

         15  whole thing, and I have a problem with other issues

         16  that I explained to you.

         17                 Then I want to make that clear. I

         18  thank you for coming here to testify, and forgive me

         19  if I needed to be stronger before, but I don't allow

         20  people to disrespect me. I don't like it. And you

         21  have nothing to do with that, the same way I don't

         22  like to disrespect people, and that's the bottom

         23  line for me.

         24                 Sir.

         25                 MR. SEAY: No, I just want to say that
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          2  our organization agrees with you on that cut by the

          3  State. In fact, we've led the forefront of groups

          4  that have convinced the Legislature to put some of

          5  that money back. They cut 7.7 million last year out

          6  of aid to localities, which went to the social clubs

          7  and other things. The Legislature forced the

          8  Governor to put 3.65 million of that back in this

          9  year.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Four. Four. Four.

         11                 MR. SEAY: Well, it's closer to four.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: We were fighting

         13  here also.

         14                 MR. SEAY: And NAMI was behind that as

         15  well, and we just want you to know we supported

         16  that, and agree with you 100 percent that those cuts

         17  are hurting people who are sick.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you. And I,

         19  by the way, know your organization very much, and I

         20  have great respect for your organization. And my

         21  heart go out to all of you.

         22                 Thank you very much.

         23                 MR. SNOOK: Could I add one more

         24  thing?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes, sir.
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          2                 MR. SNOOK: I think it's important

          3  when you're figuring out how much money is being put

          4  into Kendra's Law to also think about the benefits.

          5                 For example, when you're thinking

          6  about the court costs, and the fact that there may

          7  not have been extra additional monies added in,

          8  there's also been an 88 percent reduction in

          9  incarcerations. So, all of those court cases aren't

         10  coming.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yes.

         12                 MR. SNOOK: There's also been a 70

         13  percent reduction in hospitalization, so you don't

         14  have inpatient commitment hearings.

         15                 So, a lot of that money is being

         16  saved. I think it's a mistake to think of the

         17  program as taking money away from others, because

         18  it's really making the program work a lot more

         19  efficiently than those individuals that would bounce

         20  in and out of the system, because you get stabilized

         21  in the hospital, you stop taking your medications.

         22  And, for example, in other states, you have things

         23  like PAC teams similar to New York ACT teams, their

         24  job is really managing the pyschosis, because they

         25  have no way of saying you need to take your
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          2  medication.

          3                 So, their job is to spend a lot more

          4  time underneath bridges looking for someone, because

          5  they can offer services over and over again but

          6  until that point, which may never come, they're

          7  never going to be able to get them to take that

          8  Medication to get to the point that they can say,

          9  oh, I need to take this, and I can engage you in

         10  voluntary services.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Yeah. But what

         12  happened is that we had compared those numbers to

         13  the organizations that provide services to people,

         14  and we are comparing in regard of people who go to

         15  the programs and, for example, the Rainbow Club is

         16  one case that I can tell you from the top of my head

         17  that have seven hospitalization, from 250. From 250

         18  individuals that they got, that came into the

         19  program and became to be worked with, multiple

         20  hospitalizations with the membership, and they were

         21  working with individuals that were very difficult to

         22  stabilize. They have only seven hospitalizations

         23  that were voluntary on then and then the budget is

         24  200,000. Then and the State cut it, the money for

         25  that. And this is the kind of thing that doesn't
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          2  make sense to me.

          3                 That doesn't deny the statistic

          4  information that you're putting in place, is that we

          5  have two problems here, and we have a system, bottom

          6  line, in my opinion, that put money where they

          7  decide to put it but not where it's really needed

          8  for the services of the people that are needing that

          9  service. Like when are they building housing? When?

         10  That will stabilize those people for real. For real.

         11  When are they doing that? Then that's part of the

         12  problem.

         13                 MR. SNOOK: I think that's really

         14  true.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you.

         16                 MR. SNOOK: Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: The next panel,

         18  and thank you very much for coming here.

         19                 MS. DePEDRO: The next panel, Karen

         20  Gormandy, NAMI, New York City Metro. Charlotte Moses

         21  Fischman, NAMI, New York City Metro. Arleen

         22  Steinberg, parent.

         23                 Can you please raise your right hand?

         24                 Will you swear or affirm that the

         25  testimony you're about to provide will be truthful
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          2  in all concerns?

          3                 (Witnesses sworn.)

          4                 MS. DePEDRO: You may begin.

          5                 MS. MOSES FISCHMAN: (Not identified

          6  for the record.) Madam Chairperson, I thank you

          7  first for having this hearing. I think it's been

          8  illuminating for all of us, and we also appreciate

          9  your past efforts on behalf of the mental health

         10  community.

         11                 You have been a great and

         12  compassionate friend to us.

         13                 I am the President of NAMI, New York

         14  City Metro. Five years ago our Board voted in favor

         15  of Kendra's Law. We plan to have another vote next

         16  Tuesday at our meeting but have not yet voted yet,

         17  but I am confident having formally polled the Board,

         18  that the majority of the Board is in favor of not

         19  allowing Kendra's Law to sunset.

         20                 I don't want to repeat many of the

         21  points that have been made here today. I just want

         22  to make a couple that I think haven't been made

         23  sufficiently.

         24                 The first is that when Kendra's Law

         25  was passed in 1999, it was not some weird idea of
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          2  Governor Pataki that arose simply out of the

          3  Goldstein/Kendra Webdale tragedy. New York was

          4  joining the mainstream of jurisdictions that have an

          5  AOT statute as you heard.

          6                 Back in 1999 there were 40 such

          7  states and New York was in the minority. Today even

          8  more states have an AOT statute, and these statutes

          9  represent the best treatment available.

         10                 Secondly, Kendra's Law is not about

         11  coercive treatment. It is not about forced

         12  treatment. Under Kendra's Law, our children, our

         13  husbands, our spouses, cannot be held down while

         14  somebody gives them a shot of Haldol. They cannot be

         15  subjected to ECT treatment. That is not what happens

         16  under Kendra's Law.

         17                 I'd like to just read briefly from

         18  the opinion of Chief Judge Judith Kaye of the New

         19  York Court of Appeals in the decision upholding the

         20  constitutionality of Kendra's Law.

         21                 In as much as the statute does not

         22  and could not, absent a showing of incapacity,

         23  authorize a forcible administration of psychotropic

         24  drugs, any AOT order purporting to contain such a

         25  direction would exceed the authority of the law.
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          2                 The law was also not coercive in

          3  terms of what happens if there is a violation of an

          4  AOT court order.

          5                 Now, most court orders, if they are

          6  violated, result in criminal contempt proceedings,

          7  civil contempt proceedings, fines, penalties,

          8  something. That's not true of an AOT order. If an

          9  AOT order is not followed, the worst thing that

         10  happens is that the folks involved in the AOT plan

         11  have to take a closer look at what's happening and

         12  if the requirements of New York's involuntary civil

         13  commitment law met, a person subject to an AOT order

         14  may be detained for 72 hours, just as they are under

         15  the civil commitment law, which has been on our

         16  books for hundreds of years.

         17                 Again, turning to the opinion of

         18  Chief Judge Judith Kaye on this subject, the opinion

         19  correctly states the restriction on a patient's

         20  freedom affected by a court order authorizing

         21  assisted outpatient treatment is minimal, inasmuch

         22  as the coercive force of the order lies solely in

         23  the compulsion generally felt by law-abiding

         24  citizens to comply with court directives. In

         25  violation of the order, standing alone, ultimately
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          2  carries no sanction. In a sense, you can say that

          3  behind this whole statutory scheme, there are no

          4  real teeth. But it works for the reasons that we've

          5  heard.

          6                 Finally, I just want to talk about

          7  what would happen if we let Kendra's Law sunset. In

          8  my view, the money that is now being spent for

          9  services under Kendra's Law will be lost to the

         10  mental health system. Just as the monies for

         11  deinstitutionalization did not really get ploughed

         12  back into the community dollar-for-dollar, what

         13  would happen here is I think, particularly under the

         14  current administration, is those dollars would

         15  banish.

         16                 What the statute has done is to

         17  provide a statewide system mechanics for identifying

         18  the at-risk consumers that are the most neglected,

         19  the most unable to care for themselves. I think of

         20  it as a triage system, and while it may be correct,

         21  that if we had all the money in the world, and we

         22  could offer a wonderful mental health services to

         23  all people in the State that need them, you wouldn't

         24  need Kendra's Law. That might be true.

         25                 On the other hand, in my lifetime,
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          2  with the federal and State administrations we have,

          3  and with the ever-building deficits, the likelihood

          4  of that happening is nil. So, I think it's important

          5  for us to view Kendra's Law as a small positive

          6  step. We should certainly not let it sunset.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 MS. GORMANDY: Hi. My name is Karen

          9  Gormandy, and I'm on the Board of Directors of NAMI,

         10  New York City Metro.

         11                 Actually, I have a prepared

         12  statement, and it almost mirrors Patti Sacher's

         13  statement of exactly the scenario that my own son

         14  followed during his course with his, entire course

         15  of his illness. However, my son is a young black

         16  man. And I have to tell you, having a young, black,

         17  mentally ill, homeless child, is frightening. I'm

         18  actually shaking.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I was looking at

         20  you. And I was wondering --

         21                 MS. GORMANDY: All of a sudden I am

         22  just shaking because I was very much prepared to

         23  come and say this.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I'm sorry.

         25                 MS. GORMANDY: And --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Will you want to

          3  wait for a minute and then go back to you?

          4                 MS. GORMANDY: I'll just beg that you

          5  have some patience with me. I'll just be a little

          6  slower but --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: No, that's okay. I

          8  just want to make you feel comfortable. If you want,

          9  I can wait.

         10                 MS. GORMANDY: You know, this is very,

         11  very important to me, simply because my son has

         12  never gotten the proper treatment that he needs and

         13  deserves.

         14                 There are many factors that have led

         15  up to that. At the point when he became mentally

         16  ill, I was -- my ex-husband didn't deal with that

         17  very well, and I ended up in the situation of being

         18  a single parent with a mentally-ill child. And being

         19  a single parent financially is hard enough. I've had

         20  to declare personal bankruptcy through this whole

         21  thing, and I have to state that AOT is the only

         22  access to services that I feel it's just like we hit

         23  rock bottom and this is what we need to do to get

         24  help.

         25                 As Patti said, this is not something
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          2  where you give somebody a pack of pills and tell

          3  them to go away. It takes a long time of

          4  observation, of feeling -- of reinstilling within

          5  him a sense of hope. I can't imagine what he must

          6  feel like. First of all, he's born into a system

          7  that already feels he's deficit. I mean, I am not a

          8  prejudice person but I am a realistic person. I know

          9  what people see when they look at him. He is already

         10  born with a deficit. And now he has a mental

         11  illness, that's like a double-whammy.

         12                 Someone told me once he's set up to

         13  fail. I couldn't believe that that came out of a

         14  human being. But I don't believe that. I, as a

         15  parent, have made a commitment to take him to the

         16  point of adulthood where he can make his own

         17  decisions. And I feel that having him in extended

         18  treatment that the AOT offers him will give him the

         19  insight that he needs to get his life back and to

         20  act and behave as an adult and to feel a sense of

         21  hope that he could go out there, go into a

         22  rehabilitation program, have job opportunities being

         23  a peer mentor program. The other thing that he knows

         24  that there are other people out there who are

         25  perfectly capable of recovery, and that he can move

                                                            184

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  forward.

          3                 This is not a perfect world. I mean

          4  if it was a perfect world everybody would be

          5  colorblind and somebody would walk into the doctor's

          6  office, as he could have, and say I need help.

          7                 As a young black person, he can't

          8  walk into anywhere and go I need help. His matted

          9  hair and his smelly self, and his cut-up shoes, who

         10  is going to help him? He will never be taken

         11  seriously, unless someone fights for him. And I

         12  can't do it myself. I'm one person and that's why I

         13  think an organization like NAMI and I need now a

         14  band-aid like AOT.

         15                 You know, maybe in four or five

         16  generations we'll have a perfect system, but I'll

         17  tell you one thing, I'm not patient and I'm not

         18  waiting for it. I want help for him now.

         19                 Thank you for listening and for being

         20  so patient.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you.

         22                 MS. STEINBERG: My name is Arlene

         23  Steinberg. I have never met these women before. I

         24  had met Patti down at NAMI.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: You can point the
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          2  microphone to you, instead of you coming. Pull it.

          3  Just pull the microphone. Just pull it. That's it.

          4                 MS. STEINBERG: I was down two weeks

          5  ago Friday and just gave my testimony and I had

          6  e-mailed it to Jennifer saying that I wasn't going

          7  to come, and then my family made me change my mind

          8  to be here today. I summarized my testimony, but I

          9  think that I wanted to speak off the cuff.

         10                 We all have the same issues. I have a

         11  son who is 40. He was 15 when he got sick. I'm not

         12  black. I'm Jewish. I'm white. My husband is an

         13  attorney, my daughter is an attorney, we have done

         14  everything. We've sought out the best doctors. This

         15  is an illness like no other. The stigma that's

         16  attached to it. And that's why I'm involved with

         17  NAMI, to, you know, I talk about my son all the

         18  time. He doesn't know how much I talk about him, to

         19  make it understood that this is an illness like any

         20  other, and it takes villages, as Hillary has said.

         21  We have tried to micromanage him. We have not

         22  hospitalized him. We have kept him at home. We have

         23  babysat him. He threw his leg over the balcony of

         24  our 14th floor apartment. My husband still wouldn't

         25  call mobile crisis. He's stolen our car. He set a
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          2  fire in his apartment. Had he not been living in

          3  Westchester at the time, where this small wonderful

          4  community who called us when he wasn't acting right,

          5  and we finally decided that the only thing that we

          6  could do was to call mobile crisis and pray to God

          7  that he wouldn't resist being taken to the hospital

          8  and God forbid something would have happened, and

          9  that's how we've been living our life, is waiting

         10  for that other shoe to drop all the time. I don't

         11  have to give you stories, I'm sure you know. But

         12  he's 40 years old. He's living with us now. He was

         13  under AOT Kendra's Law, his last hospitalization in

         14  Westchester County Medical. He went in

         15  involuntarily, obviously, and the order that they

         16  got out of court sent him into a MICA program, a

         17  small house, 12 other men. He was there for five

         18  months. He was compliant. He went in a day

         19  treatment. He was in AA at night. We saw a child,

         20  child that we had never seen before. Unfortunately,

         21  his lack of insight and he knew that they were going

         22  to go in for another order after the six months, he

         23  took off. And he went to Florida.

         24                 They couldn't do anything about it

         25  because the law, as you know, does not even go over
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          2  the county line. But he called us and he came back

          3  home. We're a very supportive family, we are there

          4  for him a hundred percent. And when he came back

          5  into the City, he was still under the AOT order, and

          6  I called the people who he worked with who were

          7  unbelievably terrific, and they said there's nothing

          8  that they could do. They couldn't come, you know,

          9  into the City. But if he would agree, they would,

         10  you know, send somebody to assess him, and that they

         11  would talk to him, try to get him back in the

         12  program. They held his room for a month, and he

         13  would just not agree to it.

         14                 So, we have continued to keep him at

         15  home. We are negotiating on a daily basis. He is

         16  still non-compliant. We have gotten him into some

         17  sort of treatment, and we just live in hope.

         18                 We had seen somebody we had never

         19  seen before while he was under AOT, and I have to

         20  tell you, Ms. Lopez, that I have learned a lot. I am

         21  so glad that I have come to the two hearings,

         22  because I'm seeing your point of view as well. I

         23  know that there's not enough money where it should

         24  be, but until there is something else to replace it,

         25  what AOT has done for my son has not been
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          2  accomplished in any other, you know, in all these

          3  years. So, I am just supporting it now and hope that

          4  you will not let it sunset. And thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I want to thank

          6  the three of your for coming to testify, and I'm

          7  going to ask you, please to read this resolution

          8  carefully. I am not asking for a vacuum to be

          9  created in this resolution. I'm asking to look into

         10  this law and how it's being currently implemented,

         11  and I am concerned about the way that it's

         12  implemented.

         13                 I have a lot of questions that

         14  continue not to be answered. And as the Chair of

         15  this Committee, I am inside of a world where I see

         16  how government destroys services and enhance other

         17  things, like prison systems. And I see how Brad H.,

         18  which is a case that was brought in this City that I

         19  helped to settle with Mayor Bloomberg, who is a

         20  wonderful man, is put together, and I see how Brad

         21  H. doesn't have the resources necessary for

         22  discharge planning, for putting people in housing,

         23  to bring people to the community, to give them case

         24  management, all of the things that we want. Then as

         25  the Chair of the Committee, I have a responsibility
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          2  and I want to tell all of you mothers, I am not in

          3  the business of harming you. That's not my

          4  intention, and that's not what I'm looking for. But

          5  I do look for, for justice for people who suffer

          6  from mental illness, and I want justice for them

          7  because they are mistreated by everybody out there.

          8  And I need to make sure that they are protected.

          9  They are abused by everybody one way or another, and

         10  I believe that that have to stop. Then my heart go

         11  out to you again. I have great respect for your

         12  organization and your intentions, but you must

         13  understand that I have incredible commitment to

         14  people who suffer from mental illness, and their

         15  rights must be protected. Their rights must be

         16  protected, as far as I know, and my angle and from

         17  where I look at this.

         18                 Will that mean that I jeopardize

         19  them? Absolutely not. I happen to disagree with them

         20  many times and they get upset with me. That's life.

         21  And meanwhile, we need to try to work together this

         22  issue. Right now I am sad to tell everybody here

         23  that I got a call from the Police Department that my

         24  mother-in-law was found on the street, she suffer

         25  from Alzheimer's Disease, and she left the nursing
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          2  home in ways that we don't understand, and I need to

          3  go and take care of this because my partner cannot

          4  take care of her right now.

          5                 I'm very sorry to do this, but I

          6  really need to go back to my district to find what

          7  is wrong with her at this moment.

          8                 MS. STEINBERG: We certainly

          9  understand.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I want to make

         11  clear that I'm going to call a second hearing on

         12  this. And I'm going to call for a speakout. I want

         13  to hear from the consumers unlimited. I want them to

         14  have access to tell me clearly what this mean for

         15  them and what they are submitted (sic) to. Because

         16  my first part of this hearing was intended to hear

         17  from the people that I invited, and you were some of

         18  the people invited to the Committee presentation.

         19  And I wanted to hear from you because I want to be

         20  educated about what is the situation right now.

         21                 I want you to hear from me that I

         22  don't like what I see from inside. And it's not

         23  good, because intensive case management to exist on

         24  demand, it doesn't should be attached (sic) to court

         25  orders. They should not be attached to that.
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          2                 The services that Kendra's Law have

          3  shall be on demand for the people who need it, and

          4  this business of condition that to a court order is

          5  insane to me. Very insane. And it doesn't make sense

          6  to me that that's the condition to trigger it. I

          7  don't get it. I don't understand it.

          8                 I believe that some people need to be

          9  under a court order to hospitalize, yes I believe

         10  that some people do. I believe that. But there's

         11  something very wrong with the way this is being

         12  played out. And it need to be fixed. It need to be

         13  looked into it and figure it out why? Why is that

         14  the Governor is playing this game? And playing this

         15  game at two level, cutting services in communities,

         16  not creating housing, not creating the necessary

         17  system to sustain people, but then Kendra's law is

         18  very good for him, but the other three doesn't

         19  exist. It doesn't matter. Eliminate intensive case

         20  manager or management, like in a stroke of a pen.

         21                 Then I hope that you give me the

         22  opportunity to understand me, because I think that I

         23  have been misunderstood in what I'm trying to do

         24  here.

         25                 Then thank you very much, and this

                                                            192

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  meeting is going to be not adjourned, postponed,

          3  right? What is the word? We're going to have a

          4  continuation of this hearing, and I'm going to call

          5  for a speakout for the consumer population only to

          6  come to this house if they want to, to express their

          7  opinions about how they see this, and what are the

          8  things that they need. I think that we need to hear

          9  that.

         10                 Thank you very much for everyone. And

         11  forgive me that I had to go.

         12                 If you have testimony that you can

         13  give me, that will be very helpful. That will be

         14  very helpful. But let me make this clear. I have

         15  decided for what I hear in here, that I need to call

         16  for that speakout, and I believe that that will be

         17  very helpful for me to be more educated about this

         18  issue. I have too many questions at this point, and

         19  something is not right about this whole thing from

         20  top to bottom. There's something very strange about

         21  it that doesn't make sense to me.

         22                 Thank you very much to all of you,

         23  and God bless you.

         24                 (The following written testimony was

         25  read into the record.)

                                                            193

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2

          3

          4  Mother Jones

          5  Rob Waters

          6  May/June 2005 Issue

          7

          8

          9  Medicating Aliah

         10  When State mental health officials fall under the

         11  influence of Big Pharma, the burden falls on captive

         12  patients. Like this 13-year-old girl.

         13

         14  Rob Waters

         15  May/June 2005 Issue

         16

         17                 ALIAH GLEASON IS A BIG, lively girl

         18  with a round face, a quick wit, and a sharp tongue.

         19  She's 13 and in eighth grade at Dessau Middle School

         20  in Pflugerville, Texas, an Austin suburb, but could

         21  pass for several years older. She is the second of

         22  four daughters of Calvin and Anaka Gleason, an

         23  African American couple who run a struggling

         24  business taking people on casino bus trips.

         25                 In the early part of seventh grade,
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          2  Aliah was a B and C student who "got in trouble for

          3  running my mouth." Sometimes her antics went

          4  overboard - like the time she barked at a teacher

          5  she thought was ugly. "I was calling this teacher a

          6  man because she had a mustache," Aliah recalled over

          7  breakfast with her parents at an Austin restaurant.

          8                 School officials considered Aliah

          9  disruptive, deemed her to have an "oppositional

         10  disorder," and placed her in a special education

         11  track. Her parents viewed her as a spirited child

         12  who was bright but had a tendency to argue and

         13  clown. Then one day, psychologists from the

         14  University of Texas (UT) visited the school to

         15  conduct a mental health screening for sixth- and

         16  seventh-grade girls, and Aliah's life took a

         17  dramatic turn.

         18                 A few weeks later, the Gleasons got a

         19  "Dear parents" from letter from the head of the

         20  screening program. "You will be glad to know your

         21  daughter did not report experiencing a significant

         22  level of distress," it said. Not long after, they

         23  got a very different phone call from a UT

         24  psychologist, who told them Aliah had scored high on

         25  a suicide rating and needed further evaluation.
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          2                 The Gleasons reluctantly agreed to

          3  have Aliah see a UT consulting psychiatrist. She

          4  concluded Aliah was suicidal but did not hospitalize

          5  her, referring her instead to an emergency clinic

          6  for further evaluation.

          7                 Six weeks later, in January 2004, a

          8  child-protection worker went to Aliah's school,

          9  interviewed her, then summoned Calin Gleason to the

         10  school and told him to take Aliah to Austin State

         11  Hospital, a state mental facility. He refused, and

         12  after a heated conversation, she placed Aliah in

         13  emergency custody and had a police officer drive her

         14  to the hospital.

         15                 The Gleasons would not be allowed to

         16  see or even speak to their daughter for the next

         17  five months, and Aliah would spend a total of nine

         18  months in a state psychiatric hospital and

         19  residential treatment facilities. While in the

         20  hospital, she was placed in restraints more than 26

         21  times and medicated - against her will and without

         22  her parents' consent - with at least 12 different

         23  psychiatric drugs, many of them simultaneously.

         24                 On her second day at the state

         25  hospital, Aliah says she was told to take a pill to
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          2  "help my mood swings." She refused and hid under

          3  her bed. She says staff members pulled her out by

          4  her legs, then told her if she took her medication,

          5  she'd be able to go home sooner. She took it. On

          6  another occasion, she "cheeked" a pill and later

          7  tossed it into the garbage. She says that after

          8  staff members found it, five of them came to her

          9  room, one holding a needle. "I started struggling,

         10  and they held my head down and shot me in the butt,"

         11  she says. "Then they left and I lay in my bed

         12  crying."

         13                 What, if anything, was wrong with

         14  Aliah remains cloudy. Court documents and medical

         15  records indicate that she would say she was suicidal

         16  or that her father beat her, and then she would

         17  recant. (Her attorney attributes such statements to

         18  the high dosages of psychotropic drugs she was

         19  forcibly put on).

         20                 Her clinical diagnosis was just as

         21  changeable. During two months at Austin State

         22  Hospital, Aliah was diagnosed with "depressive

         23  disorder not otherwise specified," "mood disorder

         24  not otherwise specified with psychotic features,"

         25  and "major depression with psychotic features." In
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          2  addition to the antidepressants Zoloft, Celexa,

          3  Lexapro, and Desyrel, as well as Ativan, an

          4  antianxiety drug, Aliah was given two newer drugs

          5  known as "atypical antipsychotics" - Geodon and

          6  Abilify - plus an older antipsychotic, Haldol. She

          7  was also given the anticonvulsants Trileptal and

          8  Depakote - though she was not suffering from a

          9  seizure disorder - and Cogentin, and

         10  anti-Parkinson's drug also used to control the side

         11  effects of antipsychotic drugs. At the time of her

         12  transfer to a residential facility, she was on five

         13  different medications, and once there, she was put

         14  on still another atypical - Risperdal.

         15                 The case of Aliah Gleason raises

         16  troubling - and long-standing - questions about the

         17  coercive uses of psychiatric medications in Texas

         18  and elsewhere. But especially because Aliah lives in

         19  Texas, and because her commitment was involuntary,

         20  she became vulnerable to an even further hazard:

         21  aggressive drug regimens that feature new and

         22  controversial drugs - regimens that are promoted by

         23  drug companies, mandated by state governments, and

         24  imposed on captive patient populations with no say

         25  over what's prescribed to them.
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          2                 In the past, drug companies sold

          3  their new products to doctors through ads and

          4  articles in medical journals or, in recent years, by

          5  wooing consumers directly through television and

          6  magazine advertising.

          7                 Starting in the mid-1990s, though,

          8  the companies also began to focus on a powerful

          9  market force: the handful of state officials who

         10  govern prescribing for large public systems like

         11  state mental hospitals, prisons, and

         12  government-funded clinics.

         13                 One way drug companies have worked to

         14  influence prescribing practices of these public

         15  institutions is by funding the implementation of

         16  guidelines, or algorithms, that spell out which

         17  drugs should be used for different psychiatric

         18  conditions, much as other algorithms guide the

         19  treatment of diabetes or heart disease.

         20                 The effort began in the mid-1990s

         21  with the creation of TMAP - The Texas Medication

         22  Algorithm Project. Put simply, the algorithm called

         23  for the newest, most expensive medications to be

         24  used first in the treatment of schizophrenia,

         25  bipolar disorder, and major depression in adults.
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          2                 Subsequently, the state began

          3  developing CMAP, a children's algorithm that is not

          4  yet codified by the state legislature. At least nine

          5  states have since adopted guidelines similar to

          6  TMAP. One such state, Pennsylvania, has been sued by

          7  two of its own investigators who claim they were

          8  fired after exposing industry's undue influence over

          9  state prescribing practices and the resulting

         10  inappropriate medicating of patients, particularly

         11  children.

         12                 Thanks in part to such marketing

         13  strategies, sales of the new atypical antipsychotics

         14  have soared. Unlike antidepressants - which have

         15  been marketed to huge audiences almost as lifestyle

         16  drugs - antipsychotics are aimed at a small but

         17  growing market: schizophrenics and people with

         18  bipolar disorder. Atypicals are profitable because

         19  they are as much as 10 times more expensive than the

         20  old antipsychotics, such as Haldol. In 2004,

         21  atypical antipsychotics were the

         22  fourth-highest-grossing class of drugs in the United

         23  States, with sales totaling $8.8 billion - $2.4

         24  billion of which was paid for by state Medicaid

         25  funds.
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          2                 At a time when ethical questions are

          3  dogging the pharmaceutical industry and algorithm

          4  programs in Texas and Pennsylvania, President Bush's

          5  New Freedom Commission on Mental Health has lauded

          6  TMAP as a "model program" and called for the

          7  expanded use of screening programs like the one at

          8  Aliah Gleason's middle school. The question now is

          9  whose interests do these programs really serve?

         10

         11

         12  Written Testimony Of:

         13  Nicholas Patti

         14  Member

         15  Mindfreedom/Support Coalition International

         16

         17  Date: April 21, 2005

         18

         19                 Hello. My name is Nick Patti, and I

         20  am a psychiatric survivor and member of

         21  Mindfreedom/Support Coalition International. I am

         22  not on AOT. I come to you today to testify against

         23  NY State's AOT law, also known as involuntary

         24  outpatient commitment, by offering one strong

         25  argument in favor of the law.
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          2                 I'd like to comment on how the law is

          3  not racist, at all. At the last hearing, held by the

          4  NYS Assembly, we heard that 62% of all court orders

          5  are against people of color.

          6                 This is very disproportionate to the

          7  total population of the so-called mentally ill. But

          8  as we heard at the last hearing, this fact does not

          9  make the law racist. On the contrary, it shows how

         10  much the law is helping communities of color by

         11  connecting them with services they might not

         12  otherwise receive. Never mind that the individual

         13  people "connected" do not want the drugs, the almost

         14  daily mandatory meetings with the ACT teams, etc.,

         15  and require a court order to be forced to enter this

         16  kind of mental health treatment. We heard studies at

         17  the last hearing that once they got used to it, the

         18  force and the treatment, they grew to like it.

         19                 Let me make an analogy to illustrate

         20  my point more clearly. NY State's Assisted

         21  Outpatient Treatment law is no more racist than the

         22  Rockefeller Drug Laws. For similar reasons, we see

         23  that neither law is racist in its impact, at all.

         24                 First of all, there's the issue of

         25  "connecting" the underserved. Let's face it, the
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          2  low-level drug dealers incarcerated in prison for

          3  years for minor non-violent possession offenses

          4  probably may have been using drugs on the street at

          5  the time, also. In prison, I'm relatively sure that

          6  it's substantially harder to get those drugs than it

          7  was on the street. Therefore, prison can be seen as

          8  sort of cold-turkey, no-holds-barred drug treatment

          9  program for some chronic users. Tough love, yes, I

         10  know, and against their will, but an effective

         11  short-term drug treatment program, nonetheless. Just

         12  like forced drugs under Kendra's Law!

         13                 Second, there's the issue of finding

         14  this population of drug users affordable housing and

         15  keeping them off the streets, away from violent

         16  crime. As far as I know, prison is free to its

         17  consumers and could be seen as fighting homelessness

         18  among this very vulnerable population. Just like

         19  Kendra's Law, we should look at involuntary

         20  treatment and services, not simply building

         21  affordable housing for everyone, including the

         22  so-called mentally ill and the chemically addicted.

         23  That's the way to fight homelessness.

         24                 Finally, on preventing violent crime.

         25  Never mind that the vast majority of those
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          2  incarcerated under the Rockefeller Drug Laws are

          3  there for non-violent offenses, and never mind that

          4  85% of those subjected to AOT orders have never

          5  harmed anyone. Instead, remember that by helping the

          6  underserved with free housing and services such as

          7  prison and drug treatment - note how that last term

          8  applies directly to both topics - we are effectively

          9  fighting crime and helping the individuals involved,

         10  all at the same time! It's in their own interest to

         11  be jailed under the Rockefeller Drug Laws, and it's

         12  in our own interest to have our choice taken away

         13  from us and to be forced onto debilitating drugs

         14  with serious side effects while still living "free"

         15  in the community. It works just like Adam Smith's

         16  invisible hand: public safety while helping the

         17  individual, all at the same time.

         18                 Forget that a far more effective

         19  subway safety policy, for example, might entail

         20  fully funding the MTA, keeping all station booths

         21  open with real people inside to talk to if you're

         22  feeling distress, and keeping the second conductor

         23  on all trains, instead of computerizing everything.

         24  Forget that funding voluntary outpatient mental

         25  health and peer-run services in the community would
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          2  have met the needs of the troubled person, Andrew

          3  Goldstein, who committed that atrocious murder of

          4  Kendra Webdale in the subway system. Forget all

          5  that. Instead keep all the riders drugged up on

          6  psych drugs whether they want them or not, and lock

          7  up anyone seen with any smidgen of marijuana in

          8  their possession. This latter policy will ensure

          9  complete subway and bus safety throughout the City.

         10  I hope you're all feeling real safe out there now.

         11                 In conclusion, I just want to say

         12  that I hope it is entirely clear from the sheer

         13  "force" of my arguments that neither the

         14  Rockefeller Drug laws nor the AOT program are racist

         15  in any way, at all. That is why I think both laws

         16  should be repealed, immediately.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 Source for statistics: John Gresham's

         19  testimony and written report on AOT, submitted at

         20  the NYS Assembly Hearing in New York City, April 8,

         21  2005.

         22

         23

         24  Written Testimony Of:

         25  Amy DiBona
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          2

          3                 Last year I worked at a residence for

          4  severely and persistently mentally ill adults, and

          5  while I was there I led a group for older women

          6  residents with psychiatric diagnoses. The insight

          7  and sensitivity of these women affected me greatly.

          8  One afternoon the women began to discuss how they

          9  felt publicly identified with the "crazy person who

         10  pushes someone in front of the subway." They were

         11  discussing Kendra's Law, and with irony they noted

         12  that while others looked at them with fear and

         13  distrust, they were very afraid of being pushed or

         14  falling into the subway tracks themselves.

         15                 This discussion left a deep

         16  impression on me. At the time I was not familiar

         17  with all of the arguments surrounding Kendra's Law,

         18  but from that point forward I began to appreciate

         19  how profoundly this law affects all people with

         20  mental illness.

         21                 In the broadest sense, Kendra's Law

         22  has two aims: to identify and provide services to a

         23  subset of those with mental illness, and to protect

         24  and reassure the public. I believe that this law

         25  undermines this second aim by the approach that it
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          2  takes to the first. Kendra's Law unnecessarily

          3  exaggerates a preexisting public misperception of

          4  those with mental illness, and while it does result

          5  in some very necessary service improvements, it does

          6  so in a punitive manner which unfairly exploits an

          7  already disadvantaged segment of our society. Most

          8  importantly, it is not at all clear that the

          9  punitive and coercive aspects of this law account

         10  for its success.

         11                 The Codification of Stigma. Although

         12  designed to identify and intervene with a small

         13  percentage of those with mental illness, this law

         14  affects all people with psychiatric diagnoses by

         15  heightening the stigma of mental illness.

         16                 One of the most significant problems

         17  with this law is that it begins by identifying the

         18  mentally ill as the broader population within which

         19  violent individuals should be identified.

         20                 Thus, the law makes a causal

         21  connection between mental illness and dangerousness,

         22  exacerbating a pervasive but unfounded stereotype.

         23  Although prime-time viewers are repeatedly

         24  encouraged to view those with mental illness as

         25  disproportionately violent (Diefanbach, 1998), and
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          2  our political culture furthers this belief (Pilgraim

          3  & Rogers, 2003) in fact most people with mental

          4  illness are never involved in violent acts

          5  (Steadman, Mulvey Monahan et al, 1998). In truth,

          6  people receiving treatment for mental illness are

          7  more likely to be the victim of crime than the

          8  perpetrator (Council of State Governments, 2002).

          9                 It is crucial to remember that this

         10  law does not begin with the broader sample

         11  population of all of those individuals who have a

         12  prior history of danger to self and others - it only

         13  seeks this trait within the community of those with

         14  mental illness. Why should a law which seeks to

         15  prevent future violence neglect to include batterers

         16  or illegal substance abusers, for example, who have

         17  never been psychiatrically diagnosed? I suspect it

         18  is because we intuitively understand that it is both

         19  unethical and impractical to act o a presumption of

         20  guilt for a crime that has not yet and may never be

         21  committed.

         22                 Although this law has evolved in a

         23  cultural climate that automatically and uncritically

         24  connects noncompliance with treatment with a

         25  potential for violence, this is a folk belief, not
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          2  an established fact.

          3                 Robert Bernstein, Director of the

          4  Bazelon Center for Mental Health Law, points out

          5  that: "It is highly speculative to say that someone

          6  may become violent two weeks from now because

          7  they're noncompliant with treatment today. There is

          8  really no good empirical body of knowledge that

          9  supports a judgment of that nature" (Kohl, 1999).

         10                 The Stigmatizing effect of the law

         11  reaches further in underscoring another

         12  taken-for-granted stereotype -- the connection

         13  between mental illness and incompetence. This both

         14  underscores the public's fear and misunderstanding

         15  of mental illness, and provides implicit

         16  justification for applying coercive tactics.

         17                 However, those with psychiatric

         18  disorders are not automatically less able to make

         19  health care decisions. In fact most people with a

         20  mental illness are capable of weighing treatment

         21  options and making reasonable decisions (Allen & Fox

         22  Smith, 2001). Although Kendra's Law underscores the

         23  general public's judgment that persons with mental

         24  illness are not competent to make decisions

         25  regarding their own treatment, the MacArthur
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          2  Foundation's Network on Mental Health and the Law

          3  has concluded that "psychiatric patients are not

          4  necessarily more incompetent than non-mentally ill

          5  persons to engage in independent decision making"

          6  (MacArthur Foundation's Network on Mental Health and

          7  the Law, cited in Perlin, n.d.)

          8                 In defending Kendra's law, Jonathan

          9  Stanley, assistant director of the Treatment

         10  Advocacy Center, has stated that "By improving the

         11  quality of life of people with mental illnesses,

         12  Kendra's law combats direct sources of stigma. These

         13  outcomes equate to fewer stigmatizing beliefs and

         14  attitudes among the other citizens of New York -

         15  people can't see what doesn't happen and newspapers

         16  can't print it" (Stanley, 2004).

         17                 This ends-justifies-the-means

         18  approach fails on a number of fronts. Firstly, the

         19  stigmatizing effect of this legislation extends to

         20  all people with mental illness, not just those who

         21  statistics identify as having been scrutinized under

         22  this law.

         23                 Secondly, this law does not improve

         24  the quality of life of all people with mental

         25  illness, as enhanced services are extended to only a
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          2  very small percentage of the total New York State

          3  population with psychiatric diagnoses.

          4                 Finally, this law certainly cannot

          5  claim to be so failsafe as to prevent future

          6  incidents. As has been much lamented, Kendra's Law

          7  would not have been applied to Andrew Goldstein, and

          8  as such could not have prevented the tragedy for

          9  which this law is named.

         10                 What about Public Safety?

         11                 Not only is this law not helpful to

         12  the majority of those with mental illness, neither

         13  does it genuinely add new safeguards against

         14  violence. Although it would appear to the layperson

         15  that the court-ordered aspect of the law is

         16  particularly important in ensuring public safety,

         17  this is untrue both in terms of what the law allows,

         18  and in terms of how it achieves its ends.

         19                 While it superficially appears to be

         20  a stronger tool for the control of those why may be

         21  violent, the law does not address people who are

         22  currently a danger to self or others, as the public

         23  may suspect.

         24                 For the small percentage of people

         25  with mental illness who currently pose a threat to
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          2  themselves or others, preexisting legislation

          3  already provides the recourse of involuntary

          4  inpatient hospitalization, and this action is in no

          5  way either strengthened or diminished by the

          6  language of Kendra's Law. Neither does the law

          7  address those who are assessed as currently

          8  incompetent to make treatment decisions. Most

          9  significantly and often overlooked, a patient who

         10  refuses to comply with the treatment plan cannot be

         11  held in contempt of court. Thus while exerting a

         12  strong effect on the perceptions of the public and

         13  potentially on those receiving court orders, the law

         14  is technically incapable of enforcing anything

         15  beyond a brief involuntary assessment for current

         16  dangerousness - a measure that could be taken

         17  without the law.

         18                 This is not at all to imply that the

         19  court order does not in fact exert an effect.

         20  Rather, when a court order is given, "enforcement"

         21  may be largely a function of misinformation and

         22  intimidation. A study surveying the perceptions of

         23  persons ordered to outpatient commitment, undertaken

         24  to determine their perceptions of the requirements

         25  of the court order, found that 88.6 percent of
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          2  respondents incorrectly believed that outpatient

          3  commitment required an individual to keep

          4  appointments at the mental health center (5.6

          5  percent did not know), and that 82.7 percent

          6  incorrectly believed that this order also required

          7  an individual to take involuntary medications as

          8  prescribed (6.2 percent did not know) (Borum,

          9  Swartz, Riley et al, 1999).

         10                 This is all the more striking when it

         11  is revealed that these numbers did not change

         12  substantially whether the respondent had prior

         13  experience of outpatient commitment or not. Clearly,

         14  though it is the responsibility of counsel to inform

         15  these clients of their legal rights, this

         16  information was not made clear to them. Among the

         17  host of legal challenges that this law faces, the

         18  covert nature of this particular aspect of the law

         19  is cause for a reassessment of the success of this

         20  law in getting patients into treatment: "A strategy

         21  that relies on patient misinformation to foster its

         22  success violates ethical principles, the integrity

         23  of the physician-patient relationship, and the

         24  notion of informed consent" (Perlin, pp. 24-25,

         25  n.d.).
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          2                 This coercive and misleading aspect

          3  of this law is aggravated by the larger context in

          4  which many of these clients find themselves. People

          5  with severe and persistent mental illness are often

          6  dependent on essential goods and services, such as

          7  disability payments and subsidized housing. Research

          8  suggests that formally, and more frequently

          9  informally, control over these variables is used as

         10  leverage on the client's "free choice" about

         11  following the outpatient commitment order (Monahan,

         12  Swartz & Bonnie, 2003).

         13                 There is other evidence that this

         14  coercion is extended to the avoidance of hospital

         15  and jail (Monahan, Swartz & Bonnie, 2003) and even

         16  to the return of children to parental custody

         17  (Perlin, n.d.). Clearly, this law would not be so

         18  effective if it did not take advantage of both the

         19  client's severely disadvantaged position and lack of

         20  informed consent.

         21                 Where do benefits derive?

         22                 For all of its flaws, Kendra's Law's

         23  coercive mechanisms may appear to the layperson as

         24  necessarily evils in the service of preventing

         25  violence. But in fact, outpatient commitment is not
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          2  necessarily any more effective in preventing later

          3  incidents of violence and arrest than the more

          4  humane program of enhancing and coordinating

          5  available services (Steadman, Gounis, Dennis et al,

          6  2001). Thus as we assess Kendra' Law thus far, we

          7  must question what we are trying to accomplish, and

          8  by what mechanism.

          9                 Informally I have found that social

         10  workers who have provided services mandated by

         11  Kendra's Law feel ambivalent. Though they are

         12  troubled by many aspects of the law, they have seen

         13  that in the end, it has been a means to assist needy

         14  clients who would otherwise not have received

         15  services. Yet, as it turns out, there may be far

         16  less invasive and less expensive ways to achieve

         17  these same ends.

         18                 It is crucial to note that the

         19  benefits cited by the New York State Office of

         20  Mental Health Final Report on Kendra's Law (2005)

         21  may derive primarily from the provision of enhanced

         22  services and not from the fact that the services

         23  were court ordered.

         24                 As the Bellevue outpatient commitment

         25  study indicated, individuals who were voluntarily
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          2  provided with enhanced community services fared just

          3  as well in the areas of treatment compliance,

          4  hospitalization rates and length of stay, arrest

          5  rates and rates of violent acts as those who were

          6  under commitment orders to receive the same services

          7  (Steadman, Gounis, Dennis et al, 2001).

          8                 Naturally, we need much greater study

          9  of these findings to determine the proximal

         10  mechanisms by which clients voluntarily and

         11  successfully access services. Luckily, we have an

         12  opportunity to study this very hopeful possibility

         13  with much more data.

         14                 Investigations into whether

         15  involuntary outpatient commitment is necessary can

         16  result in three outcomes: 1, determination that no

         17  action need be taken; 2, that a petition for IOC

         18  needs to be filed; or 3, that the subject of the

         19  investigation be provided with enhanced services

         20  without the necessity of a court order. The law

         21  allows for court orders, but does not mandate a

         22  court order. Thus the AOT program investigating a

         23  particular instance has discretion about how to

         24  proceed while it determines that a client would

         25  benefit from additional services. The fact that this
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          2  is so has enabled very divergent applications of the

          3  law in Upstate versus Downstate New York.

          4                 Although both regions conclude that

          5  slightly more than half of the investigations

          6  warrant action, an Upstate subject of a Kendra's Law

          7  investigation will be offered service enhancement in

          8  44 percent of instances, and court ordered to

          9  treatment in only 10 percent of instances. But

         10  Downstate residents experience almost the opposite,

         11  with only 10 percent of investigations leading to

         12  voluntary service enhancement, and 41.5 percent

         13  resulting in a court order (Berg, 2002). This

         14  provides us a rich opportunity to look more closely

         15  at what works, and why.

         16                 Conclusion.

         17                 Certainly we face a crisis today. In

         18  the shadow of deinstitutionalization, the numbers of

         19  people in prisons and jails has swelled as the

         20  numbers of those hospitalized has decreased.

         21                 In fact, a person with a mental

         22  illness is about five times more likely to be

         23  incarcerated than admitted to a hospital (Monahan,

         24  Swartz & Bonnie, 2003). This may lead the public to

         25  assume that those with mental illness are inherently
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          2  prone to crime.

          3                 Instead, these sad statistics are

          4  vivid reflections of the fact that we have not yet

          5  learned how to effectively offer adequate outpatient

          6  services to the large numbers of psychiatric

          7  patients who would have been hospitalized as

          8  inpatients in the past.

          9                 Kendra's Law is the wrong answer to

         10  this difficult problem. Kendra's Law focuses on the

         11  individual with mental illness, rather than the

         12  circumstances and resources available. This

         13  unfortunate approach is akin to holding children

         14  responsible for obtaining a good education rather

         15  than holding the school system responsible for

         16  providing one. On the one hand we implicitly assess

         17  this population as incompetent to make their own

         18  decisions, and in the next moment we make them

         19  responsible for seeking and adhering to treatment,

         20  rather than putting the burden on the treatment

         21  provision system.

         22                 Furthermore, we have embarked on the

         23  dangerous path of trying to identify who will be the

         24  bad children in the class, and to force services on

         25  them, rather than seeking to offer the appropriate
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          2  preventive services to all.

          3                 While we may indeed help those few

          4  individuals who we identify this way, we stigmatize

          5  the entire group, and further disadvantage this

          6  already oppressed population. The recent finding by

          7  New York Lawyers for the Public Interest that blacks

          8  are five times more likely than whites to be the

          9  subject of court orders (Cooper, 2005) underscores

         10  the unfair and uneven application of the coercive

         11  aspects of the law. Outpatient commitment

         12  "...undermines the fundamental right of a

         13  competent, non-dangerous person to determine the

         14  course of his or her treatment. It also appears to

         15  violate the constitutional right to travel, to

         16  privacy, to personal dignity, to freedom from

         17  restraint and bodily integrity, to freedom of

         18  association, and to the free communication of ideas"

         19  (Allen & Fox Smith, 2001).

         20                 The court order not only adds an

         21  additional financial and administrative burden on

         22  the police and court systems, increasing the costs

         23  of an already overburdened and underfunded mental

         24  health treatment system, but it also may not confer

         25  any benefits. While it is difficult to ask a public

                                                            219

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  outraged by Kendra Webdale's death to feel

          3  vindicated by giving away services rather than

          4  punitively enforcing them, in fact it may be just as

          5  efficacious and far more efficient to do so. At a

          6  minimum, now is the time to stop and investigate

          7  these questions.

          8

          9

         10  Written Testimony Of:

         11  Vuka Stricevic

         12  Director of Advocacy & Public Policy

         13  Community Access

         14

         15                 Good afternoon, my name is Vuka

         16  Stricevic and I am the Director of Advocacy at

         17  Community Access and the co-chair of the NYAPRS

         18  Public Policy Committee (New York Association of

         19  Psychiatric Rehabilitation Services). I would like

         20  to thank Council Member Lopez and Council Member

         21  Palma for providing this opportunity to comment on

         22  how Kendra's Law has affected the psychiatrically

         23  disabled community and how best to move forward in

         24  light of this Law's pending renewal.

         25                 For over thirty years, Community
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          2  Access' mission has been to provide high quality

          3  affordable housing and support services for people

          4  diagnosed with psychiatric disabilities. At

          5  Community Access, we are dedicated not only to

          6  providing a home from which consumers can achieve

          7  their individual recovery goals, but also to

          8  advocating for human rights protections and equality

          9  for people with psychiatric disabilities.

         10                 Today, Community Access operates more

         11  than 500 units of affordable, supportive housing in

         12  nine housing projects located in the Bronx,

         13  Manhattan, and Brooklyn. In addition to our housing

         14  programs, Community Access sponsors a psychosocial

         15  club, Club Access ETC, and three employment and

         16  training programs at the Howie T. Harp Advocacy

         17  Center.

         18                 Overview of Recommendations.

         19                 As Kendra's Law faces renewal at the

         20  end of June, we urge you to partner with the State

         21  so the following recommendations are embraced.

         22                 - Restore the Constitutional

         23  protections foregone under Kendra's Law, by ending

         24  the over-inclusive commitment of the nonviolent

         25  mentally ill.
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          2                 - Restore personal autonomy to

          3  psychiatrically disabled New Yorkers, who under AOT

          4  are left without the opportunity to choose treatment

          5  and achieve recovery on their own terms.

          6                 - Continue to invest in community

          7  based mental health and remove the force from our

          8  outpatient commitment statute, so that all New

          9  Yorkers are given the access to treatment they need

         10  and deserve.

         11                 Protect the Rights of Psychiatrically

         12  Disabled Individuals.

         13                 Mental Hygiene Law 9.60, commonly

         14  referred to as Kendra's Law, is New York's

         15  outpatient commitment statute. While Kendra's Law

         16  was passed to enable mentally ill individuals to

         17  receive the treatment they need to successfully live

         18  in the community, the law cultivates a loss of

         19  autonomy and choice. As this law expires in June, a

         20  thorough examination of the Law's impact on the

         21  mental health community is imperative.

         22                 Kendra's Law prevents psychiatrically

         23  disabled individuals to be able to fully rely on

         24  essential Constitutional protections. Based on

         25  well-established precedent, protection of our
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          2  liberty interests hinges on involuntary confinement

          3  only being warranted when there is a clear finding

          4  of present dangerousness. Arguably evolving from the

          5  Supreme Court case O'Connor v. Donaldson, the

          6  dangerousness standard for those facing involuntary

          7  inpatient commitment should be the same standard

          8  applied to those facing involuntary outpatient

          9  commitment.

         10                 However, New York adheres to a

         11  passive harm standard rather than a presently

         12  dangerousness standard, as required by comparable

         13  commitment laws. Our outpatient commitment statute

         14  falls markedly short, as Kendra's Law is framed as a

         15  preventive commitment law, whereby an individual who

         16  is not currently dangerous, can be involuntarily

         17  confined.

         18                 Overinclusive by design, the

         19  elimination of such a safeguard positions Kendra's

         20  Law to infringe on the liberty interests of the

         21  nonviolent mentally ill. Further, renewal of Mental

         22  Hygiene Law 9.60 as written promotes false

         23  characterizations of people with psychiatric

         24  disabilities as being inherently dangerous.

         25                 There is a wide misconception that
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          2  those with mental illness are inherently violent.

          3  However, this categorization runs contrary to the

          4  experiences of those who have been subject to

          5  Kendra's Law. In fact, 85 percent of those who have

          6  been under Kendra's Law have not engaged in any

          7  physical harm to others prior to court order.

          8                 Restore Autonomy to the Mental Health

          9  Community.

         10                 At Community Access, in both our

         11  housing programs and within our Howie T. Harp

         12  Advocacy Center, we have encountered many

         13  individuals who have been court ordered to

         14  outpatient commitment. We believe that with adequate

         15  access to housing and services, mental health

         16  consumers are experts in choosing the right

         17  treatment for their own recovery. Kendra's Law

         18  wrongly removes this choice. Echoing this belief,

         19  our experience with consumers who have been subject

         20  to AOT reveals that compliance limits their

         21  autonomy.

         22                 Our nationally acclaimed Howie T.

         23  Harp Advocacy Center, trains mental health consumers

         24  for careers as peer specialists. The training

         25  curriculum consists of a five-month training course
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          2  and a 3-6 month internship. Dwight is one of the

          3  Center's trainees who has jus successfully completed

          4  the in-class component at the Center and is eager to

          5  begin an internship. While Dwight finished top of

          6  his class, is psychiatrically stable, and does not

          7  exhibit any dangerous tendencies, his AOT caseworker

          8  discouraged him from pursuing an internship,

          9  necessary for his certification as a peer

         10  specialist. According to his program coordinator at

         11  the Center, "With such a promising future, it would

         12  have been a tragedy not to send this guy out into

         13  his internship."

         14                 Despite resistance from his

         15  AOT-assigned case worker, Dwight will (sic) began an

         16  internship at CASES last week. Without supporting

         17  his success or shaping treatment around his own

         18  recovery goals, Kendra's Law has shamefully failed

         19  Dwight.

         20                 Dwight, like many other individuals

         21  sentenced to outpatient commitment, has been

         22  unjustly deprived of his right to autonomy and has

         23  been wrongfully discouraged from pursuing his own

         24  goals. Kendra's Law cannot continue this trend and

         25  over-inclusively confining non-dangerous individuals
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          2  and removing their opportunity to successfully

          3  thrive in the community.

          4                 Remove Force and Invest in Treatment.

          5                 Kendra's Law wrongfully promotes the

          6  use of force. According to Kendra's Law's

          7  legislative history, "there are mentally ill people

          8  who are capable of living in the community with the

          9  help of family, friends and mental health

         10  professionals, but who, without routine care and

         11  treatment, may relapse and become violent or

         12  suicidal, or require hospitalization." While access

         13  to community based services is critical for formerly

         14  hospitalized individuals, Kendra's Law unnecessarily

         15  evokes force as an element of recovery.

         16                 This year, you will have the unique

         17  opportunity to consider the negative impact this law

         18  has had on the mental health community and respond

         19  accordingly. While those individuals sentenced to

         20  outpatient commitment may gain increased access to

         21  services, using force is neither justifiable nor

         22  effective. As an alternative to coerced treatment,

         23  the State can better meet the needs of the mental

         24  health community by offering well-coordinated,

         25  accessible, and personalized services.
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          2                 Force should not be the requisite

          3  ingredient for improved access to treatment.

          4  Individuals under Kendra's Law are given priority in

          5  accessing services. Kendra's Law improperly

          6  incentivizes care providers and consumers to opt for

          7  confinement in order to gain treatment

          8  accessibility. Instead, New York should provide and

          9  expand access to housing and services for all

         10  psychiatrically disabled individuals.

         11                 Though the State's recently issued

         12  report suggests that court-ordered individuals

         13  experienced significant reductions in

         14  hospitalizations, homelessness, and arrest

         15  incidence, it is likely that these findings are

         16  attributable to increased access to services rather

         17  than as a result of forced treatment.

         18                 Prior to the passage of Kendra's Law,

         19  a research study of the Bellevue Hospital AOT pilot

         20  program was completed.

         21                 Differing from the State Office of

         22  Mental health's recent study of Kendra's Law, the

         23  Bellevue study, by including a control group, was

         24  able to accurately gauge treatment outcomes for

         25  those sentenced to involuntary outpatient
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          2  commitment.

          3                 Findings reported include a

          4  prescription for "a wide array of services and their

          5  effective coordination [being] Necessary to

          6  establish good patient outcomes."

          7                 Pointing to access rather than force

          8  as the beneficial element, the Bellevue study found

          9  that when comparing those forced into treatment with

         10  those not forced into treatment but given comparable

         11  access, there were no differences in rates of

         12  hospitalization, arrest incidence, or rates of

         13  violence. Without studying a control group, New York

         14  cannot accurately conclude that using force improves

         15  treatment outcomes.

         16                 Subsequently, I urge you to consider

         17  amending Proposed Resolution 916 so as not to

         18  reflect that "Kendra's Law has been successful in

         19  reducing rates of homelessness, hospitalization and

         20  incarceration for individuals under court order."

         21                 Henry, a resident of one of our

         22  permanent housing sites, Access House, has suffered

         23  the coercive nature of Kendra's Law. Access House

         24  provides Henry with on-site staffing 24 hours a day,

         25  as well as individual counseling, goal planning, and
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          2  linkages to outside programs and services. Equipped

          3  with these benefits, Henry is regularly reminded

          4  that he must comply with a treatment protocol that

          5  he does not control.

          6                 Owen Henry chooses to veer away from

          7  forced treatment and make his own decisions for

          8  recovery, he is met with arguably intimidating

          9  measures.

         10                 Namely, when non-compliant with AOT,

         11  henry experiences threatening encounters with the

         12  police and his AOT-assigned case worker.

         13                 According to Henry's service

         14  coordinator, "Henry seems stable and functions

         15  well." However, his sentence to AOT allows such

         16  threats to become a regular interference with his

         17  recovery. Henry, like others, has been forced into

         18  treatment, albeit his participation in a

         19  self-motivated treatment plan.

         20                 The deprivation of liberty and use of

         21  force on psychiatrically disabled individuals is an

         22  illogical and unjust means of ensuring treatment

         23  accessibility. Employing force may get a person into

         24  treatment but it does not guarantee that the person

         25  will benefit from treatment.
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          2                 In fact, using force destroys the

          3  trusting relationship necessary for effective

          4  treatment. Force encourages helplessness rather than

          5  rehabilitation. Force increases resistance to

          6  treatment rather than encourages consumer

          7  participation with treatment goals. Force harms

          8  self-esteem rather than values the dignity of

          9  individuals. Force utilizes a fear-based model

         10  rather than a recovery-based model.

         11                 Access to services and care are an

         12  integral piece of recovery. While we support the

         13  impetus behind the Council's Proposed Resolution

         14  916, we encourage you to address Kendra's Law's

         15  unjust effects on the mental health community and

         16  consider increasing resources so that access is

         17  achievable for all.

         18                 Community Access urges you to restore

         19  the Constitutional protections lost through Kendra's

         20  Law, promote the autonomy of psychiatrically

         21  disabled individuals, end the use of force as a

         22  required element tied to accessing services, and

         23  increase access to services and housing for all New

         24  Yorkers with mental illness. Thank you for this

         25  opportunity to testify.
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          3

          4  Written Testimony Of:

          5  Eileen McGinn, MPH

          6

          7  Our assumptions about mental illness influence how

          8  we think about compulsory treatment.

          9                 Compulsory treatment laws for the

         10  mentally ill rest on certain assumptions: that

         11  psychotropic drugs are effective, that they are

         12  safe, and that people with mental illness stop their

         13  drugs for inappropriate reasons. Let's look at the

         14  studies to see what the facts are.

         15                 Assumption: Psychotropic drugs are

         16  effective.

         17                 When patients and families hear that

         18  a drug has been judged "effective", they expect an

         19  improvement in life issues like holding a jog or

         20  interacting socially. But, in general, clinical

         21  trials for psychotropic drugs set very low standards

         22  for success. They typically measure marginal

         23  outcomes like fewer days in the hospital or a

         24  decrease in symptoms by 5 0%.

         25                 Let's look at the effectiveness of
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          2  drugs for schizophrenia. In clinical trials, the

          3  drugs do not even prevent hallucinations and

          4  delusions in 20% to 50% of people. Some people are

          5  "treatment resistant", which means that several

          6  trials of several drugs do not work to decrease

          7  their psychotic symptoms. Even on drugs, 90% of

          8  people with schizophrenia cannot work in an

          9  independent job.

         10                 For bipolar disorder, studies show

         11  that at least half of people on various drugs will

         12  have more episodes within one year. At least 25%

         13  will rapid cycle or continuously cycle for some

         14  periods.

         15                 When it comes to antidepressant

         16  drugs, reviewers attempted to conduct a thorough

         17  review of the 45 clinical trials for SSRI

         18  antidepressant drugs (through 2001). They wanted to

         19  include only those trials where at least 70% of the

         20  people had completed the four to six week clinical

         21  trials. They could only find four trials out of the

         22  45 where at least 70% of the people completed the

         23  studies. (Prevention and Treatment, Volume 5,

         24  Article 23, July 15, 2002).

         25                 In September 2004, the FDA reviewed
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          2  all 15 clinical trials for SSRIs in depressed

          3  children. In 12 out of the 15 clinical trials, there

          4  was no difference between drug and placebo groups.

          5  Only one SSRI was shown to be effective in children,

          6  but this may have been because the studies used a

          7  lower standard than the adult studies (adults have

          8  to have a 50% decrease in symptoms of depression but

          9  children only had to have a 20 to 30% decrease). The

         10  U.S. is one of the few industrialized countries to

         11  allow the use of all SSRI drubs in children.

         12                 Assumption: Psychotropic drugs are

         13  safe.

         14                 As we know from recent studies of

         15  Vioxx, drugs have unexpected adverse effects,

         16  especially if taken long term and especially in

         17  certain groups like children, the elderly and people

         18  with many illnesses. I will mention here a few

         19  studies, as well as with some recent FDA drug

         20  advisories.

         21                 I will consider the drugs by class.

         22  For antipsychotic drugs, there are many studies that

         23  show that the newer drugs are associated with weight

         24  gain, diabetes, high cholesterol, high blood

         25  pressure, heart disease and stroke.
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          2                 In July 2001, a paper in the Br J

          3  Psychiatry 2001 Jul;179:63-66 discussed the problem

          4  of venous thromboembolism with antipsychotic drugs.

          5  The authors report that "recent...studies of good...

          6  quality confirmed" that antipsychotic drugs are a

          7  risk factor for venous thrombosis.

          8                 In the Nov-Dec 2002 issue of

          9  Encephale 2002 Nov-Dec;28(6 Pt 1):552-562, the

         10  authors noted that people with schizophrenia had a

         11  ten year shorter life span than the general

         12  population and a "33% increase in relative risk of

         13  death associated with circulatory disease".

         14                 They looked into the possible role of

         15  antipsychotic drugs, and found many possible

         16  mechanisms for an increase in mortality and

         17  morbidity related to cardiovascular function. Among

         18  them were: "receptor blockade; conduction

         19  disturbance (e.g. bundle branch block); delayed

         20  ventricular repolarisation (prolonged QTc interval);

         21  left ventricular dysfunction; sinus node

         22  abnormalities; myocarditis; postural hypotension;

         23  polydipsia-hyponatremia syndrome; weight gain;

         24  glucose intolerance. Of these, QTc interval

         25  prolongation, with the risk of progression to the
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          2  potentially fatal ventricular tachyarrhythmia

          3  Torsades de Pointes (tdP), is of particular concern

          4  as this arrhythmia is unpredictable and difficult to

          5  manage. Coupled with these clinical concerns are

          6  regulatory issues regarding several compounds that

          7  have received warnings or been withdrawn from the

          8  market."

          9                 In November 2002, an article in the

         10  Canadian Medical Association Journal discussed one

         11  antipsychotic drug (risperidone/Risperdal) and its

         12  association with strokes or mini-strokes (transient

         13  ischemic attacks) among our elderly population with

         14  dementia.

         15                 They found that there was a doubling

         16  of the rate of strokes and mini-strokes in those

         17  taking Risperdal compared to the people with

         18  dementia not taking Risperdal. 43% of strokes

         19  resulted in death.

         20                 In February 2004, in Diabetes Care

         21  27;596-601,2004, four professional groups reviewed

         22  all the studies and issued a paper called Consensus

         23  Development conference on Antipsychotic Drugs and

         24  Obesity and diabetes. They found that: "With the

         25  introduction of the second-generation antipsychotics
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          2  (SBAs) over the last decade, the use of these

          3  medications has soared...their use has been

          4  associated with reports of dramatic weight gain,

          5  diabetes (even acute metabolic decompensation, e.g.,

          6  diabetic ketoacidosis [DKA]), and an atherogenic

          7  lipid profile (increased LDL cholesterol and

          8  triglyceride levels and decreased HDL

          9  cholesterol)... Because of the close associations

         10  between obesity, diabetes, and dyslipidemia and

         11  cardiovascular disease (CVD), there is a heightened

         12  interest in the relationship between the SGAs and

         13  the development of these major CVD risk factors."

         14  The four organizations were the American Diabetes

         15  Association, American Psychiatric Association,

         16  American Association of Clinical Endrocrinologists

         17  and the North American Association for the Study of

         18  Obesity.

         19                 In February 2005, an article in

         20  Diabetologia 2005 February 2 looked at the risk of

         21  insulin resistance, control of sugar and "bad" fats

         22  in the blood of people taking older v newer

         23  generation of antipsychotic drugs. They found that

         24  those taking new antipsychotic drugs had much higher

         25  rates of metabolic dysfunction than those taking
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          2  older antipsychotic drugs.

          3                 I will now consider SSRI drugs, a

          4  class of new antidepressant drugs.

          5                 In 2003, an article in J Clin

          6  Psychiatry 2003 Feb;64(2):123-33 reviewed all the

          7  evidence from the studies of antidepressant drugs

          8  when they are used long-term.

          9                 The author concluded that there is

         10  evidence of "very unfavorable long-term outcome of

         11  major depression treated with

         12  drugs";"depression-inducing effects" in some

         13  patients; "switching and cycle acceleration in

         14  bipolar disorder"; "occurrence of tolerance" during

         15  long-term treatment and "withdrawal syndromes

         16  following the discontinuation" of drugs.

         17                 In July 2003, a study in Archives of

         18  General Psychiatry showed that babies born to

         19  mothers who took Prozac or Celexa during pregnancy

         20  were four times more likely to experience

         21  neurological symptoms immediately after birth than

         22  babies whose mothers were not exposed. Neurological

         23  symptoms include: nausea, restlessness, tremors,

         24  rigidity and irritability.

         25                 In September 2004, the FDA held
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          2  public and scientific hearings about suicidality in

          3  children exposed to SSRI-type antidepressant drugs.

          4  The independent studies showed that there was a

          5  doubling of suicidal thoughts and behaviors in the

          6  groups of children taking SSRIs as compared to the

          7  children taking placebos. The doubling of suicidal

          8  thoughts and behaviors held true for studies of

          9  children who were not depressed to start with, for

         10  example in ten studies for ADHD,

         11  obsessive-compulsive disorder and anxiety disorders

         12  in children. The FDA now requires a "black box

         13  warning" about the use of antidepressant drugs in

         14  children. All other industrialized countries ban

         15  these drugs in children, except for one SSRI drug.

         16                 In 2004, an article in the journal

         17  Endocrinology found that baby mice exposed to SSRIs

         18  had reduced bone growth and bone mass. In October

         19  2004, an article in Science showed that baby mice

         20  exposed to SSRIs while the other was pregnant or as

         21  newborns developed "abnormal affective and

         22  anxiety-like" symptoms when they were adults. In

         23  October 2004, at the annual meeting of the Society

         24  for Neuroscience in October, neurologists noted

         25  their "concerns about the safety of the most widely
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          2  prescribed antidepressants in pregnant women and

          3  young children."

          4                 In the November 2004 issue of Arch

          5  Intern Med 2004 Nov 22:164(21):2367-70, the

          6  researchers found that in a population of new SSRI

          7  users, the risk for hospitalization due to bleeding

          8  from the uterus or gastrointestinal tract was about

          9  two to two and a half times higher in SSRI-exposed

         10  people. "An increased risk of abnormal bleeding was

         11  strongly associated with the degree of serotonin

         12  reuptake inhibition."

         13                 In March 2005, it was reported in

         14  MedWatch- The FDA Safety Information and Adverse

         15  Event Reporting Program that the "FDA and the

         16  Department of Justice have seized the remaining

         17  stocks of Paxil CR"... "manufactured by

         18  GlaxoSmithKline, Inc. Manufacturing

         19  practices...failed to meet the standards laid out by

         20  FDA that ensure product safety, strength, quality

         21  and purity."

         22                 In April 2005, an article in Heart

         23  showed that users of SSRIs had a 2 and a half times

         24  higher rate of heart attacks for the first 28 days

         25  of drug use.
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          2                 Let's look at bipolar disorder, where

          3  people take an average of four drugs, including

          4  antipsychotic drugs, antidepressant drugs,

          5  antiepileptic drugs and antianxiety drugs are used

          6  in multiple combinations. People with bipolar

          7  disorder suffer from all the problems mentioned

          8  previously for antipsychotic and antidepressant

          9  drugs, as well as some unique to bipolar disorder.

         10                 In the Fall 2001 issue of the J

         11  Adolesc Psychopharmacol 2001 Fall; 11(3):239-50, a

         12  study discussed children given Zyprexa for bipolar

         13  mania. The children gained 11 ponds in the

         14  eight-week study. Weight gain is an indication of

         15  metabolic dysfunction, like insulin resistance,

         16  emerging diabetes, high cholesterol and heart

         17  disease.

         18                 In 2004, a study in J Clinical

         19  Psychiatry 2004; 65:1420-1428 demonstrated that

         20  Zyprexa was associated with an increase in number of

         21  mood episodes, especially depressive episodes, in

         22  people who rapid cycle with bipolar disorder. Hey

         23  sate that: "rapid cycling bipolar I patients showed

         24  major differences and more rapid initial clinical

         25  changes, especially toward depression, with less
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          2  favorable long-term outcomes than non-rapid cycling

          3  cases during treatment with olanzapine". "Fewer RC

          4  subjects achieved strictly defined initial

          5  symptomatic remission (p=.014) within a year; RC

          6  subjects were more likely to experience recurrences

          7  (p=.002), especially of depressive illness (<.001),

          8  and had more rehospitalizations (p=.01) and suicide

          9  attempts (p=.03)."

         10                 In November 2004, there was an

         11  article in J Clin Psychiatry 2004 Dec;65(12):1679-87

         12  about weight in bipolar patients taking Zyprexa. The

         13  researchers found significant weight gain, as well

         14  as an increase in cholesterol, systolic and

         15  diastolic blood pressure and pulse rate. The authors

         16  concluded: "Weight gain associated with long-term

         17  olanzapine treatment for mania was common,

         18  substantial, time-dependent, predicted by initial

         19  increases, and temporally associated with

         20  significant changes in cardiovascular and metabolic

         21  measures in bipolar I patients with prolonged

         22  illness and already-high basal BMI."

         23                 For ADHD drugs, there have been many

         24  recent FDA advisories. Many adults are now getting

         25  diagnosed with adult ADD.
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          2                 In December 2004, in J Pediatr 2004

          3  Dec:145(6):767-71, a study of children put on drugs

          4  for ADHD found that they had only one follow up

          5  visits in six months, inadequate "to permit

          6  adjustment of medication and support continuation of

          7  patients in treatment. Systematic quality

          8  improvements are warranted."

          9                 On December 17, 2004, the FDA Talk

         10  Paper issued a warning for one ADHD drug

         11  (Strattera), approved for adults and children. The

         12  labeling was required to be updated about "the

         13  potential for severe liver injury" which may

         14  progress to jaundice, liver failure and death.

         15                 In February 2005, Health Canada, the

         16  Canadian FDA, announced that it was indefinitely

         17  suspending all sales of one British-made ADHD drug

         18  (Adderral XL) because of 12 deaths in children and

         19  eight deaths in adults. The FDA declined to suspend

         20  the drug, although all 20 deaths were in the U.S.

         21  About 700,000 Americans use Adderal or Adderall XL,

         22  generating $759 million in the U.S. And $10 million

         23  in Canada.

         24                 Adderall may be linked with two to

         25  three times as many sudden deaths as Concerti or
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          2  Ritalin.

          3                 During this same period, seven

          4  children died while taking Ritalin and concerta,

          5  other ADHD drugs. Prescriptions for ADHD drugs in

          6  the U.S. more than doubled in the 1990s.

          7                 On February 9, 2005, Alliant

          8  Pharmaceuticals voluntarily recalled all lots of its

          9  drugs for ADHD (Methylin chewable tablets), in all

         10  dosages "because some tablets may contain too much

         11  or too little active ingredient."

         12                 In March 2005, Abbott Laboratories

         13  Inc. voluntarily halted sales of a 30-year-old ADHD

         14  (Cylert) drug. There were 21 cases of liver failure,

         15  including 13 leading to transplants or death. Since

         16  there are also generic versions of the drug on the

         17  market, the individual drug companies must pull them

         18  or the FDA must rule on whether there are safety

         19  reasons for the drug to be withdrawn.

         20                 The FDA had reviewed the drug in the

         21  past, and twice required stronger warnings but

         22  allowed sales to continue.

         23                 In 2005, in J Clin Psychiatr

         24  2005:66:253-259, a study found that adults taking

         25  five different drugs for ADHD, both stimulant and
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          2  non-stimulant types, had significant changes in both

          3  measures of blood pressure (diastolic and systolic),

          4  as well as heart rate.

          5                 In March 2005, there was a study in

          6  Texas of 12 children diagnosed with ADHD. Before

          7  they started Ritalin, the children had their white

          8  blood cells analyzed for DNA damage. After three

          9  months on Ritalin, 100 percent of the children had

         10  significantly more chromosomal damage. Chromosomal

         11  damage is associated with cancer, among other

         12  medical conditions. (Cancer Letter, 2005).

         13                 Other related issues:

         14                 Psychiatrists in the U.S. Have

         15  started to give diagnoses to people who do not have

         16  major symptoms of the illness. In February 2005,

         17  psychiatrists determined that it was acceptable to

         18  diagnose children as bipolar even though they had no

         19  major symptoms of mania. An observer noted that

         20  "characterizing bipolar disorder as frequent,

         21  brief, intense outbursts of mood and behavioral

         22  disregulation represents a fundamental change in the

         23  definition of the illness." (J Am Acad Adolesc

         24  Psychiatry 2005;44:213-239) he also noted that this

         25  change in definition was limited to the U.S.
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          2                 In April 2005, the FDA cautioned in a

          3  MedWatch alert about the drug Reminyl, which is not

          4  approved but commonly used for mild cognitive

          5  impairment. In two trials, the death rate was 13

          6  times higher for people taking Reminyl, half from

          7  sudden death, heart attacks and strokes. The drug

          8  company, Ortho-McNeil Neurologics, is not seeking

          9  FDA approval for this drug for mild cognitive

         10  impairment.

         11                 In May 2004, an article in J Atten

         12  Disord 2004 May; 7(4):217-26, the authors described

         13  the U.S. national trends in the prescription of

         14  multiple drugs in children, specifically in children

         15  who were originally receiving stimulant drugs. They

         16  found a five-fold increase from 1993-1994 to

         17  1997-1998. They note that psychiatric practice has

         18  outpaced knowledge about safety and efficacy when it

         19  comes to psychotropic drugs in children.

         20                 In June 2004, an article in Psychiatr

         21  Serv 55:706-708 shows that among youth living in

         22  therapeutic foster homes and group homes, about 50%

         23  were taking more than one psychotropic drug.

         24                 From 1999 to 2003, there were many

         25  studies about the association of breast cancer and
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          2  psychotropic drugs, especially antidepressants and

          3  antipsychotic drugs.

          4                 A basic problem with research into

          5  psychotropic drugs is that possible adverse effects

          6  can be very similar to the symptoms of the

          7  underlying illnesses. It becomes difficult to sort

          8  out whether the increased symptoms are caused by the

          9  underlying illness, or whether the drugs were

         10  somehow responsible for the new, worse symptoms.

         11                 It is important to remember that

         12  these psychotropic drugs are now being promoted

         13  aggressively in new populations like those with

         14  Alzheimer's disease and dementias. In children, the

         15  warnings for suicidality with SSRIs may cause an

         16  increase in prescriptions for antipsychotic drugs.

         17  The recent rash of problems with all the ADHD drugs

         18  could also result in an increase in use of

         19  antipsychotic drugs.

         20                 Assumption: People stop taking

         21  psychotropic drugs for inappropriate reasons.

         22                 In research studies of psychotropic

         23  drugs, up to 50% of people drop out of for two main

         24  reasons: First, the drugs cause intolerable adverse

         25  effects and second, the drugs do not work.
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          2                 Other reasons that people give in

          3  studies for not taking their rugs are: cannot afford

          4  the drugs, cannot get to the clinic, have no

          5  insurance, have no child care, have no

          6  transportation.

          7                 In addition to the adverse effects I

          8  already mentioned, other serious and long-recognized

          9  adverse effects of psychotropic drugs are

         10  involuntary movements of the lips and face; loss of

         11  sex drive; Parkinson-like syndrome of inhibited

         12  voluntary movements; extreme confusion and cognitive

         13  decline; neuroleptic malignant syndrome; serotonin

         14  syndrome; akathisia and conversion to mania,

         15  especially in children. These are objective medical

         16  adverse effects of the drugs, well documented in the

         17  literature.

         18                 Assumption: When people stop taking

         19  their psychotropic drugs, their behavior is a result

         20  of their underlying mental illness.

         21                 When people stop taking their drugs,

         22  their underlying illness may reassert itself, and

         23  cause them to have symptoms again. However, we

         24  should be aware that discontinuation of several

         25  drugs results in a withdrawal syndrome, with
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          2  symptoms like anxiety, agitation and rebound

          3  psychosis.

          4                 These signs and symptoms of

          5  withdrawal are often similar to the underlying

          6  illness itself, so careless evaluation may fail to

          7  notice the problems of drug withdrawal. Abrupt

          8  withdrawal is the worst, but even slow withdrawal

          9  can produce many severe symptoms. For example, there

         10  is a large support network for people who are trying

         11  to withdraw from SSRIs.

         12                 Assumption: Psychotropic drubs are

         13  the only substances that are proven to decrease the

         14  symptoms of mental illness and dementia.

         15                 There are many new studies that show

         16  that the symptoms of mental illnesses and dementia

         17  can be decreased by improving overall brain

         18  metabolism and brain energy output. Most persuasive

         19  evidence is about essential fatty acids, like omega

         20  3 and vitamins like B 12 and folic acid for

         21  depression, ADHD, bipolar disorder and Alzehimer's

         22  dementia. I will note only a couple of studies here.

         23                 In the June 1996 issue of Physiology

         24  and Behavior, and an article found that boys with

         25  ADHD had low blood levels of mega 3.
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          2                 In May 1999, an important article was

          3  published in Arch Gen Psychiatry 1999

          4  May;56(5):407-12 about omega 3 essential fatty acids

          5  and bipolar disorder. The people continued their

          6  regular treatment with drugs and omega 3 was added.

          7  The authors found "that the omega 3 fatty acid

          8  patient group had a significantly longer period of

          9  remission than the placebo group

         10  (P=.002;Mantel-Cox).

         11                 In addition, for nearly every other

         12  outcome measure, the omega 3 fatty acid group

         13  performed better than the placebo group."

         14                 Other studies have confirmed the

         15  importance of omega 3 in bipolar disorder, including

         16  a study in October 2004 in Am J Psychiatry 2004

         17  Oct;161(10):1922-24, which used MRI brain images to

         18  detect the changes in cell membranes of the group of

         19  women with bipolar disorder who were taking omega 3,

         20  compared to women with bipolar disorder not

         21  receiving omega 3 and women without bipolar

         22  disorder.

         23                 In March 2004, in the journal Eur J

         24  Clin Nutr 2004Mar;58(3):467-73, an article studied

         25  providing only one type of omega 3 essential fatty
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          2  acids (DHA only) to children with ADHD. In this

          3  study, the children did not improve compared to the

          4  children not given DHA. The authors say that more

          5  studies with complete fatty acids need to be done,

          6  and "careful attention should be paid as to which

          7  fatty acid(s) is used".

          8                 In July 2004, an article in the

          9  American Journal of Clinical Nutrition demonstrate

         10  that people with the lowest folate levels had three

         11  times the risk of minor cognitive impairment and

         12  four times the risk of dementia. They found that low

         13  levels of vitamins B6 and B12 were associated with

         14  the risks of Alzheimer's and other dementias.

         15  Conversely, high homocysteine levels were associated

         16  with high risk of dementias.

         17                 In December 2004 in Prev Med

         18  2004;39(6):1256-66, an article was published

         19  describing the importance of vitamin B12 in

         20  depression and neurocognitive disorders, such as

         21  Alzheimer's dementia. The elderly, and people taking

         22  drugs for gastric upset (proton pump inhibitors) or

         23  antihistamines, have lower levels of B12, which may

         24  influence cognitive functioning. Cognitive decline

         25  is worse when folate (folic acid) is also too low,
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          2  another common finding in the elderly.

          3                 In January 2005, an article in J

          4  Psychopharmacol 2005 Jan; 19(1):59-65 discussed the

          5  importance of folic acid and vitamin B12 in the

          6  treatment of depression.

          7                 "Both low folate and low vitamin B12

          8  status have been found in studies of depressive

          9  patients, and an association between depression and

         10  low levels of the two vitamins is found in studies

         11  of the general population.

         12                 Low plasma or serum folate has also

         13  been found in patients with recurrent mood disorders

         14  treated by lithium. A link between depression and

         15  low folate has similarly been found in patients with

         16  alcoholism"... "There is now substantial evidence of

         17  a common decrease in serum/red blood cell folate,

         18  serum vitamin B12 and an increase in plasma

         19  homocysteine in depression."

         20                 In April 2005, at the annual meeting

         21  of the American Society of Nutritional Sciences, a

         22  study reported on seventh graders in San Diego who

         23  were not deficient in zinc, but were given either 20

         24  mg a day of supplemental zinc or placebo. In the

         25  ten-week study, student on zinc supplementation
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          2  improved their cognitive abilities. (Reuters April

          3  5, 2005).

          4                 Of course, there are non-somatic

          5  treatments for mental illness, including

          6  psychotherapy, group therapy, 12 step programs, day

          7  treatment programs, and exercise.

          8                 In an article in Am J Prev Med Vol 28

          9  Issue 1, pages 1 to 8, from January 2005, the

         10  authors concluded: "Aerobic exercise at a dose

         11  consistent with public health recommendations is an

         12  effective treatment for..." Major depressive

         13  disorder...of mild to moderate severity." For people

         14  who performed fairly strenuous aerobic exercise at

         15  least three days a week, the symptoms of depression

         16  declined about 47% over 12 weeks. For those

         17  exercising only moderately, symptoms declined 30% v

         18  29% for the control group.

         19                 Assumption: Stigma can be ended by

         20  campaigns to educate people.

         21                 What I will say here is my own point

         22  of view, not documented in the psychiatric

         23  literature. I believe that stigma will decrease

         24  substantially only when good treatments are

         25  available for mental illnesses. Stigma decreased in
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          2  epilepsy and leprosy and polio when good treatments

          3  became available, so that the general population was

          4  no longer afraid of the stigmatized people.

          5                 Conclusions:

          6                 We know now that our jails and

          7  prisons are full of people with substance abuse

          8  problems and other forms of mental illness. As those

          9  who work with our elderly population will attest,

         10  many people with dementias like Alzheimer's disease

         11  exhibit thoughts and behaviors very similar to the

         12  mentally ill. Is it useful to pass laws to

         13  criminalize mentally illness?

         14                 Good drugs, good medical care and

         15  good social services are needed to help people with

         16  mental illness live up to the God-given potential.

         17  Laws to force people to take drugs are a diversion

         18  from the main issue. Energy and funds continue to be

         19  diverted from housing, services and research.

         20                 If we insist that there must be

         21  compulsory treatment laws, we must at least show

         22  that they result in better outcomes for mentally ill

         23  people. This study that we are discussing today does

         24  not compare the compulsory treatment group with any

         25  other similar group, so we will never know whether
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          2  another treatment plan would have resulted in an

          3  outcome that was better, the same or worse. A simple

          4  "before-after" study like this has a very weak

          5  design, and you cannot make valid conclusions from

          6  such a flawed study.

          7                 I ask that the New York State

          8  legislators require further research with adequate

          9  scientific design before making this compulsory

         10  treatment law permanent in New York State.

         11

         12

         13  Written Testimony Of:

         14  Lisa E. Harris

         15

         16                 On August 9, 1999, New York State

         17  Governor George Pataki signed into legislation a

         18  legal structure for court-ordered Assisted

         19  Outpatient Treatment, or AOT.

         20                 That legislation, known as Kendra's

         21  Law (New York Mental Hygiene Law 9.60(NcKinney

         22  2002)), is designed to allow courts in New York

         23  State to provide and enforce mandatory treatment on

         24  an outpatient basis to those individuals with a

         25  mental illness who also have a history of violence
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          2  or hospitalizations and are at high risk of

          3  non-compliance with their treatment plans,

          4  potentially leading to further violence. It was

          5  named after Kendra Webdale, who in January 1999 was

          6  tragically pushed to her death before an oncoming

          7  subway train by a mentally disturbed man, Andrew

          8  Goldstein.

          9                 At the time it was believed that Mr.

         10  Goldstein had failed to take his medication as

         11  prescribed to him for schizophrenia, thus leading to

         12  the mental breakdown that resulted in tragedy.

         13  Although dramatic, this was not the only case of

         14  violence resulting from treatment non-compliance,

         15  and an effort was made by the New York State

         16  legislature to prevent further incidences of

         17  avoidable violence at the hands of the mentally ill.

         18                 However, when the facts of the

         19  tragedy are more closely examined, an alternate

         20  picture merges. As it turns out, Mr. Goldstein had a

         21  long history of psychiatric issues and treatment,

         22  and had received inpatient treatment 14 times in the

         23  two years prior to the incident. Each time he was

         24  discharged he was sent to live on his own, even

         25  though he had a history of failure to take his
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          2  medication that resulted in more than a dozen

          3  violent attacks on strangers.

          4                 During that period his social workers

          5  and mother repeatedly tried to have him placed in a

          6  state-run 24-hour supervised residence where he had

          7  prior positive experiences with medication

          8  compliance. He was denied each time due to a lack of

          9  available bed space. It was only 18 days after his

         10  last inpatient stay with no supervised aftercare

         11  that he pushed Ms. Webdale to her death. (Winerip,

         12  2002.)

         13                 Whether or not Mr. Goldstein was

         14  responsible for his actions was a matter for the

         15  courts, which ultimately rejected his insanity

         16  defense and decided upon a guilty verdict of

         17  second-degree murder for his actions. (Barnes,

         18  2000.)

         19                 However, it is ironic that those same

         20  actions led to the creation of Kendra's Law, the

         21  purpose of which is to enforce the very psychiatric

         22  treatment that Mr. Goldstein had been seeking but

         23  was denied over and over again due to a lack of

         24  available mental health services. Although

         25  well-intentioned, Kendra's Law fails to address the
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          2  core issues at hand, namely, that the current state

          3  of New York's mental health care system is poor, for

          4  which it hopes to compensate and create the illusion

          5  of competency by foisting inadequate and

          6  overburdened services on a vulnerable population.

          7                 New York State has a long history of

          8  publicly caring for its mentally disturbed

          9  residents, both on a local and state level. What

         10  started out with local county institutions of uneven

         11  quality and levels of care gradually increased in

         12  scope as the state began to build and maintain state

         13  run and supervised mental institutions with more

         14  consistent levels of quality care. These

         15  institutions were to be financed and maintained by

         16  the state, to the extent that relatives of indigent

         17  patients were not required to reimburse the hospital

         18  for the treatment given to their kin (Trattner,

         19  1999.)

         20                 Dorothea Dix, a tremendous advocate

         21  for the indigent mentally ill in the mid-nineteenth

         22  century, was in large part responsible for many of

         23  these changes. She tried, unsuccessfully, to engage

         24  the federal government to participate, if not take

         25  over, fiscal responsibility of a social welfare
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          2  program to establish and maintain mental hospitals

          3  with a bill that was first introduced to Congress in

          4  1848 and was subsequently vetoed by President

          5  Franklin Pierce in 1854. In response, New York State

          6  took action to care for its residents with a mental

          7  illness by increasing the scope of its public mental

          8  health system. The culmination of statewide efforts

          9  was the passage of the New York State Care Act in

         10  1890, in which the state assumed full responsibility

         11  for the complete care of all of its "indigent

         12  insane." (Trattner,1999.)

         13                 Besides inpatient care of the

         14  mentally ill, New York State recognized the need to

         15  provide temporary assistance to patients that had

         16  recently been discharged from the hospital.

         17  "Aftercare work," as it came to be called, had been

         18  successfully utilized in Europe for quite some time,

         19  and after being introduced in the Untied States in

         20  1905, research was conducted to follow the progress

         21  of recently released patients from the Manhattan

         22  State (Mental) Hospital. (Trattner, 1999.) The

         23  results of that research demonstrated the necessity

         24  of some form of continuing care, as a significant

         25  portion of those patients did not do well outside of
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          2  the institution.

          3                 Volunteer aftercare committees were

          4  then established for each of the state's mental

          5  hospitals to provide comprehensive temporary

          6  assistance for needy patients that had recently been

          7  released. This followed the growing understanding at

          8  that time that recently released psychiatric

          9  patients need to be supported. As one proponent of

         10  this system stated, "The process of cure is not

         11  completed when the hospital doors open and the

         12  patient leaves... The opportunity and the need for

         13  treatment, advice, aid and counsel are only [a]

         14  Little less in the period immediately f9ollowing

         15  release from the hospital than they were in the

         16  period preceding such release." (Trattner (1999),

         17  p.194) By 1911, aftercare work was given to

         18  dedicated, trained social workers and became an

         19  integral part of the services of mental institutions

         20  not just in New York State, but throughout the

         21  United States. (Trattner,1999.)

         22                 By the 1960's, views of the mentally

         23  ill had gone through many manifestations, as had the

         24  federal interpretation of its responsibility to care

         25  for them. In 1963, President John F. Kennedy
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          2  effectively overturned the Pierce veto by securing

          3  the enactment of the Community Mental health Centers

          4  Act, whereby federal funds were allocated for the

          5  construction of a network of mental health centers

          6  that were to provide comprehensive outpatient

          7  services, as well as offer preventive mental health

          8  programs. (Satel, 2003 and Trattner, 1999.)

          9  Unfortunately, at the same time there was a growing

         10  movement towards deinstitutionalization, which was

         11  supported by both liberals who wanted patients out

         12  of "oppressive institutions" and conservatives who

         13  believed that significant quantities of funds could

         14  be saved.

         15                 The results of the Act were not as

         16  positive as was expected, due in part to a lack of

         17  support for newly released patients on the outside.

         18  The national network of mental health centers never

         19  really materialized; by the 1970's it was receiving

         20  widespread criticism, and during the 1980's the

         21  program suffered significant cuts from the Reagan

         22  administration.

         23                 The nation's mentally ill were once

         24  again relegated to the care of state and local

         25  communities that were no longer particularly
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          2  responsive to their needs. Thus began the "revolving

          3  door" syndrome, whereby most patients were simply

          4  discharged from inpatient care onto the streets,

          5  only to become repeatedly reinstitiutionalized or

          6  ultimately end up in prison. (Rock, 2001, Satel,

          7  2003 and Trattner, 1999.)

          8                 In fact, a report from the Human

          9  Rights Watch in 2003 found that "American prisons

         10  and jails contain three times more mentally ill

         11  people than do our psychiatric hospitals... [and]

         12  Incarceration has become the nation's default mental

         13  health instrument." (Satel (2003), p.15.) According

         14  to rock (2001), the United States incarcerates

         15  mentally ill people at rates that are

         16  disproportionately high when compared with those of

         17  the general population, and now has the highest

         18  rates of incarceration in the industrialized world

         19  due in no small part to "the policy of

         20  deinstitutionalization, higher standards for

         21  involuntary commitment, an overall increase in

         22  substance abuse, and a strong policy on punishment

         23  rather than rehabilitation." (Rock(2001),p.165.)

         24                 It is not as though New York State

         25  does not invest in its mental health system. Part of

                                                            261

          1  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH

          2  the problem is that the system as it now stands is

          3  extremely disorganized and overburdened at times to

          4  the point of chaos. According to Clarence Sundram, a

          5  former director of New York's Commission on quality

          6  Care for the Mentally Disabled, "what has been

          7  missing for decades is any accountability for how

          8  [allocated] Money is spent.

          9                 Just pouring more money into the

         10  system without fixing some of those problems and

         11  easing the access to services is unlikely to be a

         12  lasting solution." (Goode (1999),p.39.)

         13                 An example of such a problem was

         14  reported by Levy (2002) in a New York Times article

         15  that detailed how in an effort to save money by

         16  reducing the number of available psychiatric beds,

         17  New York State was sending hundreds of its severely

         18  mentally ill patients out of state to reside in

         19  homes with little or no mental health expertise.

         20                 Frequently they would be sent to

         21  nursing hones with bo mental health credentials at

         22  all, where they would be locked into floors with

         23  little to no supervision and would languish with no

         24  treatment or opportunities for meaningful

         25  activities. Not surprisingly, violence and bedlam
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          2  would flourish.

          3                 Fixing the absurdly complex system of

          4  New York's mental health system to make it

          5  accessible to everyone is a priority, but Goode

          6  states that first there is the necessity to effect

          7  "a basic attitudinal shift in a society that has

          8  long stigmatized mental illness: to treat patients

          9  as people with meaningful lives and real prospects

         10  for recovery, and to offer attractive, high quality

         11  services that patients actually want and will

         12  accept." (Goode (1999),p.39.) Link et al. (1999)

         13  studied the impact of cultural beliefs of mental

         14  illness on the provision of mental health services.

         15  The results from a nationwide survey conducted in

         16  1996 found that in the United States, mental illness

         17  was still perceived as "a fearful thing" and that

         18  "public fears [of people with mental illness] Are

         19  out of proportion with reality." (Link et al.

         20  (1999),p.1332.)

         21                 Furthermore, "...the history of

         22  social psychiatry teaches us that cultural

         23  conceptions of mental illness have dramatic

         24  consequences for help seeking, stereotyping, and the

         25  kinds of treatment structures we create for people
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          2  with mental illnesses...If the symptoms of mental

          3  illnesses continue to be linked to fears of

          4  violence, people with mental illnesses will be

          5  negatively affected through rejection, through a

          6  reluctance to seek professional help for fear of

          7  stigmatization, and through fear-based exclusion by

          8  processes as the "not in my backyard" response.

          9  (Link et al. (1999), p.1332.)

         10                 Kendra's Law was borne out of the

         11  confluence of the realities of New York's

         12  deteriorating mental health system, with its poor

         13  accessibility to overburdened services that results

         14  in the "revolving door" syndrome for people wit

         15  mental illness, and the fear-based response to that

         16  population that is endemic to our society and was

         17  amplified by Mr. Goldstein's unfortunate actions. At

         18  its inception, the law was promoted as having a

         19  principle underlying value that effective

         20  psychiatric treatment should be available to

         21  everyone that requires it, mainly in order to avert

         22  circumstances similar to those that led to Ms.

         23  Webdale's death. This point is elaborated on by The

         24  Treatment Advocacy Center, a strong supporter of

         25  Kendra's Law, who states:
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          2                 "[S]ome people, as a result of mental

          3  illness, have great difficulty taking responsibility

          4  for their own care, and often reject outpatient

          5  treatment offered to them on a voluntary basis.

          6  These individuals often commit suicide; become

          7  homeless; end up in jail; or, on rare occasions, are

          8  involved in acts of violence. Family members and

          9  caregivers often must stand by helplessly and watch

         10  their loved ones and patients decompensate to actual

         11  'dangerousness' before they are allowed to

         12  facilitate treatment. Assisted outpatient treatment

         13  is a new tool that may help in these situations."

         14  (The Treatment Advocacy Center (2003),p.2).

         15                 Assisted outpatient treatment also

         16  known as involuntary outpatient commitment, or IOC,

         17  is not unique to New York, as a majority of other

         18  states in the union already had laws that permitted

         19  some kind of enforced outpatient treatment by the

         20  time New York enacted this law. (Berg, 2002 and

         21  Moran, 2000.)

         22                 However, there are some important

         23  differences to be found in New York's AOT program

         24  versus those programs found in other states. As

         25  discussed in Berg (2002), there are three main
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          2  approaches to ICO in the United States: 1) as a

          3  course of action for people with mental illness who

          4  are not currently dangerous, but rather who have a

          5  history of dangerous behavior resulting from

          6  treatment non-compliance; 2) as a condition for

          7  early discharge from an inpatient hospitalization

          8  that was also involuntary; and 3) as an alternative

          9  course of action to involuntary inpatient treatment

         10  for those patients who meet the criteria of being an

         11  imminent danger to self or others. Kendra's Law

         12  follows the first of these three approaches.

         13                 According to the New York State

         14  Office of Mental health (NYS OMH), there are strict

         15  criteria that must be met for a person to be issued

         16  an AOT order, namely, that a person who has a

         17  history of violent behaviors is at significant risk

         18  of repeating those behaviors due to their

         19  co-existing history of non-compliance with

         20  psychiatric treatment. (NYS OMH,2005).

         21                 The criteria of imminent

         22  dangerousness to one's self or others that would

         23  require involuntary inpatient commitment is not met,

         24  rather a prediction of future dangerousness is made,

         25  based on yet another prediction of future
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          2  non-compliance with treatment.

          3                 The MacArthur Violence Risk

          4  Assessment Study (Monahan et al., 2001) clearly

          5  demonstrates that there is much more to determining

          6  a future risk of violence than just a history of

          7  violence and treatment non-compliance. Their study

          8  factored in such important variables as demography,

          9  personality, childhood trauma, social supports and

         10  networks, as well as the patient's diagnosis,

         11  symptoms and history of violence. Suing 106 risk

         12  factors, they were able to successfully determine

         13  which of five risk classes for violence a newly

         14  released patient would fall into.

         15                 However, due to the complexity of

         16  their calculations, they determined that "[i]t would

         17  clearly be impossible for a clinician to commit the

         18  multiple models and their scoring to memory, since

         19  different risk factors are to be assessed for

         20  different patients, and using a paper-and-pencil

         21  approach would be very unwieldy," thus leading to

         22  their development of "violence risk assessment

         23  software." (Monahan et al. (2001),p.63.)

         24                 Even with the increasing amount of

         25  ever broader "Kendra's Law investigations," as
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          2  discussed in Berg (2002), it is highly unlikely that

          3  an accurate prediction of dangerous behavior has

          4  been or even can be made, given the complexity

          5  involved in such an assessment.

          6                 The constitutionality of Kendra's Law

          7  is also a matter of debate. Although the law is

          8  designed to remove a patient from the general public

          9  as quickly as possible based on predictions of

         10  possible future events, the legal process to obtain

         11  an AOT order has recently been found

         12  constitutionally sound by the New York State Court

         13  of Appeals. As Chief Judge Judith S. Kaye wrote in

         14  the decision, "The state's interest in immediately

         15  removing from the streets noncompliant patients

         16  previously found to be, as a result of their

         17  noncompliance, at risk of a relapse or deterioration

         18  likely to result in serious harm to themselves or

         19  others is quite strong." (Santora (2004), p.4)

         20  However, it seems extremely unlikely that the

         21  constitutionality of a similar law surrounding a

         22  criminal matter would be upheld, as the scenario is

         23  all too reminiscent of the fictional judicial system

         24  described in Philip K. Dick's short story "Minority

         25  Report," where criminals are apprehended and
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          2  convicted of "future crimes" that are detected by

          3  dedicated physics. Even in that story, the programs'

          4  imperfections ultimately led to its failure.

          5                 For Kendra's Law, matters have become

          6  further complicated as the law seems to be unevenly

          7  applied throughout the various counties in the

          8  state, with some counties vigorously applying it and

          9  others hardly using it, if even at all. (Bert, 2002,

         10  Moran, 2000 and Warner, 2001).

         11                 Also, there are disturbing new

         12  findings of uneven application for the law among

         13  racial groups, with the conclusion that "blacks were

         14  nearly five times as likely as whites to be the

         15  subject of court orders stemming from Kendra's Law."

         16  (Cooper (2005),p.4.)

         17                 Furthermore, the New York State

         18  Chapter of the National Association of Social

         19  Workers has objected to the law from the beginning

         20  by stating "Kendra's Law will mandate social workers

         21  to report their clients for not following their

         22  treatment plan. By violating the social

         23  worker/client confidentiality, the treatment plan

         24  will be undermind, preventing effective treatment."

         25  (Rosenthal (2000),p.1.).
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          2                 The implementation of Kendra's Law is

          3  expensive, and is funded directly from Albany

          4  through the NYS OMH. In Governor Pataki's 2005-2006

          5  fiscal year budget $32 million has been allocated to

          6  support its operation. Although touted as a

          7  cost-saving device for mental health care systems,

          8  the reality is such that no new funds have been

          9  created to accommodate the law, but are instead

         10  pulled from the already stretched mental health care

         11  budget.

         12                 In addition, nowhere are provisions

         13  made for the legal costs involved, which are quite

         14  substantial as well. The budget for this fiscal year

         15  also includes an additional $125 million in

         16  "Enhanced Community Services" funding in order to

         17  "both improve and expand the capacity of the

         18  existing community-based mental health system and to

         19  strengthen the cohesiveness and coordination of that

         20  system." (NYS OMH (2005),p.3.)

         21                 An important point that many critics

         22  of Kendra's Law have noted is that it is not so much

         23  the involuntary, court-mandated aspect of the law

         24  that creates a successful outcome in patient care,

         25  but rather it is the increased availability and
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          2  coordination of adequate mental health services

          3  which results in greater treatment compliance.

          4  (Moran, 2000, Rosenthal, 2000 and Sudders, 2002.)

          5  One of the conclusions of the Bellevue Outpatient

          6  Commitment Pilot Program was that "[a] Successful

          7  collaboration between the Bellevue OCP and over

          8  eighty other provider agencies was achieved by the

          9  close coordination of services and the shared

         10  commitment to work with a population that is very

         11  ill and perceived as difficult to serve...Outpatient

         12  commitment is not a substitute for services."

         13  (Telson, Glickstein & Trujillo (1999),p.39.)

         14                 An example of effective service

         15  provision without the involuntary aspect is

         16  Assertive Community Treatment (ACT), which is a form

         17  of intense case management by a multi-disciplinary

         18  team that goes into the community to directly serve

         19  people with a severe form of mental illness wherever

         20  they reside on a 24-hour basis, and aims to access

         21  and provide individualized comprehensive mental

         22  health services by acknowledging and understanding

         23  the perspectives of not only the recipient of the

         24  services, but those of their family and culture as

         25  well. (NYS OMH,2003.)
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          2                 Although well-intentioned, assisted

          3  outpatient treatment fails to correct the pantheon

          4  of problems that exist within New York's mental

          5  health care care system. As Marylou Sudders, the

          6  former commissioner of the State Mental Health

          7  Agency of Massachusetts wrote in response to calls

          8  for a similar law to be enacted there, "The real

          9  issue is the lack of a comprehensive mental health

         10  system that provides treatment, rehabilitation, and

         11  opportunity for recovery." (Sudders (2002),p.A23.)

         12  Comprehensive service providers such as ACT and

         13  those teams of agencies that cooperate with Kendra's

         14  Law have demonstrated the potential for positive

         15  treatment outcomes even in the most difficult of

         16  cases. It is therefore my conclusion that all

         17  opportunities for voluntary outpatient care need to

         18  be adequate, available and exhausted before

         19  implementation of involuntary outpatient commitment

         20  can even be considered.)

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 5:06 p.m.)

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            272

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 21st day of April 2005.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

                                                            273

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

